
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 27, 2020 

2021 RETIREMENT PLAN & 

BUDGET WORK SESSION 5:00 PM 

 

REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

6:30 PM 
 

 

Roll Call 
Employee Retirement Plan Presentation 

Proposed 2021 Budget Workshop - Continued 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 
1. Shop Safe, Shop Local Recognition 

2. Visitors & Guests     

Staff Reports 
3. Administrator’s Report 

    Previous Visitors & Guests Follow-Up 

Public Works 

Police Report 

Attorney Report  

Disbursements 
4. Treasurer’s Report 

5. Disbursements 

New Business 
6. Larksfoot Minor Subdivision 

7. Colorado Code Consulting Contract 

8. Staff Retirement Plan Review and Update 

9. Public Water System Discharge Permit Inspection Results 

10. Building Permit Fee Structure 

11. Revised 2021 Budget Calendar 

12. Braver Angels America Hold America Together discussion and possible action item - Requested by 

Trustee Knutson 

Consent Agenda 

13. Regular Minutes: 

10/13/2020 

Special Minutes: 

8/20/2020 

Mayor’s Report 
15. Mayor’s Report 

 

1



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

Committee Reports 
16. Finance & Personnel 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

Space to Create 

Tree Board 

Adjournment 
17. Adjournment 

 

NOTE: THE PACKET MAY BE MODIFIED AND UPDATED UP UNTIL END OF BUSINESS THE DAY PRIOR TO A BOARD MEETING  

2



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the Mayor 

without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall address 

Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific (i.e.: Mr., 

Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board Members shall 

be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or making a 

suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer before 

speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and any group 

they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or presiding 

officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda item or issue(s) 

under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and personal attacks. 

3



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided in 

the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a Consent 

Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to action 

by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or explained 

and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but not limited 

to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval of liquor 

licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-material Scribner 

errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there is a material error 

in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately either 

immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken by 

the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in the 

open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the Board 

to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible without 

compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more than one 

of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the announcement 

of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into executive session, 

there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are subject 

to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of executive 

session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that session or 

with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential unless a 

majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

4



 

October 22, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Roll Call 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

5



 

October 23, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Employee Retirement Plan Presentation 

Summary:   

Shane Squibb will be in attendance to answer Board questions regarding the potential switch 

From Mutual of Omaha to Empower Retirement. Documents from initial Board packet 

9/8/2020 included for reference. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

6



T. Rowe Price Retirement Plan Services Inc.

Reliable solutions for plan sponsors:

SERVICES BUILT ON A
TRADITION OF EXCELLENCE AND
CLIENT COLLABORATION

A PROPOSAL FOR

Town of Paonia

FOR MORE INFORMATION, PLEASE CONTACT:

Shane Squibb, CFP®
Financial Professional, Modern Financial
Shane@modernfinancialco.com
719-572-0071 x242

1 of 20

7



CONTENTS

The T. Rowe Price Difference 3

Plan Sponsor Services 5

Participant Services 9

Advisor and Consultant

Services
11

Investment Services 12

Getting Started With T. Rowe

Price
14

OUR FOCUS AT T. ROWE PRICE
is delivering investment management and retirement
service excellence that investors can rely on—now
and over the long term.

T. Rowe Price at a Glance

Leading independent investment management firm since 1937
Culture of service excellence that puts clients' interests first
Deep understanding of participant behavior
A force for change in the retirement industry

1The combined assets under management of the T. Rowe Price group of companies as of December 31, 2018. The T. Rowe Price group of companies includes T. Rowe Price
Associates, Inc., T. Rowe Price International Ltd, T. Rowe Price Hong Kong Limited, T. Rowe Price Singapore Private Ltd., and T. Rowe Price (Canada), Inc.

2 of 20

8



PLAN SPONSOR SERVICES

OVER 4,600
Plans on our recordkeeping platform

VALUE-ADDED CONSULTATION

18 YEARS
Average industry tenure of Relationship Manager

PARTICIPANT SERVICES

OVER 2 MILLION
Participants served by T. Rowe Price

RECORDKEEPING

OVER 15 YEAR
Relationship with DST Retirement Solutions, LLC (DSTRS)

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT

22 YEARS
Average investment experience for portfolio managers2

NAMED ONE OF "AMERICA'S BEST MID-SIZE
EMPLOYERS" in 2018.³
FORBES® Magazine.

THE T. ROWE PRICE DIFFERENCE

CHOOSE A PIONEER IN
RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS
At T. Rowe Price, we know a strong retirement plan can give clients a competitive edge. Our exceptional service and advanced technology offer
our clients the support they need and the freedom to focus on their business. As one of the largest retirement plan service providers in the
industry,2 we help our clients achieve success through retirement outsourcing services, including:

2 As of December 31, 2018.
3"Forbes ‘Global 2000: World's Best Employers' 2018". © Forbes Media, LLC. Used with permission.

3 of 20

9



Experienced and dedicated service
team supported by advanced
technology capabilities

Award-winning communications and
education materials

State-of-the-art participant tools,
including mobile app access to view
participant accounts and robust
retirement planning calculators

Flexible systems that configure to your
plan document's guidelines

Seamless digital experience when
accessing qualified and nonqualified
plans for both sponsors and
participants

Automatic services, such as auto-
enrollment and auto-increase

Rely on Our Tradition of Superior Client Service
T. Rowe Price has offered investments to retirement plans since 1974 and has been a full-service defined contribution plan service
provider since 1982. Throughout our history, we have found that our competitive advantage is our commitment to client service.

HERE'S HOW YOU BENEFIT

A History of High Satisfaction With T. Rowe Price4

Our people are long tenured, our processes are built on best practices, and our client-first commitment is steadfast. These are the
qualities that lead to consistent, reliable results.

KEY SATISFACTION ATTRIBUTES

93% Excellent reputation as a retirement plan
services provider

91% Overall Satisfaction with Participant Services

93% Overall Satisfaction with Processing
Employee Transactions

94% Overall satisfaction with T. Rowe Price
Investment Services

FORTUNE®NAMED T. ROWE PRICE ONE
OF THE "WORLD'S MOST ADMIRED
COMPANIES® 2017" AMONG SECURITIES/
ASSET MANAGEMENT FIRMS.5

FORTUNE®Magazine, February 16, 2017

42018 Client Satisfaction Analysis by Chatham Partners.
5 T. Rowe Price ranked third in the Securities and Asset Management Industry category. The survey started with approximately 1,500 companies: the FORTUNE 1,000® (the
1,000 largest U.S. companies ranked by revenue), plus non-U.S. companies in Fortune's Global 500 database with revenue of $10 billion or more. The companies were then
sorted by industry, and the 15 largest for each international industry and the 10 largest for each U.S. industry were selected. A total of 680 companies from 28 countries were
surveyed. To create the 51 industry lists, Hay Group (FORTUNE® survey partner) asked executives, directors, and analysts to rate companies in their own industry on nine
criteria, from investment value and quality of management and products to social responsibility and ability to attract talent. A company's score must rank in the top half of its
industry survey to be listed. FORTUNE is a registered trademark of Time Inc. and is used under license. From FORTUNE Magazine, February 16, 2017. © 2017 Time Inc.
FORTUNE and Time Inc. are not affiliated with, and do not endorse products or services of, T. Rowe Price.

4 of 20

10



PLAN SPONSOR SERVICES

THE SUPPORT YOU NEED
FOR THE OUTCOMES YOU WANT
You're looking for a turnkey, automated, and intuitive workplace retirement solution. But that's not all—you
also want the expertise to put that solution in place and keep it running effectively.

Plan Management Support That Works Hard for You

PLAN SPONSOR ROLES

Plan Administration Investments Participants Compliance

T. ROWE PRICE SUPPORT TPA SUPPORT

Enrollment
Contributions/ payroll
Loans
Withdrawals
Deferral tracking
Vesting calculation and
tracking
Automated services
Audit support

Proprietary investment
suite
Nonproprietary
investment suite
Target date investment
suite
Self-directed brokerage

Lifestage communications
Financial education
College savings planning
Individual retirement
accounts

Plan design
Nondiscrimination testing
Form 5500 and related
schedule prep
Financial reporting
Fiduciary support

We'll work closely with your third party administrator to coordinate all of your services, including plan implementation,
recordkeeping, systems, and communications.

The graphic below shows how our team works together to keep plans running smoothly.

PLAN IMPLEMENTATION
SPECIALIST

Oversees the entire conversion
process from census to payroll
submission to allocation of
conversion assets.

+ RELATIONSHIP
MANAGER

Assists with strategy by helping the
plan sponsor organize products and
services to best meet the sponsor's
goals for the retirement plan.

+ RETIREMENT PLAN
ACCOUNT MANAGER

Manages daily communication
between the plan sponsor and the
client service teams within DSTRS in
order to satisfy client needs and
maintain and enhance client
relationships.

Our representatives are not only trained in their respective specialties, but they are also cross-trained to understand the roles and
duties of their teammates. This allows for a seamless transition of responsibilities in the event of any turnover.

5 of 20

11



Defined Contribution Recordkeeping
The retirement plan account manager oversees virtually all of the tasks associated with recordkeeping. Our advanced technology
and fully integrated systems ensure that plan and participant data are synchronized. We strive for excellence in all that we do.

Payroll Integration. Our systems integrate easily with whatever payroll provider you employ, and setup is coordinated by your
retirement plan account manager. With flexible data reporting formats and connections, you can benefit from the ease and
convenience of payroll integration.

Hardware and Software. The TRAC recordkeeping system is considered one of the premier systems in the industry. It is
supported, and was developed, by DSTRS to support recordkeeping and compliance services.

The system is a DB2 relational database, networked on a Windows NT server hardware platform. It is interfaced via Internet, voice
response unit, plan and participant websites, and telephone representatives. Software modifications are delivered on a
continuous-release basis.

Third Party Administrator (TPA) Program
We designed our TPA program to be flexible, and we currently work with almost 400 TPA firms across the country. If you choose to
employ a TPA, we can coordinate our services with them. Our program combines investment expertise, recordkeeping systems,
and technology with the consultative support of the TPA of your choice to provide an integrated solution.

In the TPA Program, we typically provide investment management, a full array of investment choices, a strong participant-level
recordkeeping system, plus robust participant and plan sponsor websites and communication support. In turn, the TPA is typically
responsible for compliance testing and services, retirement plan document expertise, and plan-level tax reporting.

Our TPA program generally accommodates 401(k), 403(b), defined benefit, profit sharing, money purchase pension, governmental
457, and nonqualified plans.

6 of 20

12



Plan Sponsor Website
This robust website provides a full range of convenient and relevant plan management resources for our clients. The site offers
on-demand support to help you monitor plan activity, stay abreast of current market news, and stay informed about legislative
and regulatory developments. In addition, the site offers several tools to assist with your day-to-day plan responsibilities.

Reporting. As a plan sponsor client, you have access to a powerful suite of tools that helps you prepare detailed, effective
reports—at both the plan and participant levels. There are more than 20 prebuilt templates available, or you can create your own
custom reports.
Key features include:

Access to participant financial activity during the selected
reporting period, loan status, vesting status, and various
contribution reports and confirmations

User-friendly Excel formats

Custom reporting with the ability to run census reports and query
information such as date of hire, birth date, compensation, and
deferrals

Ad hoc reporting that enables you to retrieve plan and participant
information based on a variety of criteria

Plan Health Review
Our Plan Health Review provides relevant plan metrics and
information that enables measurement of plan progress. This is a
quarterly auto-generated PDF report that will show plan metrics
across four categories:

Plan features

Plan statistics

Retirement readiness

Asset allocation

Fiduciary Support Services
Allowing you to focus on what's needed. Your fiduciary responsibilities as a plan sponsor are important, and at T. Rowe Price,
we understand that this is one of your many focus areas. We offer fiduciary training and support to assist you in maintaining,
monitoring, and complying with fiduciary requirements. FiduciarySourceSM, available on the Plan Sponsor Web site, provides
fiduciary training with an informative handbook and associated online training videos.

We also keep you informed of general legislative and regulatory developments through:

Consultations and plan reviews with a relationship manager

Our plan sponsor e-newsletter, Ideas & Insights

Articles and features posted on our Plan Sponsor Web site

A quarterly Legislative and Regulatory Update webinar hosted by T. Rowe Price and members of the law firm of Davis &
Harman LLP

7 of 20

13



We Focus on Meeting Your Organization's Unique Needs
We know that having a well-run retirement plan can play a major role in helping your employees face the future with confidence.

To give you maximum flexibility, our platform is designed to support a wide variety of plan types, including:

401(k) and 401(a)
403(b)
Defined benefit
Profit sharing
Money purchase pension
Governmental 457
Nonqualified plans

SERVICES THAT CAN GROW ALONG WITH YOUR BUSINESS

We can work with the hands-on support of plan design and compliance guidance offered by your third party administrator to
provide the services required to help your plan succeed. As your organization grows and evolves, the recordkeeping system is
scalable to reduce the need for costly and confusing alterations in the future. Consistently accurate recordkeeping helps ensure
that your plan information is correct and supports your fiduciary interests.

Our offering combines the investment, client service, and participant communications experience of T. Rowe Price with the
recordkeeping expertise of DSTRS.

DST RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS, LLC:

Technology leadership and service excellence.

With more than 6 million participants combined on its technology platform, DSTRS is one of the
single largest technology and servicing outsourcer in the retirement plan market.Their
reputation for excellence spans a wide range of services:

Recordkeeping for all plan types
Plan administration and operations support
Conversion and implementation
Statements and confirmations
Web-based plan administration services for sponsors, participants, and advisors

8 of 20

14



UNDERSTANDING YOUR EMPLOYEES' NEEDS AT EVERY STAGE OF LIFE

Starting

Encourage participation in the plan, support saving and investment
strategies, and educate about retirement and related products.

Managing

Provide education around prioritization of multiple goals while continuing
to save for retirement.

Preparing and Transitioning

Support a retirement vision and provide suggestions for converting
retirement savings into income for key funding needs.

Living in Retirement

Offer drawdown and withdrawal strategies to help savings last throughout
retirement.

PARTICIPANT SERVICES

OUR GOAL IS TO IMPROVE
RETIREMENT OUTCOMES
Retire With Confidence® Program for Participants
We understand that your employees have competing priorities when it comes to retirement planning and saving. And each has
unique needs that change from one lifestage to another. That's why our approach is relevant, holistic, and practical.

Our Retire With Confidence Program for Participants offers an experience that is grounded in the fundamental value our firm has
been delivering since 1937: confidence. Everything we do is designed to help build employees' confidence that they can achieve
retirement income success in the future.

9 of 20

15



Tools and Education That Build Confidence

Retirement Income Experience: Display
participant's retirement income gap analysis
and in concert with the confidence number on
the homepage, creating the ability for deeper
engagement through modeling.

Morningstar® Portfolio ManagerSM: Suite of
tools that allows participants to track and
analyze their portfolio utilizing unique
Morningstar® features6.

Financial Wellness: Assess your current
financial health, set goals to achieve financial
stability, and creating a schedule to implement
the goals.

Participant Web Access
Our participant website is designed for convenience. From one location, using any digital device, participants can review detailed
or summarized account information, perform transactions, use helpful tools and calculators, and even link accounts from other
financial institutions, such as bank accounts or IRAs.

We are continually improving the site as we respond to the evolving needs of participants. Surveys and activity measurements
provide valuable information that we use as a blueprint to enhance the user experience.

Participant Phone Services
Some participants prefer phone service over online and mobile contact.

Our phone representatives are prepared to handle a wide range of requests from participants. They receive ongoing training in
retirement plan regulations and are equipped with the resources to support your participants based on your specific plan
provisions.

Phone personnel are located in Owings Mills, Maryland, and Tampa, Florida, and are available business days from 8 a.m. to 9 p.m.
ET.

6 The Morningstar name and trademarks are registered marks of Morningstar, Inc. Morningstar Retirement Manager is offered by and is the property of Morningstar

Associates, LLC, a registered investment advisor and wholly owned subsidiary of Morningstar, Inc., and is intended for citizens or legal residents of the United States or its

territories. Morningstar Associates is not affiliated with, nor is it an employee or agent of, T. Rowe Price. Plan sponsors must elect to make the Morningstar services available.

10 of 20

16



ADVISOR AND CONSULTANT SERVICES

A SHARED COMMITMENT TO PROVIDE SUPERIOR
SERVICE TO OUR CLIENTS
At T. Rowe Price, we recognize that assisting retirement plan clients is a rewarding,
yet complex, task. To assist retirement plan advisors and consultants, we offer access to our:

Advisor/consultant relations, sales, and service professionals
Online resource center website, featuring:

• Robust reporting across plans
• Access to fiduciary support tools
• Individual plan and participant views
• Single sign-on, convenient "book of business" view

A variety of resources that offer education and practice management support
Other communications and statistics covering investments, markets, and plan topics

11 of 20

17



Choice and flexibility. The investment lineup can be a key factor in a
participant's ability to plan for a successful retirement. Therefore, selecting
the lineup is one of the most important decisions for a plan sponsor. The
Pension Protection Act of 2006 affords a level of fiduciary protection when
you designate investments such as target date funds as your plan's qualified
default investment alternative. We include the T. Rowe Price Retirement
Funds and the T. Rowe Price Stable Value Common Trust Fund as part of our
core offerings, and our program offers you the choice and flexibility to
decide from a variety of additional investment options:

More than 90 proprietary mutual funds

Nonproprietary investment options from more than 80 investment
managers

Model portfolios - allow you to construct six custom portfolios using your
plan's core investment options

Self-directed brokerage services for plans seeking to allow participants to
buy and sell additional individual securities or mutual funds

T. Rowe Price Investment Management
T. Rowe Price provides a controlled and fundamentally sound approach to
investment management, reflecting our longstanding philosophy of
delivering excellence and reliability. Reducing risk is a key aspect of our
active management style. Rather than focusing on short-term gains, we are
committed to delivering consistent long-term results.

OVER 95% OF OUR RETIREMENT FUNDS
WITH A 10-YEAR TRACK RECORD BEAT
THEIR 10-YEAR LIPPER AVERAGE AS OF /30/
20.8

A History of Investment Expertise

Leading investment management firm since
1937

Average tenure of portfolio managers at T.
Rowe Price is 17 years, with 22 years of
industry experience7

One-step diversification options:

• The Retirement Funds—diversified
portfolios that are automatically adjusted as
target retirement dates near

• The Personal Strategy Funds—a diversified
asset mix in a single investment

INVESTMENT SERVICES

FLEXIBLE OPTIONS TO MEET YOUR NEEDS
Helping participants build portfolios suited to their goals means providing
a variety of competitive investment choices, which is an important fiduciary responsibility for plan sponsors. T. Rowe
Price offers options and support in choosing those investments.

Investment Architecture

Results will vary for other periods. Past performance cannot guarantee future results.

Diversification cannot assure a profit or protect against loss in a declining market.

7 As of December 31, 2018,

12 of 20

18



Call 1-800-638-4546 to request a prospectus or, if available, a summary prospectus; each includes investment objectives,
risks, fees, expenses, and other information that you should read and consider carefully before investing.

836 of our 40 Retirement Funds (Investor, Advisor, and R Class) had a 10-year track record as of 3/31/20 (includes all share classes).
34 of these 36 funds beat their Lipper average for the 10-year period. 4 of 40, 17 of 39, and 33 of 39 of the Retirement Funds
outperformed their Lipper average for the 1-, 3-, and 5-year periods ended 3/31/20, respectively. Calculations are based on
cumulative total return. Not all funds outperformed for all periods. (Source for data: Lipper Inc.)

The Personal Strategy Funds are subject to the inherent volatility of common stock investing, as well as the interest rate risk and credit risk of
fixed income investing.

The principal value of the Retirement Funds is not guaranteed at any time, including at or after the target date, which is the
approximate year an investor plans to retire (assumed to be age 65) and likely stop making new investments in the fund. If an
investor plans to retire significantly earlier or later than age 65, the funds may not be an appropriate investment even if the
investor is retiring on or near the target date. The funds' allocations among a broad range of underlying T. Rowe Price stock and
bond funds will (with the exception of the Retirement Balanced Fund) change over time. The funds (other than the Retirement
Balanced Fund) emphasize potential capital appreciation during the early phases of retirement asset accumulation, balance the
need for appreciation with the need for income as retirement approaches, and focus on supporting an income stream over a long-
term postretirement withdrawal horizon. The funds are not designed for a lump-sum redemption at the target date and do not
guarantee a particular level of income. The funds maintain a substantial allocation to equities both prior to and after the target
date, which can result in greater volatility over shorter time horizons.

The T. Rowe Price Stable Value Common Trust Fund (the "Trust") is not a mutual fund. It is a common trust fund established by T.
Rowe Price Trust Company under Maryland banking law, and its units are exempt from registration under the Securities Act of
1933. Investments in the Trust are not deposits or obligations of, or guaranteed by, the U.S. government or its agencies or the T.
Rowe Price Trust Company. Although the trust seeks to preserve the value of your investment at $1.00 per unit, it is possible to
lose money by investing in the Trust.

All investments involve risk, including possible loss of principal.

This material is provided for general and educational purposes only, and is not intended to provide legal, tax or investment advice.
This material does not provide fiduciary recommendations concerning investments or investment management; it is not

individualized to the needs of any specific benefit plan or retirement investor, nor is it directed to any recipient in connection with
a specific investment or investment management decision.

T. Rowe Price Investment Services, Inc., distributor, T. Rowe Price mutual funds.

13 of 20

19



DOCUMENTATION

We maintain a well-defined transition plan featuring
detailed outlines of responsibilities and corresponding due
dates.

COMMUNICATION

After fact-finding, we develop an implementation schedule
and communication campaign, which outlines critical
dates for administration, conversion, information systems,
and employee communications.

PLAN DESIGN

We work with you to review and discuss plan design
changes that provide added benefits for you and your
participants.

PROJECT MANAGEMENT

The conversion process must be
highly coordinated with respect to all aspects of plan
management (including investments, recordkeeping,
information systems, and communications) to ensure that
the end result benefits both the participants and the plan
sponsor.

TESTING

A thorough test plan is critical to ensure
the integrity of the transferred data and to confirm that all
new administrative procedures are operational before the
start date.

GETTING STARTED WITH T. ROWE PRICE

OUR EXPERTISE PROVIDES FOR
A SMOOTH TRANSITION
Your team of T. Rowe Price professionals is committed to working with you to
make this transition successful. We understand that implementing or converting
a plan may seem complex, but you can count on our years of experience to
make the process as smooth as possible.

We begin the process with transition planning sessions followed by periodic
conference calls. Your team is composed of implementation specialists
dedicated to a successful and painless transition and your ongoing client service
team.

THE PROCESS
There is no need for you and your staff to be experts in the transition process.
We coordinate with your past recordkeeper to support both you and your
employees every step of the way.

Key Ingredients of a Successful Conversion:

14 of 20

20



The Timing
We estimate that a thorough plan implementation requires a minimum of two to three months from the date that T. Rowe Price's
services are retained; however, the timing of the conversion is highly dependent on the reconciliation of participant records from
the current recordkeeping system. Your implementation specialist will work with you to determine a custom time line for your
plan.

YOU CAN EXPECT THE PROCESS TO INCLUDE THREE PHASES:

1 Document design

In this phase you will choose the features that define your retirement plan.

A T. Rowe Price design specialist will review the adoption agreement with you and your third party
administrator and discuss the features you can choose to include.

If your company has an existing plan, the design specialist will use your current plan as a model and review
with you and your third party administrator any areas that you may wish to change.

2 Service implementation

This phase begins the process of establishing your day-to-day operations.

Your T. Rowe Price implementation specialist will work with you to collect participant data that are needed
before activation of Web and phone services, implement your payroll process, train you in the use of the
Plan Sponsor Web site, and establish ongoing administrative processes and procedures.

Additionally, a T. Rowe Price relationship manager will work with you to develop and implement a
communications plan that includes announcements of conversion and service implementation milestones,
regulatory notifications, enrollment meetings, and enrollment materials.

3 Asset conversion

The final phase involves coordinating the movement of any existing plan assets to T. Rowe Price.

For existing plans, your implementation specialist will work with you
and your prior provider to set a liquidation date, transfer historical plan information, reconcile that
information, and release the converted assets back to your participants' accounts.

For new plans, your T. Rowe Price implementation specialist will confirm that you are able to submit the first
payroll contributions through the Plan Sponsor Web site.

15 of 20

21



Defined Contribution Plan Fee Summary for Town of Paonia
August 26, 2020

One time setup fee: $250

Recordkeeping services fee per participant: $15

Plan level fixed fee: $700

Total Plan ($) % of Plan Assets1

Estimated Annual Fees

Plan level fixed fee $700 0.24%

Recordkeeping services fee per
participant

$225 0.08%

Total Estimated
Annual Recordkeeping Service Fee

$925 0.32%

T. Rowe Price Retirement Plan Services Fee Details

The Total Estimated Annual Recordkeeping Service Fee reflects the total billable cost paid to T. Rowe Price Retirement Plan Services (TRP
RPS) for services provided. In addition, TRP RPS and its affiliates will receive and retain administrative fees and/or credits generated by the
plan investment options for shareholder, recordkeeping, and administrative services provided by TRP RPS and its affiliates to the plan
investment options. Once the investment alternatives are selected by the plan sponsor, an estimate of these administrative fees and/or credits
can be found on the ERISA 408(b)(2) disclosure made by TRP RPS and will be incorporated into the administrative services agreement.

Scenario Details

Assumptions

Participants With A Balance
Current Plan Assets
Annual Gross Contributions

15
$250,000

$40,000
1Plan assets is defined as the sum of Current Plan Assets and Annual Gross Contributions.

This document acts as T. Rowe Price's formal fee proposal for recordkeeping and related services. Proposal is valid for 90 days from August 26, 2020.

16 of 20

22



Recordkeeping Services

Service Type Fee

Automatic enrollment Included

Automatic investment (QDIA default) Included

Automatic increase Included

Automatic rebalance Included

Terminated Participant cash out (under
$5K distributions)

$50 Per
Distribution1

Payroll file processing - Contribution/
Loan repayment

Included

Contributions funded not using
Automated Clearing House (ACH)

$300 Per
Quarter

Payroll file processing - Demographic/
Maintenance

Included

Employer requested data entry of
participant information and future
allocations

$7 Per
Participant

Employer contribution calculation $250

Participant exchanges (investment
transfers)

Included

Employer directed plan-wide
exchanges

Included

Eligibility determination Included

Salary deferral tracking Included

Contribution allocation (mix) tracking Included

Loan Modeling Included

Paperless loan origination $100 per loan

Recordkeeping Services (Cont.)

Service Type Fee

Loan maintenance and repayment
processing

Included

Beneficiary tracking Included

Beneficiary payout
$50 Per

Distribution1

Distribution processing - Lump sum
$50 Per

Distribution1

Distribution processing - Installment $50 Setup Fee

Distribution processing - In service
$50 Per

Distribution1

QDRO account segregation/
distribution

$50 Per
Distribution1

Distribution processing - RMD Included

Online quarterly statements Included

Reporting - Ad hoc Included

Reporting - Scheduled Included

Secure file exchange Included

Forfeiture tracking Included

Stale dated check tracking/processing Included

Adjustment processing due to Plan
Sponsor error

$125 Per Hour

Vesting calculation Included

Outside Fund - Subject to approvals Included

Defined Contribution Plan Fee Summary for Town of Paonia
Exhibit B—Recordkeeping and Related Services Provided (TPA Platform)

17 of 20

23



Participant Services

Service Type Fee

Annual strategic communications plan
Included

Upon
Request

Participant communications development
Included

Upon
Request

Participant communications production Included

Enrollment communications Included

Personalized communications Included

Compliance communications Included

Operational communications -
Transaction confirms, etc.

Included

Employee education meeting2 Included

Participant website - Electronic
communication

Included

Voice Response Unit (VRU) Included

Retirement Client Services (Phone Center) Included

Proprietary investment guidance and
planning tools

Included

Tax record preparation/issuance (1099R) Included

Third Party Services

Service Type Fee

Third party investment guidance
and planning tools: Provided by
Morningstar®

Included

Self directed brokerage services

$70 account
maintenance fee,

individual
participant trade

fees and
commissions

apply

Implementation/Conversion

Service Type Fee

Conversion educational program Included

Conversion enrollment process Included

Conversion/Record transfer Included

Ongoing merger and acquisition Included

18 of 20

24



Service Provider Fee Guarantees and Termination
Fees

Fee Guarantee 3 Years

De-Conversion file fee $500

Directed Trustee and Support
Services3

Service Type Fee

Directed plan trustee
and support services4

$500 Per
Year

Certified annual plan accounting
report4 Included

Check issuance Included

Tax record preparation/issuance
(1099R)

Included

Outside fund - Subject to
approvals

Included

Plan Sponsor Services

Service Type Fee

Relationship management team Included

Dedicated conversion manager Included

Plan coordinator team Included

Annual strategic plan
Included Upon

Request

Portfolio analysis Included

Benchmark report Included

Plan Sponsor Resource Center
(website)

Included

Plan Cost Analysis Included

Report of Indirect Compensation Included

Plan and investment review
Included Upon

Request

Investment performance report Included

Note 1 – This is a summary of recordkeeping and related services, not an all-inclusive list. Please refer to final plan procedures and/or recordkeeping
agreement for a comprehensive list of services provided by T. Rowe Price Retirement Plan Services, Inc.
Note 2 – Service offering and pricing assumes that participant e-mail addresses will be included in ongoing demographic/maintenance files and can be
utilized for ongoing participant communications.

1Distribution fee waived if rolled over to T. Rowe Price IRA
2Proposal assumes one meeting day will be allocated initially and ongoing. Additional meetings provided at a rate of $1,000 per day.
3. If the plan is a 403(b) plan then rather custodial and support services are available in place of directed trustee and support services. Fees for custodial and
support services are the same as the directed trustee and support services.
4 Fee for directed trustee and support services applies if Reliance Trust Company is selected to serve as directed trustee. The fee is billed and collected
annually by T. Rowe Price Retirement Plan Services, Inc. (RPS). Reliance Trust Company receives $250 for directed trustee services and RPS retains $250 for
support services. The full fee applies regardless of when services begin or terminate during a year, and no reduction in fee is made for part-year services.

19 of 20

25



C12OPWMTH

201905-836839

A PROPOSAL FOR

Town of Paonia

FOR MORE INFORMATION, PLEASE CONTACT:

Shane Squibb, CFP®
Financial Professional, Modern Financial
Shane@modernfinancialco.com
719-572-0071 x242

20 of 20

26



Town of Paonia $250,000

Current Option 1 Option 2 Option 3

Recordkeeper Mutual of Omaha Empower Retirement T. Rowe Price Lincoln Financial Group
Unbundled - NEED TPA Bundled Unbundled - NEED TPA Unbundled - NEED TPA

Cost $0 Flat Fee $700 $0
Cost to Employee 1.59% 1.40% 0.82% 1.79%

3,975.00$                            $3,500.00 $2,050.00 $4,475.00

TPA (Third Party) Newport Group TRA - The Retirement Advantage
Cost $1,700 $1,200 $1,250 $1,250

Total Cost per year 5,675.00$                            4,700.00$                           $4,000.00 5,725.00$                              
Town Costs up to $1900

*  I would recommend the Empower or T.Rowe Price.  When comparing the 2, you will find that Empower's technology will be far supperior.  You will also have a more
Diversified offering of investments.  The % of assists on all of the plans do go down if the plan assets continue to increase.
**  Empower will reduce the current charge to the town by $500 and reduction in % of the assets by $500.  
***  T.Rowe would decrease the % of assets, but would increase the town oblication.  
****  Empower is the only plan that is bundled meaning they will assist in all of the TPA work and recordkeeping.  This should reduce time and help with administration.

Shane Squibb, CFP
719-572-0071  ext 242
Shane@modernfinancialco.com
Modernfinancialco.com

27



 

1 
 

 
 
 
  

457(B) PLAN PROPOSAL 

 

PREPARED FOR | Town of Paonia 

IN CONJUNCTION WITH | TRA Standard Provider 

ON BEHALF OF | Shane Squibb, Securities America 

DATE | August 26, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY | Phil Kennedy, Regional Sales Consultant, 303.362.8501 

28



 

2 
 

 
 
 
  

WHY PARTNER 
RETIREMENT PLANS ARE COMPLICATED, 
WE MAKE THE PROCESS SIMPLE. 

CYBERSECURITY IS 
IMPORTANT TO YOU… 

IT’S IMPORTANT TO US TOO! 

 

As you know cyberattacks are on the rise and no one is immune.  

That is why it’s vital to understand what the service providers you choose  
to do business with are doing to address threats to you and your employees. 
 

With TRA’s comprehensive cybersecurity strategy and protocols we continuously  
monitor for attacks and vulnerabilities to protect your data and give you comfort when doing 

business with us. 

 

• Security Architecture –industry best practices to identify, block, and respond to threats 

• Security Awareness – an employee culture focused on cybersecurity 

• Security Training & Testing – to prevent social engineering and manipulation of our employees 

• Security Verification – ethical hacking and security and software updates to reduce risk 

 

As a national retirement services company, we 

provide third party administration and fiduciary 

services to plan sponsors, financial advisors, wealth 

managers and businesses of all sizes. Our 

commitment to providing expert consultation, 

resources and exceptional customer service has 

positioned TRA as one of the largest, privately held 

third party administrators in the nation. We proudly 

serve more than 8,000 plan sponsors with more than 

$8 billion in retirement assets under our 

administration. You can count on us to deliver on 

time, on budget, and with precise attention to detail 

29



 

3 
 

WE PROVIDE SOLUTIONS & 
EXCEPTIONAL SERVICE 

SUMMARY OF SERVICES: 
 

 
 

  

 
  

· Plan Design & Consulting 
· Flexible Plan Design Options 
· Prototype & Custom Plan Documents 
· Summary Plan Descriptions 
· Full Conversion & Implementation Services  
· Core Compliance Services, where applicable 

• Vesting calculations 

• Verify eligibility 

• Verify match and non-elective contributions 
· Integrated Payroll Services 
· Online Administrative Resources 

 

The Retirement Advantage serves as the administrative service provider to your plan. That 

means we manage many of the tasks involved in maintaining your plan and its compliance 

with the IRS regulations. 

30



 

4 
 

Town of Paonia  

FEE ESTIMATE 

Our competitive fee combined with our industry leading expertise makes us not only a safe choice, but 

the verified, trusted – best choice. The following estimate is based on our recommended services for 

your specific needs. 

 
 
Implementation Fee (one time) 
Setup Fee: $1,250 

Estimated Implementation Fee: $1,250  
 

Annual Administration Fee (annual fee whether full/short year) 

Base Fee: $1,250 

Estimated Annual Administration Fee: $1,250  

  

 

 

 

 
ASSUMPTIONS & ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

Estimated transfer assets: $250,000 
Estimated annual deposits: $40,000 
Estimated eligible employees: 15 
Estimated active participants with account balance: 15 
 
**Additional fees may apply if profit sharing allocations are made; fees will depend on the allocation type. Pro-rata and integrated profit sharing allocation will be 

invoiced an additional $400 for related testing (Safe Harbor Plans only). New Comparability allocations will be invoiced an additional $250 per group utilized for 
related testing. For existing plans transferring their services to TRA, additional fees may apply after a review of your existing plan provisions. Common provisions 
that will result in additional fees include dual eligibility, dual entry dates, dual vesting and exclusions from the definition of compensation. Please refer to the 
Schedule B provided in the Plan Services Agreement for a full listing of applicable fees.  
 
This Fee ESTIMATE was prepared based on initial data/conversations only. 
 

  

31



 

5 
 

LET’S GET STARTED  
PREPARE FOR IMPLEMENTATION 
TRA’s regional sales consultant and support team will guide you through the implementation process. 

The first step is to complete and fully execute your Plan Services & Fee Agreement and Plan 

Submission Guide. Existing plans that are converting their services to us must also submit their 

current Plan Adoption Agreement and any amendments with the Plan Submission Guide. 

 

IMPLEMENTATION 
With clearly defined goals and ideal plan design to meet your needs, we will begin to build the 

framework for your customized retirement plan. Please allow 4-8 weeks for the implementation 

process of a new or TPA change only plan. If this is a conversion plan with assets moving, please 

allow 12-16 weeks for the implementation and asset transfer process. 

 

 

 
KEY IMPLEMENTATION STEPS: 

 
• COMMUNICATE: After paperwork submission is received in good order, in the next 3-5 

business days, we will schedule a “Welcome” call to review the plan design and help guide you 
through the initial steps of establishing your retirement plan with TRA. 
 

• CREATE: TRA makes signing your legal plan documents easy. We will schedule a “Plan 
Document” call to walk you through what needs to be signed and review the tools and 
resources available at your fingertips. 
 

• CONVERT: For conversions with assets moving, these transfers will involve coordinating 
service termination notices and facilitating a transfer timeline. TRA will partner with your plan 
provider directly to ensure a smooth transition.  
 

• CELEBRATE: Upon the successful implementation of your retirement plan, we will introduce 
you to your dedicated TRA client relationship manager who is your partner in ensuring 
retirement plan success and careful, thoughtful administration. 

 

32



 

6 
Revised PSA October 2019 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SERVICE AGREEMENT 

FEES & TERMS 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

33



 

7 
Revised PSA October 2019 
 

457(b) PLAN SERVICES AND FEE AGREEMENT 

 
The (“Effective Date”) of this Agreement is made as of the later of the date signed below or the first day of the Plan year for which TRA provides 

services by and among the ("Plan Sponsor”) ("Plan Administrator"), ("Responsible Plan Fiduciary") as referenced below and The Retirement Advantage, 

Inc., a Wisconsin corporation ("TRA"). 
 

The parties desire to enter into this Plan Services and Fee Agreement (“Agreement”) whereby TRA will provide certain services in accordance 
with Schedule A to the Plan Sponsor, Plan Administrator and/or Responsible Plan Fiduciary beginning with the Effective Date. These services are 
provided to assist the Plan Sponsor, Plan Administrator and/or Responsible Plan Fiduciary with their responsibilities under the provisions of the Plan, 

the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (“Code”), and, if applicable, Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”). 

 
THEREFORE, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement and intending to be legally bound, the parties hereto 

agree as follows: 
 

TRA shall provide, all upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, the services specified in Schedule A (the “Services”) with respect to 
the   _                                                                                                                                                             (the “Plan”), or subsequent Plan name if 
renamed. Plan Administrator and the Responsible Plan Fiduciary are fiduciaries to the Plan and have authority, including with respect to any participating 

employer(s), to cause the Plan to enter into, extend, or renew this Agreement. The Plan Administrator, Plan Sponsor and Responsible Plan Fiduciary 
acknowledge that the disclosures describing the services to be performed by TRA and the compensation to be paid to TRA were made reasonably in 
advance of the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

 
The Plan Administrator, Plan Sponsor and Responsible Plan Fiduciary acknowledge receipt of the Services Schedule (Schedule A), 

Administrative Fee Schedule (Schedule B), TPA Compensation Disclosure (Schedule C) and Net Pricing Acknowledgment and Terms (Schedule D – 

if applicable), To the extent applicable the Schedules are specifically incorporated into this Agreement by reference and modify and supplement this 
Agreement. In the event of any conflict between this Agreement and the Schedules, the terms of the Schedules shall prevail.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have agreed that this Agreement be executed on their behalf as of the Effective Date of ________ day of 
___________________, 20_____. 
 

 
The Retirement Advantage, Inc. Plan Sponsor 

 
Signed:   Signed:    

 

Name:   Name:    
 

Title:   Title:    

 
The Plan Sponsor, Plan Administrator and Responsible Plan 
Fiduciary are each the same individual or entity and the same 
individual is signing this Agreement on behalf of each. 

 

 
Plan Administrator Responsible Plan Fiduciary 

 
Signed:   Signed:    

 
Name:   Name:    

 

Title:   Title:    
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

34



 

8 
Revised PSA October 2019 
 

 

 

 

 

1. TERM 
This Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and continue in effect throughout the Plan Year in effect as of the Effective Date (regardless of 

whether that Plan Year is later changed). This Agreement shall automatically renew for successive one-year terms commencing on the first day of each 
Plan Year thereafter. The Plan Administrator may terminate this Agreement during the Plan Year by providing written notice to TRA. The “Effective Date 
of Termination” for the Agreement will be (a) the last day of the quarter following the quarter in which TRA receives Plan Administrator’s termination 

notice if TRA receives notice of termination during the first six months of a Plan Year, or (b) if TRA receives notice of termination during the last six 
months of a Plan Year, the last day of the then current Plan Year. Plan Sponsor agrees to pay all fees through the Effective Date of Termination even 
if Plan Administrator elects not to have TRA provide services through the Effective Date of Termination. In no case shall fees be refunded unless such 

fees have been paid in advance for a period of time that extends beyond the Effective Date of Termination. Any fees charged to TRA by the Plan’s 
Investment Manager beyond the Effective Date of Termination shall be the responsibility of the Plan Sponsor. No Plan records shall be remitted to a 
successor service provider until all fees owed through the Effective Date of Termination are paid in full. TRA shall discontinue the sponsorship of any 

Prototype Plan as of the Effective Date of Termination. If TRA increases fees pursuant to Section 4 after the Plan Administrator terminates this 
Agreement pursuant to this Section 1, the Plan Sponsor shall only pay the fees or rates in effect as of the date of termination, not the increased fees. 
Any termination of this Agreement by the Plan Sponsor shall also constitute a termination of this Agreement with respect to any other participating 

employer in the Plan. However, a participating employer may enter into a new agreement with TRA. 
2. SERVICES 
2.1 GENERAL. TRA shall provide the Services as described in Schedule A attached hereto and TRA may retain subcontractors to perform any of the 

Services. The Plan Administrator and Responsible Plan Fiduciary authorize and approve the retention of subcontractors by TRA to perform any of the 
Services. Certain services provided to the Plan may be performed by the entity that invests the funds of the Plan, known as the “Investment Manager.” 
This Agreement is not intended to specify the duties, responsibilities, or services offered by the Investment Manager in regards to the Plan. TRA has no 

responsibility for any services provided by the Plan’s Investment Manager and TRA makes no representations or warranties regarding such services. 
The Plan Sponsor, Plan Administrator and Responsible Plan Fiduciary agree and acknowledge (a) that other service providers are not subcontractors 
of TRA unless TRA, in its exclusive discretion, designates a provider as its subcontractor in TRA’s books and records and (b) that fee and compensation 

disclosures must be obtained directly from any such outside service provider and will not be provided by TRA. 
2.2 STANDARD SERVICES. The recordkeeping services that are provided by TRA are designed to assist the Plan Administrator. These services are 

listed on Schedule A. 
2.3 SPECIAL CONSULTING SERVICES. If so agreed in writing by TRA, TRA also may provide certain recordkeeping services (Special Consulting 
Services) that are referenced in Schedule B. The fee associated with said services will be charged as per Schedule B and TRA must agree to provide 

such service in writing. Special Consulting Services include (but are not limited to): 
(a) Additional consulting or recordkeeping services associated with plan mergers or the acquisition or disposition of a business or its assets; 
(b) Complex plan amendments that require up-front consulting to design and implement; 

(c) Performing an administrative review of a domestic relations order; 
(d) Plan contribution estimates for plans with complex plan designs; 
(e) Preparation of IRS Correction Program filings; 

(f) Providing consulting services to the Plan Sponsor or Plan Administrator on issues such as complex plan design; 
(g) Re-running reports or redoing other work because of incorrect information reported to TRA or due to a change in the employer contribution 

amount; 

(h) Correcting transactions not performed by TRA; 
(m) Preparation of IRS Forms 1099R for distributions not performed by TRA; 

(n) Review of prior reporting or any other services performed for the Plan by any person or entity other than TRA. TRA is under no obligation to 

review whether the Plan was maintained in an “eligible” status under Section 457(b) of the Code prior to the Effective Date of this  
Agreement; 

(o) Compliance testing that incorporates a plan maintained by the Plan Sponsor or an affiliate for which TRA does not provide retirement plan 
services; 

(p) Performing plan document reviews or comparisons; 
(q) Reviewing controlled or affiliated group status; 

(r) Performing late deposit calculations; 
(s) Performing data entry and verification services; 
(t) Receiving telephone calls or replying to electronic mail from Plan participants or eligible employees; 

(u) Assist with contribution uploads. 
2.4 EXCLUDED SERVICES. Services which are not provided by TRA under this Agreement include: 

(a) Preparation of personal or corporate income tax returns or any related schedules or attachments; 

(b) Determining the extent to which contributions made to the Plan are deductible; 
(c) Services designed to keep the Plan in compliance with ERISA Section 404(c) relating to insulating the Plan fiduciaries from fiduciary liability 

on Participant investment decisions; 

(d) Preparation of audits required because of the filing of IRS Form 5500; 
(e) Preparation of Form 990-T pertaining to Unrelated Business Income Tax; 
(f) Preparation of IRS Form 5310. 

2.5 PLAN ASSETS. Nothing in this Agreement will be deemed to impose any obligation on TRA to monitor, control or in any way exercise any 
discretion as it relates to the handling or disposition of any Plan assets. The parties also understand that TRA does not adv ise in any way on the 
selection of investments made available to participants in a participant investment directed plan or in a plan where the Trustee controls the investment 

of Plan assets. 
2.6 RELIANCE ON INFORMATION PROVIDED. TRA accepts information provided by the Plan Sponsor or Plan Administrator as being complete and 
accurate and does not accept responsibility for report or processing inaccuracies resulting from errors or inaccuracies in information reported to us. If 

it becomes necessary for TRA to repeat any of its services due to inaccurate or erroneous information provided by the Plan Sponsor or Plan 
Administrator, an additional fee will be charged as per Section 2.3 above. 

 

 
 

35



 

9 
 

 
 

 
2.7 NO FIDUCIARY RELATIONSHIP. TRA will provide certain recordkeeping and consulting services for the Plan Administrator subject to the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement. The parties agree that this Agreement shall not be construed as creating a fiduciary relationship 

between TRA and the Plan. The parties agree the services provided by TRA under this Agreement are ministerial in nature and that TRA has 
no fiduciary responsibilities to the Plan, the Plan Sponsor, the Plan Administrator, the Participants or their Beneficiaries, or the Trustee(s). 
TRA shall not have any discretion with respect to the management or administration of the Plan or with respect to determining or changing 

the rules or policies pertaining to eligibility or entitlement of any participant in the Plan to benefits under the Plan. TRA also shall not have 
any control or authority with respect to any assets of the Plan, including the investment or disposition thereof. The Plan Administrator 
acknowledges that it is the Plan fiduciary responsible for the selection of service providers and investment funds and that (a) to the extent 

applicable, it is a fiduciary, within the meaning of ERISA, with respect to the Plan; (b) it is independent in all respects of TRA and all affiliates 
of TRA; and (c) it has not relied on any advice or recommendation of TRA or any affiliates of TRA as a primary basis for making the decision 
to enter into this Agreement or with respect to the selection of particular investment funds. All discretion and control with respect to the 

terms, administration or assets of the Plan shall remain with the Plan Administrator or with the named fiduciaries under such Plan. 
2.8 DEFENSE OF LEGAL ACTION. TRA has no obligation to defend any legal action, or participate in any legal proceeding or plan audit brought by 
the DOL, IRS or any other government body with respect to the Plan or with respect to any funds or property held in the Plan. TRA shall promptly notify 

the Plan Sponsor of any such legal proceeding or audit. Whenever TRA deems it reasonably necessary, TRA is authorized and empowered to consult 
with its counsel in reference to the Plan and to retain counsel and appear in any action, suit or proceedings affecting the Plan or any property or funds 
of the Plan. All fees and expenses so incurred shall be for the Plan and shall be the responsibility of the Plan Sponsor, unless and except to the extent 

that the legal action or plan audit was caused by the actions of TRA in breach of its obligations under this Agreement. 

2.9 LEGAL ADVICE. The parties acknowledge that TRA does not practice law and does not provide legal advice, and that the Plan Sponsor, Plan 
Administrator and/or Responsible Plan Fiduciary must obtain their own legal and tax counsel for review and advice on the plan documents, plan design 

and specifications appropriate for the Plan as well as on the legal and tax issues which may arise relating to the operation of the Plan. 
2.10 CONTROLLED OR AFFILIATED SERVICE GROUP. If the Plan Sponsor’s business is owned or controlled in whole or in part by another business, 
or owns or controls another business in whole or in part, or if individuals own or control it in whole or in part and own or control other businesses in 

whole or in part, all of the entities involved may constitute a controlled group or an affiliated service group. The Plan Sponsor is responsible for 
determining if such a group exists and notifying TRA of this fact in writing. TRA is under no obligation to seek out this information or verify the Plan 
Sponsor’s status as regards this issue. TRA shall in no event be liable for any damages, fines, penalties, or taxes which may  result from a Plan Sponsor 

being part of, or not part of, a controlled group. 
2.11 MULTIPLE PLANS AND PRIOR PLANS. If the Plan Sponsor currently maintains multiple retirement plans or has previously maintained another 
retirement plan prior to this Agreement, aggregation of these plans may be permitted or required in order to satisfy maximum benefit and contribution 

limitations. Where TRA does not administer or did not administer all of the plans of the Plan Sponsor, the Plan Sponsor agrees that, TRA will be 
responsible for providing aggregate testing results only if specifically engaged, in writing signed by TRA, to provide such services as an Optional Service, 
as described in Section 2.3 above. The Plan Sponsor further agrees to indemnify and hold TRA harmless from all consequences which may arise by 

provision of services to only a portion of such a group of related plans. 

2.12 PRIOR ADMINISTRATION. If TRA is taking over administration from a prior administration firm, TRA is not responsible for losses resulting from 
the prior firm’s administration, or which are incurred as a result of actions or decisions which were undertaken or made by the prior firm. TRA is under no 
obligation to review prior administration work or tax filings. Where TRA is retained to provide services midyear, it shall not verify the accuracy or 

correctness of work performed by the prior administrator. The Plan Sponsor agrees to indemnify and hold TRA harmless from any and all consequences 
which are the result of work performed prior to TRA’s assumption of responsibility to provide services pursuant to this  Agreement. 
2.13 REGULATORY AMENDMENTS AND RESTATEMENTS. The parties agree that services for regulatory amendments and restatements will be 

provided at TRA’s then standard rate determined by the scope of the regulatory changes. 
3. RESPONSIBILITIES OF PLAN ADMINISTRATOR 
3.1 COMPLIANCE. The Plan Administrator of the Plan and, if applicable, related trust, acknowledges it is responsible for administrative and 

recordkeeping functions required to maintain the Plan’s “eligible” and “tax-exempt” status under Section 457(b) of the Code, as amended from time to 
time. It is the Plan Administrator’s responsibility to comply with the applicable provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA), as 
amended from time to time, as well as complying with any procedures, rulings, or other announcements of the IRS or the DOL. P lan Administrator’s 

responsibilities include but are not limited to: 
(a) Maintaining signed copies of beneficiary forms, distribution forms, loan requests (if applicable), Forms 5500 (if applicable), Plan documents, 

amendments, etc. 

(b) Timely filing of all reports with the appropriate government agency; 
(c) Determining eligibility of employees and timely enrolling them into the Plan; 
(d) Timely distribution of any Summary Plan Description or Addendum thereto, Summary Annual Report, or any benefit statements (if 

applicable); 
(e) Informing TRA of any anticipated change in business entity or anticipated business acquisition or disposition, whether it be a stock or asset 

acquisition or disposition or control of another business; 
(f) Reviewing TRA generated reports and government forms for accuracy; 
(g) Providing TRA with any information required to perform the tasks set out in this Agreement on a timely basis, including but not limited to hire 

and termination dates of employees, annual compensation amounts, trust statements, ownership/control information, etc. The Plan 

Administrator understands that TRA relies on the accuracy of the information furnished by the Plan Sponsor, Plan Administrator and their 
advisors. 

(h) Prompt payment of fees incurred by the Plan Sponsor, Plan Administrator, or any other participating employer under the plan, pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement; 

(i) Informing TRA of any change in Plan contacts or Trustees; 

(j) Maintaining fidelity bond within DOL regulatory guidelines (if applicable); 
(k) Where required, executing administrative forms; 
(l) Distributing and collecting beneficiary designation forms for all Plan participants and eligible employees; 

(m) Participant Loan maintenance (if applicable); 
(n) Timely amending the Plan to add or remove a participating employer; 
(o) Timely providing all year-end census and other requested data to TRA with respect to all of the Plan’s participating employers. 

3.2 NOTICE OF PLAN ADOPTION AND AMENDMENTS. In recognition of the fact that certain retirement plan provisions must be coordinated and 
possibly tested together, the Plan Sponsor must notify TRA of the adoption of a new retirement plan where TRA is not the third-party recordkeeper, or 
upon the adoption of an amendment to an existing retirement plan where TRA is not the third-party recordkeeper. TRA reserves the right to review the 

36



 

10 
 

new or amended Plan prior to providing any services under this Agreement to assure that the recordkeeping services performed hereunder can be 
effectively handled by TRA. 

 
 

4. FEES 
4.1 FEE SCHEDULES. The Services provided by TRA pursuant to this Agreement will be subject to the fees set forth in Schedule B at tached hereto. 
The parties agree that services other than those described in either Fee Schedule may be provided at TRA’s then standard rate or, if applicable, for 

such fees as are mutually agreed by the parties. 
4.2 BILLING. Fees are billed on a quarterly basis prior to the beginning of the quarter or at time of service as described in Schedule B. In no event does 
TRA have responsibility to perform services if fees are over 30 days past due. All fees payable with respect to a Plan shall be charged to the Plan 

Sponsor regardless of whether they are incurred with respect to the Plan Sponsor or another participating employer. TRA shall provide a single invoice 
that will be submitted to the Plan Sponsor. 
4.3 MODIFICATION. Service fees are subject to change upon sixty (60) days written notice to the parties. A new Administrative Fee Schedule mailed 

to the parties shall constitute notice under this section. Fees will not be increased for the first Plan Year for new plans or for the Plan Year in which TRA 
first provides retirement plan services. 
4.4 TERMS OF PAYMENT. Fees for services shall be considered delinquent thirty (30) days after the billing date. TRA shall have limited responsibility 

to perform any of the services specified in this Agreement while any fee is delinquent. Services for the termination of the P lan shall not be performed 
until all fees are made current and the fees for terminating the Plan are paid. If fees are delinquent, the Plan Sponsor hereby authorizes TRA to withdraw 
delinquent fees from Plan assets to the extent permitted by law. The Plan Sponsor shall have the right to contest any fee billed by TRA. If Plan Sponsor 

disputes any charge or amount on any invoice and such dispute cannot be resolved promptly through good faith discussions between the parties, Plan 
Sponsor shall pay the amounts due under this Agreement less the disputed amount, and the parties shall diligently proceed to resolve such disputed 
amount. An amount will be considered disputed in good faith if (i) Plan Sponsor delivers a written statement to TRA on or before the due date of the 

invoice, describing in detail the basis of the dispute and the amount being withheld by Plan Sponsor, (ii) such written statement represents that the 
amount in dispute has been determined after due investigation of the facts and that such disputed amount has been determined in good faith, and (iii) 
all other amounts due from Plan Sponsor that are not in dispute have been paid in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Plan Sponsor agrees 

that all fees associated with establishment, administration, and termination of the Plan are the responsibility of the Plan Sponsor and/or the Plan. 
Undisputed charges not paid by the due date shall be subject to annual interest at the rate of 18% or the highest rate permit ted by law, whichever is 
lower. Plan Sponsor shall also pay any collection fees, court costs, and reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by TRA in collecting payment of the charges 

and any other amounts for which Plan Sponsor is liable under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
5. WARRANTY/DISCLAIMER 
5.1 PERFORMANCE WARRANTY. TRA warrants that it will provide the Services described in Schedule A in a commercially reasonable manner (the 

“Performance Warranty”). 
5.2 DISCLAIMER OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES. THIS PERFORMANCE WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF, AND TRA DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL 
OTHER WARRANTIES, CONDITIONS, OR REPRESENTATIONS (EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, ORAL OR WRITTEN) WITH RESPECT TO THE 

SERVICES PROVIDED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY AND ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS OR SUITABILITY FOR ANY PURPOSE (W HETHER OR NOT TRA KNOWS, HAS REASON TO KNOW, HAS 
BEEN ADVISED, OR IS OTHERWISE IN FACT AWARE OF ANY SUCH PURPOSE), WHETHER ALLEGED TO ARISE BY LAW, BY REASON OF 

CUSTOM OR USAGE IN THE TRADE, OR BY COURSE OF DEALING. IN ADDITION, TRA DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION 
TO ANY PERSON OTHER THAN PLAN SPONSOR WITH RESPECT TO THE SERVICES PROVIDED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. 
6. TERMINATION 

This Agreement may be terminated immediately, at the option of TRA, upon the failure to: 
(a) Provide the information required hereunder within sixty (60) days of the request. 
(b) Pay the applicable fees within thirty (30) days of the date the fees are considered delinquent under paragraph 4.4. 

(c) Make timely deposit of participant contributions and/or loan payments to the Plan pursuant to DOL regulations. This section shall not be 
construed to imply any duty of TRA to determine, monitor, or inform the Plan Sponsor as to the timeliness of participant contributions and/or 
loan payments. 

(d) Regardless of any failure of the Plan Sponsor, upon ninety (90) days notice to the Plan Sponsor from TRA. Notice of termination will be 
given to the Plan Sponsor via certified mail. 

7. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY/MAXIMUM DAMAGES ALLOWED 
7.1 EXCLUSION OF CERTAIN DAMAGES. INDEPENDENT OF, SEVERABLE FROM AND TO BE ENFORCED INDEPENDENTLY OF ANY OTHER 
PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT, NEITHER PARTY WILL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY (NOR TO ANY PERSON CLAIMING RIGHTS 

DERIVED FROM THE OTHER PARTY’S RIGHTS) IN CONTRACT, TORT, (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE) OR OTHERWISE, FOR INCIDENTAL, 
CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES OF ANY KIND—INCLUDING LOST PROFITS, LOSS OF BUSINESS, OR 
OTHER ECONOMIC DAMAGE, AND FURTHER INCLUDING INJURY TO PROPERTY, AS A RESULT OF BREACH OF ANY WARRANTY OR 
OTHER TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING ANY FAILURE OF PERFORMANCE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER THE PARTY LIABLE OR 

ALLEGEDLY LIABLE WAS ADVISED, HAD OTHER REASON TO KNOW, OR IN FACT KNEW OF THE POSSIBILITY THEREOF. 

7.2 MAXIMUM DAMAGES ALLOWED. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and for any reason, including breach of any duty 
imposed by this Agreement or independent of this Agreement, and regardless of any claim in contract, tort (including negligence) or otherwise, TRA's 

total, aggregate liability under this Agreement shall in no circumstance exceed the greater of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) or the average annual 
fees paid by Plan Sponsor to TRA hereunder, provided, however, that the foregoing shall not limit TRA’s liability for (a) damages caused by its own 
willful misconduct, and (b) fines or penalties imposed upon Plan Sponsor by the Internal Revenue Service, U.S. Department of Labor, or other 

governmental authority caused solely by TRA's failure to correctly file any form that TRA is obligated hereunder to file for Plan Sponsor provided that 
(i) Plan Sponsor has timely provided all information requested by TRA in connection with such filing, (ii) Plan Sponsor is no t in default of any of its 
obligations hereunder, and (iii) Plan Sponsor promptly notifies TRA upon learning of any such error and TRA is given sole control over all discussions 

and negotiations with the applicable government authority regarding such matter. 

7.3 STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS. No lawsuit or other action may be brought by either party hereto, or on any claim or controversy based upon or 
arising in any way out of this Agreement, after one (1) year from the date a party knows of a claim, regardless of the nature of the claim or form of action, 
whether in contract, tort (including negligence) or otherwise; provided, however, the foregoing limitation shall not apply to the collection of any amounts 

due under this Agreement. 
7.4 ESSENTIAL ELEMENTS. Plan Sponsor and TRA acknowledge and agree that the limitations contained in this Article 7 are essential  to this 
Agreement, and that TRA has expressly relied upon the inclusion of each and every provision of this Article 7 as a condition to executing this Agreement. 
8. INDEMNITY 
Plan Sponsor agrees to defend TRA and any of its subcontractors or affiliates from or against, and hold TRA, its subcontractors or affiliates harmless 

from or against, any claim of any third party (including but not limited to Plan participants) resulting from the performance of the Services by TRA, its 

37



 

11 
 

subcontractors or its affiliates in accordance with this Agreement or the instructions and specifications of Plan Sponsor, Plan Administrator or the 
Responsible Plan Fiduciary. 

9. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
9.1 GOVERNING LAW. The validity, construction and interpretation of this Agreement and the rights and duties of the parties hereto shall be governed 

by the internal laws of the State of Wisconsin, excluding its principles of conflict of laws. 
9.2 VENUE AND JURISDICTION. In the event of litigation to enforce the terms of this Agreement, the parties consent to venue in an exclusive 
jurisdiction of the courts of Ozaukee County, Wisconsin, and the Federal District Court for the Eastern District of Wisconsin. The parties further consent 

to the jurisdiction of any federal or state court located within a district that encompasses assets of a party against which a judgment has been rendered, 
either through arbitration or litigation, for the enforcement of such judgment or award against such party or the assets of such party. 
9.3 ENTIRE AGREEMENT; AMENDMENTS. This Agreement, together with the Schedules hereto, and, if applicable, each Participating Employer 

Appendix, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. There are no restrictions, promises, 
warranties, covenants or undertakings other than those expressly set forth herein and therein. This Agreement supersedes all prior negotiations, 
agreements, and undertakings between the parties with respect to such matter. This agreement, including the Schedules hereto, may be amended (a) 

by an instrument in writing executed by the parties or their permitted assignees, or (b) by TRA upon the expiration of a 60-day period following written 
notice by TRA to the Plan Administrator describing the applicable change(s). With respect to an amendment described in Section 9.3(b), the Plan 
Administrator may object to the applicable change(s) by filing written notice to TRA of such objections within the applicable 60-day period. In that event, 

the parties shall negotiate to resolve their differences over the proposed changes and any resulting amendment to this agreement shall be implemented 
in accordance with Section 9.3(a). 
9.4 RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES. The performance by TRA of its duties and obligations under this Agreement shall be that of an independent 

contractor and nothing contained in this Agreement shall create or imply an agency relationship between the Plan Sponsor and TRA, nor shall this 
Agreement be deemed to constitute a joint venture or partnership between Plan Sponsor and TRA. 
9.5 HEADINGS. Headings in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the interpretation or meaning of this Agreement. 
9.6 WAIVER. No delay or omission by any party to exercise any right or power it has under this Agreement shall impair or be construed as a waiver 
of such right or power.  A waiver by any party of any breach or covenant shall not be construed to be a waiver of any succeeding breach or any other 
covenant. All waivers must be in writing and signed by the party waiving its rights. 
9.7 SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is held by court or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, then the remaining 

provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect. Any fees owed to TRA, along with any indemnification owed to TRA, including but not 
limited to Articles 7, 8 and 9, shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement for any reason. 

9.8 ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS. If any legal action is commenced in connection with the enforcement of this Agreement or any instrument or 

agreement required under this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to costs, attorneys’ fees actually incurred, and necessary disbursements 
incurred in connection with such action, as determined by the court. 
9.9 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. Each party intends that this Agreement shall not benefit, or create any right or cause of action in or on behalf 

of, any person or entity other than the Plan Sponsor and TRA. 
9.10 FORCE MAJEURE. Notwithstanding any provision contained in this Agreement, neither party shall be liable to the other to the extent fulfillment 
or performance of any terms or provisions of this Agreement is delayed or prevented by revolution or other civil disorders; wars; acts of enemies 

(including but not limited to terrorist attacks); strikes; lack of available resources from persons other than parties to this Agreement; labor disputes; 
electrical equipment or availability failure; fires; floods; acts of God; federal, state or municipal action; statute; ordinance or regulation; or, without limiting 
the foregoing, any other causes not within its control, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence it is unable to prevent, whether of the class of 

causes hereinbefore enumerated or not. This clause shall not apply to the payment of any sums due under this Agreement by either party to the other. 
9.11 CONSTRUCTION. The parties each acknowledge that the limitations and exclusions contained in this Agreement represent the parties’ voluntary 
agreement based upon the level of risk to the parties associated with their respective obligations under this Agreement and the payments to be made 

to TRA and the charges to be incurred by TRA pursuant to this Agreement. The parties agree that the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not 
be construed in favor of or against any party by reason of the extent to which any party or its professional advisors participated in the preparation of 
this document. 

9.12 SIGNATURE.  Each party agrees that electronic signatures, whether digital or encrypted, of the parties hereto are intended to authenticate this 
Agreement and to have the same legal validity and enforceability as manual signatures. This Agreement may be executed electronically or manually in 
any number of counterparts and all of such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument. Delivery of a copy of this Agreement 

or any other document contemplated hereby bearing a manual or electronic signature by facsimile transmission, by electronic mail in portable document 
format (.pdf), or by any other electronic means will have the same effect as manual delivery of an originally executed counterpart of this Agreement. 

 

 

 

17881574.1 
 

  

38



 

12 
 

 
Schedule A – SERVICES SCHEDULE – 457(b) PLANS 

 

Following are standard services provided by The Retirement Advantage, Inc. (TRA) to assist the Plan Administrator in performing its applicable duties 
under the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). Plan Administrator is ultimately responsible for administering the Plan and, therefore, must be familiar with its 
terms.  Depending upon the plan type and plan sponsor, some of the services listed below may not be applicable.  

 
Plan Implementation   

1. Provide the Plan Sponsor and Plan Administrator with plan design and consulting services.   

2. Prepare Plan Document for Plan Sponsor’s review and signature. 
3. Maintain the Plan Document and provide Amendments as needed to comply with the applicable Internal Revenue Code requirements. 

Restatements and optional amendments are different from the above and provided at an additional fee upon written request. Adopters of the TRA 

Plan Document agree to obtain their own legal counsel for review of all Plan Documents and Amendments. 
4. Set up Plan information in all pertinent databases and recordkeeping software.   
5. Provide the Plan Sponsor and Plan Administrator with a Plan Portal.   

 

Plan Administration   

1. Upon written request by Plan Administrator, assist Plan Administrator with certain administrative functions which must be performed as part of the 
ongoing administration of the Plan. (Plan Administrator shall at all times be exclusively responsible for determining whether a participant or 
beneficiary may be entitled to a distribution from the Plan.) These administrative functions include:   

a. Calculation of vesting of employer contributions;   

b. Processing distributions and withdrawals from participants’ account balances (if applicable);    

c. Processing participant loans (if applicable); and    

d. Accepting rollover contributions (if applicable).   

2. Upon written request by Plan Administrator, TRA will (a) verify that a participant request for a distribution, withdrawal or loan satisfies specific plan 

provisions adopted by the Plan Administrator, and (b) once verified, process the participant request in accordance with the Plan (and related 

materials) and Plan Administrator’s pre-approval of the request. In processing such requests, TRA shall act in a ministerial capacity and shall 

not exercise any discretion in confirming that Plan Administrator’s requirements have been met. In no event shall processing such distribution, 

withdrawal and/or loan requests cause TRA to be a fiduciary. 

3. Perform compliance review to ensure eligibility is calculated correctly, match and non-elective contributions are calculated   

and allocated correctly (if applicable), and assist in monitoring IRC maximum deferral limitations (except as otherwise provided   

in the Plan Services and Fee Agreement, including but not limited to Sections 2.3, 2.10 and 2.11).   

Please review Schedule B - Administrative Fee Schedule for any fees associated with these services.  

  

19159301.2 

    

  

Revised July 2018 

39



 

13 
 

 
SCHEDULE B – ADMINISTRATIVE FEE SCHEDULE - Retirement Plan Services – Standard Pricing 

Plan Set-up (One Time – Non-Refundable)   

• Base    $1,250   

Annual Plan Administration Services †   

• Base    $1,250   

• Per Participant with Account Balance  $25 

• Safe Harbor Plan Design (if applicable)  $1,250 base only; no participant fee 

Transaction Services (participant based fees if processed by TRA*)   

• Employee Distributions:  

o Termination, In-Service, Death, Disability and Retirement  $75 

o Hardship, 70 ½ and Corrective   $125 

o Qualified Domestic Relations Order (QDRO)  $300 

o Additional Benefit Payout  $35 

• Preliminary Loan Calculation  $50 

• Loan Set-up or Refinancing (if tracked by TRA)  $250 

• Loan Set-up or Refinancing (if tracked by Provider)  $100 

• Loan Re-amortization  $50 

• Loan Default  $175 

• Preparation of 1099R Tax Form (if applicable)  $50 

• Rush Processing (not applicable with QDROs)  $60 

* Participants will be responsible for these fees. If arrangements cannot be made for the employees to pay transaction fees, the 

Plan Sponsor will be responsible for any unpaid fees. 
   

Enhanced Services † 

• Cross-tested Plans         $250 per allocation group utilized 

• Age Weighted Plans       $500 per allocation 

• Additional Investment Manager Accounts     $250 per additional 

• Complex Document Provisions*      $200 per provision 

• Life Insurance        $200 per policy per year 

• Non-TRA Prototype Plan Document     $500 additional 
 
* Includes dual eligibility, dual entry dates, dual vesting and exclusions from the definition of compensation. 

Special Consulting / Other Services (if applicable) 

• Additional Allocation Calculations & Illustrations*    $200   

• Deposits        $30 per deposit  

• Forms / Records Request*      $50  

• Internal Conversions         $500 

• IRS Form 5330 or IRS Form 5558      $150 

• IRS Form 5500 
o Amended or Additional Form 5500     $300 
o Electronic Filing on Behalf of Plan Sponsor    $100 
o Electronic Filing of Amended Return     $50 

• Late or Incomplete Data       $300 

• Plan Document Amendment      $250 

• Plan Document Restatement       $500 

• Plan Termination       $1,500 

• Projected Testing*       $200 
• Service Termination       Sect 1 – Plan Services & Fee Agreement 

• Special Consulting*       $200  

* Per hour fee = 1 hour minimum.   
† The Annual Plan Administration and Enhanced Services fees will be assessed based on the entire rate listed above even if TRA is 

contracted for services for only a portion of the Plan year.   
           

 

 
 
 

 
 

SP_19 

40



RETIREMENT PLAN SERVICES

1642237

For plan sponsor use only. 
Not for use with public.

The Lincoln National Life Insurance Company 
Lincoln Life & Annuity Company of New York

Not a deposit Not FDIC-insured May go down in value

Not insured by any federal government agency

Not guaranteed by any bank or savings association

Town of Paonia

Date prepared: August 25, 2020
Presented by:

Shane Squibb

Modern Financial
600 South Cherry Street, Suite 530
Denver, CO, 80206
719-572-0071
shane@modernfinancialco.com

41



Lincoln Director SM proposal
Lincoln understands your needs and goals as a business owner as well 
as the challenges you and your employees face each day. That’s why we 
designed the Lincoln Director SM program. 

Lincoln Director is a complete retirement solution that helps address everything that matters 
most to you and your employees:

Flexibility
Lincoln Director and our 
TPA’s deliver flexible plan 
design with customized 
investment solutions 
that can adapt to your 
evolving goals. 

Transparency
Lincoln Director can 
connect you to providers 
who offer fiduciary 
solutions that can help 
mitigate risk and promote 
transparency.

Support
With Lincoln Director, you’ll 
enjoy an exceptional level 
of service and ongoing 
support that simplifies 
administrative processes.

We share your goal of helping your employees achieve better 
retirement outcomes — and Lincoln Director can provide the tools to 
help them attain it.

42



Your plan details

Your plan pricing1

 

Your plan overview

Total plan assets:

$250,001

Participant balances:

15

Annual contributions:

$50,000

Recordkeeping and servicing 1.22%

Compensation paid to your financial advisor 0.50%

Director class credit 0.00%

Asset fee to participants 1.72%

Your investment lineup
Morningstar Extended Lineup Director Class 1
Average fund expense 0.15%

Fiduciary services: For the investment lineup selected, Morningstar Investment Management, LLC will help you shoulder
the burden of your fiduciary responsibility by acting as an ERISA 3(21) fiduciary. Along with offering your participants a
diversified lineup, Morningstar provides a customized investment policy statement, ongoing investment monitoring and
reporting through quarterly watch lists, and a rigorous investment selection process with methodology documents for your
reference and fiduciary files.2

YourPath
® Passive Portfolios: Combining passively managed mutual funds with the Lincoln Stable Value account,

YourPath delivers a suite of custom target date portfolios with three risk-based paths to help meet the needs of your
participants.

Participant education support

00On-site education days

Year 2+Year 1

Additional enrollment meetings may be requested at a per diem rate.

Loan administration (if applicable)
Loan initiation fee: $60

Annual loan maintenance fee: $30

1 Pricing quote is based on plan valuation data provided and Director class selected. If actual plan characteristics vary from the assumptions at the time

of plan establishment,the pricing will be adjusted accordingly. Plans with less than $10,000 average account balance may be subject to $25 per

participant fee. Plans with less than $150,000 may be subject to $25 per participant fee and $750 annual base fee.
2 Fees for fiduciary services are included in the pricing illustration above under Recordkeeping and servicing. See advisory services agreement for details.

TPA new sales reimbursement upfront payment of 0.15% is included in the pricing illustration above under recordkeeping and servicing.

Pricing quote is based on QDIA conversion to YourPath® portfolios.

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501
Date issued: August 25, 2020 1

43



YourPath ® target-date + risk CIT portfolios 
from leading fund companies
Lincoln makes available YourPath ® series of custom target-date + risk collective investment trust (CIT) portfolios 
that primarily consist of funds from leading fund families. Each portfolio also includes Lincoln Stable Value as 
part of the portfolio allocation to reduce market volatility. The target-date portfolios may be used for  
a plan’s Qualified Default Investment Alternative (QDIA).

YourPath ® portfolios provide a more personalized target-date investment for retirement plan participants. 
The selection of these portfolios allows plan sponsors to offer participants conservative, moderate and  
growth glide paths. 

Investment experience from leading fund companies

Ideal for QDIA
YourPath ® portfolios are also available as your plan’s Qualified Default Investment Alternative (QDIA). Based 
on the demographics of your plan participants — such as age and income levels — you can offer the appropriate 
portfolio for your plan’s QDIA.

Active management
These YourPath ® portfolios primarily consist of actively managed mutual funds by 
American Funds®. Each portfolio also includes Lincoln Stable Value to reduce  
market volatility.

Hybrid management — active and passive
These YourPath ® portfolios offer a hybrid of active and passive investment 
management. The portfolios primarily consist of actively managed mutual funds 
from American Century Investments® and index managed mutual funds by  
State Street Global Advisors. Each portfolio also includes Lincoln Stable Value  
to reduce market volatility.

Passive management
These YourPath ® portfolios primarily consist of iShares® index mutual funds  
from BlackRock®. Each portfolio also includes Lincoln Stable Value to reduce 
market volatility.

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501

Date issued: August 25, 20202
44



Sample glide paths for target-date + risk portfolios

Equity Fixed Income Stable Value

Conservative glide path

0

20

40

60
80

100

W
ei

gh
tin

g

Target Date

Moderate glide path

0

20

40

60
80

100

W
ei

gh
tin

g

Target Date

Growth glide path

0

20

40

60
80

100

W
ei

gh
tin

g

Target Date

What’s a glide path?
A glide path illustrates the asset allocation mix of the target-date portfolio over the years. The asset allocation  
of the portfolio becomes increasingly conservative (i.e., includes more fixed income assets and fewer equities) as 
the target date (which typically is when the employee plans to retire) grows closer. The glide path will continue to 
reduce the risk level beyond the target date, providing investment management throughout retirement.

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501
Date issued: August 25, 2020 3

45



Important investment information
Performance
The performance data quoted represents past performance;
past performance does not guarantee future results.
Investment returns and principal value will fluctuate so
your account balance, when redeemed, may be worth more
or less than your original cost.

Current performance may be lower or higher than the
performance data quoted. Instances of high double-digit
returns are highly unusual and cannot be sustained.
Investors should be aware that returns vary due to market
conditions.

When the separate account’s inception date is less than 10
years, hypothetical performance is based on the inception
date of the underlying fund, which predates the inclusion of
the underlying fund in the product. Fund data is provided
here by Morningstar, Inc.

To obtain the most current performance, please contact
800-510-4015 or go to www.LincolnFinancial.com.

Issuing company
This material is provided by Lincoln Financial Distributors, Inc., a
broker dealer, who is the wholesale distribution organization of
Lincoln Financial Group. Lincoln Financial Group is the marketing
name for Lincoln National Corporation and its affiliates (collectively
“Lincoln”). This material is intended for use with respect to an arm’s
length sale, purchase, loan, exchange, or other transaction related to
the investment of securities or other investment property between
Lincoln and an independent fiduciary of the plan who is responsible
for exercising independent judgment in evaluating the transaction.
For this purpose, an ‘independent fiduciary’ is any entity defined in
29 CFR § 2510.3–21(c)(1)(i)(A)-(E). Lincoln is not undertaking to
provide impartial investment advice, or to give advice in a fiduciary
capacity, in connection with furnishing or making available of such
information. Lincoln has financial interests that are served by the sale
of Lincoln programs, products and services.

Lincoln Director
SM, a group variable annuity contract, is issued on

variations of contract form 19476 and state variations and
amendment forms AR-450A and AR-451A by The Lincoln National
Life Insurance Company, Fort Wayne, IN, and distributed by Lincoln
Financial Distributors, Inc., Radnor, PA, a broker-dealer. The
Lincoln National Life Insurance Company does not solicit
business in the state of New York, nor is it authorized to do
so. Contractual obligations are subject to the claims-paying
ability of The Lincoln National Life Insurance Company.

Contracts sold in New York are issued on variations of contract form
19476NY and amendment forms AR-450A and AR-451A by Lincoln
Life & Annuity Company of New York, Syracuse, NY. Contractual
obligations are subject to the claims-paying ability of
Lincoln Life & Annuity Company of New York.

Products and features are subject to state availability. Limitations
and exclusions may apply.

Morningstar information
Morningstar Investment Management LLC’s investment lineups are
subject to change. The investment options within a lineup do involve
risk and will not always be profitable. Morningstar Investment
Management does not guarantee that negative returns can or will be
avoided in the lineups. An investment made in an investment option
may differ substantially from its historical performance and, as a
result, your plan participant may incur a loss. Past performance is no
guarantee of future results.

The Morningstar Insight Series is not an investment option. It is a
fund lineup chosen by Morningstar Investment Management LLC
from the investment options that are available in the Lincoln
Director

SM group variable annuity. Morningstar Investment
Management LLC is a registered investment adviser and subsidiary of
Morningstar, Inc. Neither Morningstar Investment Management nor
Morningstar is affiliated with the Lincoln Financial Group. The
Morningstar name and logo are registered marks of Morningstar, Inc.
Morningstar Investment Management LLC, 22 W. Washington Street,
Chicago, IL 60602.

Total fund expense
The performance shown reflects the deduction of the average
operating expense of the underlying mutual fund, as well as the
separate account charge associated with the Lincoln DirectorSM class
selected. All other contract fees, including the asset fee, have not
been deducted. If these fees had been deducted, this performance
would have been lower. Contact your plan administrator for fee
information specific to your company’s retirement plan.

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501

Date issued: August 25, 20204

46



Your Morningstar Extended Lineup

Total fund
expense

Since
incept.

Ten
years

Five
years

Three
years

One
year

YTD
Separate
Acct. (SA)

Investment nameAsset class/asset category

Annualized Returns as of June 30, 2020 Fees

U.S. Stock

Small Value
State Street Russell Small Cap® Value Index Non-Lending Series Fund Class
C1,24 SAAA -23.02 -17.07 -4.16 1.34 7.85 7.41 0.05

Small Growth
State Street Russell Small Cap® Growth Index Non-Lending Series Fund Class
C1,24 SAA9 -3.34 3.20 7.68 6.72 12.78 11.92 0.05

Mid-Cap Value Vanguard Mid-Cap Value Index Fund Admiral Shares1,24 SAB4 -18.56 -11.82 -0.02 3.61 10.46 6.84 0.07

Mid-Cap Growth Vanguard Mid-Cap Growth Index Fund Admiral Shares1,24 SAB3 4.40 11.51 12.86 10.12 14.27 9.50 0.07

Large Value
State Street Russell Large Cap Value® Index Non-Lending Series Fund Class
C24 SAA8 -16.09 -8.65 1.89 4.69 10.43 11.02 0.04

Large Blend Vanguard 500 Index Fund Admiral Class24 SACG -3.10 7.47 10.69 10.69 13.95 10.99 0.04

Large Blend American Funds Investment Company of America® Class R-6 SA6G -3.39 5.89 7.83 8.85 12.35 12.00 0.27

Large Growth
State Street Russell Large Cap Growth® Index Non-Lending Series Fund Class
C24 SAA7 9.84 23.30 18.93 15.84 17.18 16.86 0.04

International Stock

Diversified Emerging Mkts Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock Index Fund Admiral Shares2,24 SAAS -9.54 -2.92 2.12 2.16 3.14 5.99 0.14

World Large Stock Vanguard Total World Stock Index Admiral Shares3,24 SABP -6.52 1.89 5.97 6.49 9.39 9.75 0.10

Foreign Large Value Vanguard International Value Fund Investor Shares3 SAAY -15.19 -8.90 -0.77 0.69 4.85 8.05 0.37

Foreign Large Blend Vanguard Developed Markets Index Fund Admiral Shares3,24 SACH -10.76 -4.26 0.88 2.46 6.09 3.65 0.07

Foreign Large Growth Vanguard International Growth Fund Admiral Shares3 SAAX 12.37 24.55 14.18 11.90 11.27 10.87 0.32

Specialty

Real Estate Vanguard Real Estate Index Fund Admiral Shares10,24 SAB5 -13.88 -6.93 2.23 5.36 9.70 9.52 0.12

Commodities Broad Basket PIMCO CommodityRealReturn Strategy Fund Institutional Class5 SA9Y -19.80 -17.22 -5.48 -7.35 -4.82 1.17 1.46

Bond

World Bond-USD Hedged PIMCO International Bond Fund (U.S. Dollar-Hedged) Institutional Class SAA1 1.78 3.26 4.70 4.84 5.35 7.06 0.55

Ultrashort Bond Vanguard Ultra Short Term Bond Admiral15 SAKO 1.33 2.66 2.50 1.93 --- 1.82 0.10

Intermediate Core-Plus Bond Western Asset Core Plus Bond Fund Class IS SABX 4.20 8.14 5.61 5.48 5.31 6.17 0.42

Intermediate Core Bond Vanguard Total Bond Market Index Fund Admiral Shares15,24 SABN 6.34 8.96 5.34 4.31 3.77 5.99 0.05

Inflation-Protected Bond Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities Fund Admiral Shares15 SAAW 5.99 8.09 4.86 3.66 3.42 5.33 0.10

High Yield Bond Vanguard High-Yield Corporate Fund Admiral Shares14 SAAV -3.42 0.88 3.57 4.67 6.45 8.18 0.13

Balanced/Allocation

Allocation--50% to 70%
Equity

Vanguard LifeStrategy Moderate Growth Fund Investor Shares11,23 SAB2 -1.38 4.87 6.23 6.18 8.16 7.48 0.13

Allocation--30% to 50%
Equity

Vanguard LifeStrategy Conservative Growth Fund Investor Shares11,23 SAAZ 0.90 5.95 6.01 5.65 6.70 6.84 0.12

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501
Date issued: August 25, 2020 5

47



Your Morningstar Extended Lineup (continued)

Total fund
expense

Since
incept.

Ten
years

Five
years

Three
years

One
year

YTD
Separate
Acct. (SA)

Investment nameAsset class/asset category

Annualized Returns as of June 30, 2020 Fees

Balanced/Allocation (continued)

Allocation--15% to 30%
Equity

Vanguard LifeStrategy Income Fund Investor Shares23 SAEP 2.96 6.74 5.64 4.99 5.21 6.23 0.11

Allocation--70% to 85%
Equity

Vanguard LifeStrategy Growth Fund Investor Shares11,23 SAB1 -3.74 3.65 6.37 6.61 9.44 7.85 0.14

Cash/Stable Value

Stable Value Guaranteed Stable Value Account --- 1.00 2.05 2.03 2.02 2.15 5.42 0.10

Average fund expense 0.15%

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501

Date issued: August 25, 20206
48



Lincoln Director SM Universe of Funds

Total fund
expense

Since
incept.

Ten
years

Five
years

Three
years

One
year

YTD
Separate
Acct. (SA)

Investment nameAsset class/asset category

Annualized Returns as of June 30, 2020 Fees

U.S. Stock

Large Value JPMorgan Equity Income Fund Class R6 SA8J -13.94 -5.83 5.15 7.00 12.12 8.79 0.49

Large Value Invesco Growth and Income Fund Class R6 SA8A -19.84 -13.53 -1.39 2.87 9.20 9.14 0.39

Large Value Invesco Diversified Dividend Fund Class R6 SA7Y -14.87 -7.43 1.31 4.31 9.86 6.93 0.42

Large Value DFA U.S. Large Cap Value Portfolio Institutional Class22 SA7K -20.28 -12.44 -0.22 3.56 10.70 9.05 0.26

Large Blend American Funds Washington Mutual Investors Fund Class R-622 SA6L -8.45 0.24 8.09 9.20 12.87 11.72 0.27

Large Value American Century Value Fund R6 Class SA5P -18.80 -10.19 0.32 3.61 9.34 8.75 0.63

Large Blend Vanguard FTSE Social Index Admiral Shares22,24 SAE8 -1.24 11.20 12.66 11.62 14.85 9.00 0.14

Large Blend Vanguard 500 Index Fund Admiral Class24 SACG -3.10 7.47 10.69 10.69 13.95 10.99 0.04

Large Blend Vanguard Dividend Growth SAAR -6.42 1.24 10.04 10.24 13.15 8.55 0.27

Large Blend Invesco Oppenheimer Main Street Fund Class I SA9W -5.08 3.51 7.52 9.04 12.95 11.05 0.48

Large Blend MFS® Massachusetts Investors Trust Class R622 SA9L -4.77 4.10 9.76 9.86 13.06 9.19 0.38

Large Blend JPMorgan U.S. Equity Fund Class R622 SA8Y 1.62 13.13 12.19 11.02 14.39 9.65 0.44

Large Blend DFA U.S. Core Equity I Portfolio Institutional Class22 SA7J -7.59 1.75 7.52 8.21 12.88 8.20 0.17

Large Blend Columbia Contrarian Core Fund Institutional 3 Class SA7C -1.39 9.76 9.54 9.71 14.19 9.54 0.64

Large Blend ClearBridge Appreciation Fund Class IS22 SA6Z -5.66 3.95 10.16 9.86 12.78 10.37 0.57

Large Blend American Funds Investment Company of America® Class R-6 SA6G -3.39 5.89 7.83 8.85 12.35 12.00 0.27

Large Blend Neuberger Berman Sustainable Equity Fund Class R622 SA9T -6.28 3.76 6.59 7.75 11.55 9.02 0.59

Large Growth Vanguard Growth Index Admiral Shares24 SAE4 11.32 24.77 18.04 14.92 16.77 10.35 0.05

Large Growth
State Street Russell Large Cap Growth® Index Non-Lending Series Fund Class
C24 SAA7 9.84 23.30 18.93 15.84 17.18 16.86 0.04

Large Growth MFS® Growth Fund Class R622 SA9J 10.03 20.80 20.33 16.72 17.22 11.25 0.57

Large Growth JPMorgan Large Cap Growth Fund Class R6 SA8L 20.53 30.75 24.47 18.33 18.84 10.33 0.44

Large Growth Franklin Growth Series Class R622 SA7R 4.02 13.07 14.37 12.93 14.72 10.46 0.49

Large Growth ClearBridge Aggressive Growth Fund Class IS22 SA6Y -5.31 4.43 4.95 4.37 13.25 11.38 0.72

Large Growth American Funds The Growth Fund of America® Class R-6 SA6K 7.16 16.83 14.69 13.21 15.04 13.70 0.31

Large Growth American Funds AMCAP Fund® Class R-6 SA6A 2.04 11.15 12.57 10.52 14.35 11.57 0.34

Large Growth American Century Ultra® Fund R6 Class SA5N 15.04 28.64 21.29 16.96 17.81 12.29 0.62

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501
Date issued: August 25, 2020 7

49



Lincoln Director SMUniverse of Funds (continued)

Total fund
expense

Since
incept.

Ten
years

Five
years

Three
years

One
year

YTD
Separate
Acct. (SA)

Investment nameAsset class/asset category

Annualized Returns as of June 30, 2020 Fees

U.S. Stock (continued)

Small Growth MFS® New Discovery R61,22 SAKL 4.85 12.72 18.56 12.60 14.20 10.88 0.96

Small Growth Franklin Small Cap Growth R61 SAJM 5.56 12.48 15.84 9.92 15.13 8.46 0.65

Small Growth Carillon Eagle Small Cap Growth Fund Class R61 SAJS -2.07 2.12 6.94 6.68 12.67 10.05 0.65

Mid-Cap Value Wells Fargo Special Mid Cap Value Fund - Class R61 SABV -18.36 -9.44 1.06 4.29 11.37 8.10 0.72

Mid-Cap Value Victory Sycamore Established Value Fund Class R61 SABR -14.87 -7.95 2.81 6.26 11.34 11.14 0.58

Mid-Cap Value Vanguard Selected Value Fund Investor Shares1 SAB6 -21.93 -14.47 -3.54 1.17 8.85 7.50 0.33

Mid-Cap Value Vanguard Mid-Cap Value Index Fund Admiral Shares1,24 SAB4 -18.56 -11.82 -0.02 3.61 10.46 6.84 0.07

Mid-Cap Value Invesco American Value Fund Class R61 SA7X -19.66 -13.57 -1.75 -0.47 8.18 8.18 0.78

Mid-Cap Blend Wells Fargo Common Stock Fund - Class R61 SABT -14.14 -9.34 3.39 4.86 10.06 7.84 0.84

Mid-Cap Blend Vanguard Mid Cap Index Admiral Shares1,24 SAE2 -7.18 -0.20 6.45 6.99 12.47 9.40 0.05

Mid-Cap Blend State Street S&P Mid Cap® Index Non-Lending Series Fund Class C1,24 SACD -12.82 -6.77 2.34 5.17 11.29 10.26 0.05

Mid-Cap Blend Lord Abbett Value Opportunities Fund Class R61,22 SACA -9.07 -1.59 1.93 3.71 9.58 8.94 0.83

Mid-Cap Blend ClearBridge Mid Cap Fund Class IS1,22 SA7A -11.46 -3.36 3.18 4.37 11.27 9.21 0.75

Mid-Cap Growth Vanguard Mid-Cap Growth Index Fund Admiral Shares1,24 SAB3 4.40 11.51 12.86 10.12 14.27 9.50 0.07

Mid-Cap Growth Neuberger Berman Mid Cap Growth Fund Class R61 SA9R 6.58 12.46 14.67 10.34 14.20 11.96 0.61

Mid-Cap Growth MFS® Mid Cap Growth Fund Class R61,22 SAES 5.90 12.50 17.73 13.93 15.83 8.78 0.74

Mid-Cap Growth Janus Henderson Enterprise Fund Class N1 SA8D -6.37 0.30 11.76 11.76 15.21 11.06 0.66

Mid-Cap Growth Eaton Vance Atlanta Capital SMID-Cap Fund Class R61,22 SA7P -11.09 -5.32 8.55 9.64 14.40 10.66 0.82

Mid-Cap Growth ClearBridge Mid Cap Growth Fund Class IS1,22 SA7B 7.86 11.12 14.19 10.00 --- 14.24 0.75

Mid-Cap Growth Baron Growth R61 SAJP -0.96 6.86 13.78 11.14 14.07 13.06 1.04

Mid-Cap Growth American Century Heritage Fund R6 Class1 SA3P 5.49 11.73 14.42 10.44 13.98 11.63 0.66

Large Value Vanguard Windsor™ II Fund Admiral™ Shares SABQ -9.91 0.06 4.88 6.26 11.22 10.28 0.26

Large Value Vanguard Value Index Admiral Shares24 SAE5 -15.43 -7.42 3.88 6.44 11.22 8.92 0.05

Large Value Vanguard Equity-Income Fund Admiral Shares SAAT -13.31 -5.45 4.44 7.15 12.02 9.73 0.18

Large Value The Hartford Dividend and Growth Fund Class R622 SAAP -10.81 -0.84 6.23 7.77 11.67 8.95 0.66

Large Value
State Street Russell Large Cap Value® Index Non-Lending Series Fund Class
C24 SAA8 -16.09 -8.65 1.89 4.69 10.43 11.02 0.04

Large Value MFS® Value Fund Class R622 SA9P -12.81 -4.28 3.40 6.27 11.21 9.59 0.47

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501

Date issued: August 25, 20208
50



Lincoln Director SMUniverse of Funds (continued)

Total fund
expense

Since
incept.

Ten
years

Five
years

Three
years

One
year

YTD
Separate
Acct. (SA)

Investment nameAsset class/asset category

Annualized Returns as of June 30, 2020 Fees

U.S. Stock (continued)

Small Value Vanguard Small Cap Value Index Admiral1,24 SAE7 -21.34 -16.48 -2.56 2.00 9.35 7.14 0.07

Small Value
State Street Russell Small Cap® Value Index Non-Lending Series Fund Class
C1,24 SAAA -23.02 -17.07 -4.16 1.34 7.85 7.41 0.05

Small Value JPMorgan Small Cap Value Fund Class R61,22 SA8M -22.02 -16.33 -5.28 -0.10 7.64 9.15 0.76

Small Value Federated Hermes Clover Small Value Fund Class R61 SACE -19.98 -15.40 -4.68 0.00 6.79 8.78 0.95

Small Value DFA U.S. Small Cap Value Portfolio Institutional Class1,22 SA7M -25.45 -20.34 -6.52 -1.56 7.70 9.61 0.51

Small Value Delaware Small Cap Value Fund R61 SADX -25.07 -18.12 -4.59 1.52 8.25 9.92 0.72

Small Blend Vanguard Strategic Small-Cap Equity Fund Investor Shares1 SAB8 -17.60 -10.46 -1.52 2.00 10.58 5.41 0.26

Small Blend Vanguard Small-Cap Index Fund Admiral Shares1,24 SAB7 -11.42 -5.60 3.99 5.40 11.59 10.35 0.05

Small Blend DFA U.S. Small Cap Portfolio Institutional Class1,22 SA7L -16.89 -11.71 -1.29 2.33 10.09 9.30 0.35

Small Blend Delaware Small Cap Core Fund R61 SADW -11.61 -5.95 2.45 5.13 12.07 9.76 0.72

Small Growth Wells Fargo Small Company Growth Fund - Class R61 SABU -6.65 -0.80 7.90 5.22 13.46 8.99 0.86

Small Growth Vanguard Small Cap Growth Index Admiral1,24 SAE6 0.73 7.78 11.80 9.26 13.91 8.92 0.07

Small Growth
State Street Russell Small Cap® Growth Index Non-Lending Series Fund Class
C1,24 SAA9 -3.34 3.20 7.68 6.72 12.78 11.92 0.05

Small Growth PGIM Jennison Small Company Fund Class R61 SAA6 -13.59 -7.92 2.00 3.87 10.12 9.37 0.69

International Stock

Foreign Large Value AllianzGI NFJ International Value Fund Class R63 SA3L -11.91 -6.28 -0.13 -2.32 2.46 7.66 0.91

Foreign Large Blend USAA International Fund Class R63 SAJL -13.70 -8.28 0.10 2.32 6.29 6.76 0.85

Foreign Large Blend Vanguard Developed Markets Index Fund Admiral Shares3,24 SACH -10.76 -4.26 0.88 2.46 6.09 3.65 0.07

Foreign Large Blend The Hartford International Opportunities Fund Class R63,22 SAAQ -5.63 0.31 1.84 3.09 6.69 5.43 0.71

Foreign Large Blend MFS® Research International Fund Class R63,22 SA9N -6.32 2.39 4.52 3.86 6.69 6.42 0.74

Foreign Large Blend JPMorgan International Research Enhanced Equity Fund Class R63,22,25 SAJQ -11.91 -5.85 -0.27 1.65 5.27 5.52 0.25

Foreign Large Blend Ivy International Core Equity Fund Class N3 SA8C -10.59 -4.98 -1.82 0.39 5.66 4.56 0.79

Foreign Large Blend American Funds International Growth and Income Fund Class R-63 SA6F -14.08 -5.20 1.23 1.91 5.84 5.81 0.55

Foreign Large Growth American Funds EuroPacific Growth Fund® Class R-63 SA6E -4.77 3.17 4.76 4.90 7.48 10.40 0.46

Foreign Large Growth Vanguard International Growth Fund Admiral Shares3 SAAX 12.37 24.55 14.18 11.90 11.27 10.87 0.32

Foreign Large Growth Invesco Oppenheimer International Growth Fund Class I3 SA9V -3.39 5.58 3.42 4.03 7.92 7.65 0.69

Foreign Large Growth MFS® Institutional International Equity Fund3,22 SA9K -8.11 -0.73 4.58 4.77 7.87 7.50 0.70

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501
Date issued: August 25, 2020 9

51



Lincoln Director SMUniverse of Funds (continued)

Total fund
expense

Since
incept.

Ten
years

Five
years

Three
years

One
year

YTD
Separate
Acct. (SA)

Investment nameAsset class/asset category

Annualized Returns as of June 30, 2020 Fees

International Stock (continued)

World Large Stock Vanguard Global Capital Cycles Fund Investor Shares3 SADD -7.96 -2.22 -7.62 -1.02 -6.14 3.37 0.38

Pacific/Asia ex-Japan Stk DFA Asia Pacific Small Company Portfolio Institutional Class3,22 SACZ -12.26 -10.03 -2.08 1.74 4.05 6.99 0.54

China Region Templeton China World Fund Class R63 SADE 7.22 14.34 9.50 6.40 6.09 7.74 1.42

Japan Stock DFA Japanese Small Company Portfolio Institutional Class3,22 SADB -11.47 -1.34 -0.57 4.53 7.35 5.19 0.52

Europe Stock Ivy European Opportunities Class N3 SAD5 --- --- --- --- --- --- ---

Europe Stock DFA Continental Small Company Portfolio Institutional Class3,22 SAD4 -13.95 -6.44 -1.52 4.68 8.33 8.80 0.53

Diversified Emerging Mkts Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock Index Fund Admiral Shares2,24 SAAS -9.54 -2.92 2.12 2.16 3.14 5.99 0.14

Diversified Emerging Mkts Invesco Oppenheimer Developing Markets Fund Class I2 SACB -8.71 -1.69 4.52 4.78 5.54 11.16 0.83

Diversified Emerging Mkts JPMorgan Emerging Markets Equity R62,22 SANX -2.91 5.72 8.05 8.28 5.72 5.86 0.79

Diversified Emerging Mkts DFA Emerging Markets Portfolio Institutional Class2,22 SA7D -12.79 -7.26 -0.10 2.14 3.11 6.17 0.43

Diversified Emerging Mkts American Funds New World Fund® Class R-62 SA6J -2.98 5.03 7.42 6.85 6.94 7.98 0.60

World Large Stock Vanguard Total World Stock Index Admiral Shares3,24 SABP -6.52 1.89 5.97 6.49 9.39 9.75 0.10

World Large Stock Vanguard Global Equity Fund Investor Shares3 SAAU -4.12 4.64 7.75 8.01 10.79 8.69 0.48

World Large Stock Invesco Oppenheimer Global Fund Class I3 SA9U -1.68 6.70 8.67 7.95 11.38 11.29 0.67

World Large Stock MFS® Global Equity Fund Class R63,22 SA9G -8.21 -0.92 5.20 6.76 10.65 8.58 0.82

World Large Stock Franklin Mutual Global Discovery Fund Class R63 SA7T -21.62 -14.98 -3.45 0.43 5.95 9.99 0.91

World Large Stock DFA Global Equity Portfolio Institutional Class3,23 SA7E -10.17 -1.92 4.05 5.52 9.79 7.41 0.28

World Large Stock American Funds New Perspective Fund® Class R-63 SA6H 1.33 11.14 11.30 10.52 12.37 12.22 0.42

World Large Stock American Funds Capital World Growth and Income Fund® Class R-63 SA6D -5.70 2.55 5.66 6.31 9.59 10.16 0.42

Foreign Small/Mid Value DFA International Small Cap Value Portfolio Institutional Class4,22 SADH -20.84 -11.98 -6.38 -0.84 5.78 6.12 0.64

Foreign Small/Mid Blend DFA International Small Company Portfolio Institutional Class4,22,23 SAD1 -15.56 -6.62 -1.84 2.44 6.92 6.11 0.52

Foreign Small/Mid Growth Invesco Oppenheimer International Small-Mid Company Fund Class I4 SACK -1.82 3.29 8.17 9.73 14.41 12.49 0.94

Foreign Small/Mid Growth MFS® International New Discovery Fund Class R64,22 SAC3 -10.43 -2.97 3.50 5.04 8.62 10.35 0.93

Foreign Small/Mid Growth DFA International Small Cap Growth Portfolio4,22 SACJ -10.19 -2.05 1.42 4.73 --- 7.34 0.55

Foreign Large Value Vanguard International Value Fund Investor Shares3 SAAY -15.19 -8.90 -0.77 0.69 4.85 8.05 0.37

Foreign Large Value Templeton Foreign Fund Class R63,22 SACF -18.65 -13.96 -6.07 -1.66 3.59 9.00 0.70

Foreign Large Value DFA International Value Portfolio Institutional Class3,22 SA7G -21.49 -17.49 -5.07 -2.10 3.09 4.96 0.39

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501

Date issued: August 25, 202010
52



Lincoln Director SMUniverse of Funds (continued)

Total fund
expense

Since
incept.

Ten
years

Five
years

Three
years

One
year

YTD
Separate
Acct. (SA)

Investment nameAsset class/asset category

Annualized Returns as of June 30, 2020 Fees

Specialty

Multialternative MFS® Global Alternative Strategy Fund Class R66,22 SAD9 -1.08 2.80 3.71 1.97 4.10 2.69 1.01

Multialternative Janus Henderson Diversified Alternatives Fund Class N6 SAD8 --- --- --- --- --- --- ---

Multialternative Goldman Sachs Absolute Return Tracker Fund Class R66 SAD7 -5.76 -2.74 1.93 2.13 2.82 1.32 0.70

Bear Market PIMCO StocksPLUS® Short Fund Institutional Class SADR -5.54 -13.30 -10.12 -9.55 -11.65 -5.04 0.77

Utilities Vanguard Utilities Index Fund Admiral Shares7,24 SACY -12.03 -3.95 5.98 10.08 11.31 9.32 0.10

Utilities MFS® Utilities Fund Class R67,22 SACX -9.35 -2.06 6.28 5.01 9.83 10.52 0.67

Utilities Franklin Utilities Fund Class R67 SACW -11.87 -4.39 5.77 9.12 11.25 9.72 0.50

Technology Vanguard Information Technology Index Fund Admiral Shares7,24 SAD3 14.48 33.83 27.05 22.96 20.27 11.92 0.10

Technology Ivy Science and Technology Fund Class N7 SAD2 5.14 18.65 19.85 13.89 16.39 13.31 0.82

Natural Resources Ivy Natural Resources Fund Class N7 SADK -22.70 -22.81 -9.19 -8.17 -3.70 3.71 0.93

Health Vanguard Health Care Fund Admiral Shares7 SAC6 3.43 19.02 9.35 6.79 15.55 16.09 0.27

Equity Energy Vanguard Energy Index Fund Admiral Shares7,24 SACN -36.52 -38.05 -14.16 -10.92 -1.07 2.22 0.10

Equity Energy Vanguard Energy Fund Admiral Shares7 SACP -31.54 -31.59 -9.67 -6.55 -0.60 8.62 0.24

Equity Energy Ivy Energy Fund Class N7 SAC2 -48.54 -51.17 -25.97 -20.30 -7.31 -5.39 0.94

Consumer Defensive Vanguard Consumer Staples Index Fund Class Admiral Shares7,24 SADG -6.03 3.18 4.65 6.63 11.74 9.24 0.10

Consumer Cyclical Vanguard Consumer Discretionary Index Fund Admiral Shares7,24 SADF 5.97 12.79 13.47 11.59 17.25 10.08 0.10

Real Estate Vanguard Real Estate Index Fund Admiral Shares10,24 SAB5 -13.88 -6.93 2.23 5.36 9.70 9.52 0.12

Real Estate Neuberger Berman Real Estate Fund Class R610 SA9S -8.31 -0.29 6.66 8.18 10.29 10.53 0.76

Real Estate Invesco Real Estate Fund Class R610 SA8B -14.36 -8.03 2.76 5.56 9.14 9.39 0.79

Real Estate American Century Real Estate Fund R6 Class10 SA3Z -17.15 -8.91 2.37 4.86 9.71 9.75 0.81

Global Real Estate Invesco Global Real Estate Fund Class R69 SADS -20.66 -15.64 -0.71 1.38 6.44 4.74 0.82

Global Real Estate DFA Global Real Estate Securities9 SA7F -17.39 -10.98 1.75 4.05 8.71 4.49 0.24

Global Real Estate American Century Global Real Estate Fund R6 Class9 SA3N -14.46 -6.12 4.28 4.22 --- 5.69 0.76

Commodities Broad Basket PIMCO CommodityRealReturn Strategy Fund Institutional Class5 SA9Y -19.80 -17.22 -5.48 -7.35 -4.82 1.17 1.46

Commodities Broad Basket Invesco Balanced Risk Commodity Strategy R65 SAE3 -15.66 -14.09 -4.57 -4.85 --- -5.53 1.11

Commodities Broad Basket Goldman Sachs Commodity Strategy Fund Class R65 SA7W -35.55 -33.35 -9.26 -12.46 -8.44 -9.26 0.58

Commodities Broad Basket DWS Enhanced Commodity Strategy Fund Class R65,22 SAJR -14.95 -14.58 -5.72 -6.05 -3.19 -1.83 0.89

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501
Date issued: August 25, 2020 11

53



Lincoln Director SMUniverse of Funds (continued)

Total fund
expense

Since
incept.

Ten
years

Five
years

Three
years

One
year

YTD
Separate
Acct. (SA)

Investment nameAsset class/asset category

Annualized Returns as of June 30, 2020 Fees

Bond

Intermediate Core Bond Vanguard Total Bond Market Index Fund Admiral Shares15,24 SABN 6.34 8.96 5.34 4.31 3.77 5.99 0.05

Intermediate Core-Plus Bond PGIM Total Return Bond R6 SAQP 3.71 6.87 5.49 5.08 5.31 6.13 0.39

Intermediate Core Bond JPMorgan Core Bond Fund Class R615,22 SA8G 5.95 8.45 5.36 4.35 4.04 6.12 0.35

Intermediate Core-Plus Bond Janus Henderson Flexible Bond Fund Class N SA8E 7.06 10.49 5.57 4.35 4.42 6.66 0.45

Intermediate Core-Plus Bond Franklin Total Return Fund Class R6 SA7V 3.03 5.16 4.01 3.40 4.09 5.12 0.51

Intermediate Core-Plus Bond BlackRock Total Return Fund Class K SA6X 5.12 7.94 5.13 4.36 4.81 4.82 0.44

Intermediate Core Bond Baird Aggregate Bond Institutional Class15 SAEJ 6.36 9.25 5.60 4.69 4.68 5.53 0.30

Intermediate Core Bond American Century Diversified Bond Fund R6 Class15 SA3M 6.03 8.37 4.79 4.07 3.81 5.26 0.35

Intermediate Government PIMCO GNMA and Government Securities Fund Institutional Class19 SAC4 4.35 6.61 4.20 3.30 3.30 5.37 0.71

Intermediate Government MFS® Government Securities Fund Class R619,22 SACM 6.30 7.93 4.68 3.42 2.85 5.96 0.50

Intermediate Government Franklin U.S. Government Securities Fund Class R619 SACL 3.34 5.14 3.40 2.47 2.52 6.05 0.51

Inflation-Protected Bond Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities Fund Admiral Shares15 SAAW 5.99 8.09 4.86 3.66 3.42 5.33 0.10

Inflation-Protected Bond PIMCO Real Return Fund Institutional Class15 SAA4 6.19 8.38 4.94 3.73 3.49 5.81 0.98

Inflation-Protected Bond BlackRock Inflation Protected Bond Fund Class K15 SA6N 6.09 8.44 4.84 3.44 3.22 4.51 0.60

Long Government PIMCO Extended Duration Fund Institutional Class19 SADC 29.16 34.70 15.46 12.47 10.49 10.78 1.17

High Yield Bond Western Asset High Yield Fund Class IS14 SABY -4.99 -1.31 2.83 3.55 5.82 6.55 0.66

High Yield Bond Vanguard High-Yield Corporate Fund Admiral Shares14 SAAV -3.42 0.88 3.57 4.67 6.45 8.18 0.13

High Yield Bond PIMCO High Yield Fund Institutional Class14 SAA2 -3.94 -0.05 3.20 4.52 6.12 7.34 0.59

High Yield Bond PGIM High Yield R614 SAQQ -5.25 -0.75 3.74 5.13 6.68 7.62 0.40

High Yield Bond Neuberger Berman High Income Bond Fund Class R614,22 SA9Q -4.70 -0.60 2.63 3.67 5.72 7.10 0.60

High Yield Bond JPMorgan High Yield Fund Class R614,22 SA8K -6.62 -3.20 1.94 3.24 5.61 6.12 0.60

High Yield Bond Janus Henderson High-Yield Fund Class N14 SA8F -5.99 -1.59 2.69 3.95 6.07 6.98 0.65

High Yield Bond Eaton Vance Income Fund of Boston Class R614,22 SA7Q -4.63 -0.99 2.51 3.86 6.00 8.30 0.66

High Yield Bond BlackRock High Yield Bond Portfolio Class K14 SA6M -5.14 -0.49 3.27 4.33 6.75 7.03 0.51

High Yield Bond AB High Income Fund Class Z14 SA3J -9.03 -4.92 0.17 3.10 5.79 9.32 0.54

Emerging Markets Bond Lord Abbett Emerging Markets Bond Fund Class R68,22 SADA -3.67 -0.23 2.88 2.98 1.62 4.40 0.75

Miscellaneous Region DFA United Kingdom Small Company Portfolio Institutional Class22 SADQ -28.83 -15.21 -4.51 -3.46 7.41 9.31 0.59

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501

Date issued: August 25, 202012
54



Lincoln Director SMUniverse of Funds (continued)

Total fund
expense

Since
incept.

Ten
years

Five
years

Three
years

One
year

YTD
Separate
Acct. (SA)

Investment nameAsset class/asset category

Annualized Returns as of June 30, 2020 Fees

Bond (continued)

Emerging Markets Bond Goldman Sachs Emerging Market Debt Fund Class R68 SAC1 -3.16 -1.59 1.51 4.21 5.45 7.79 0.84

Emerging Markets Bond American Century Emerging Markets Debt Fund R6 Class8 SACQ -2.07 1.64 3.26 4.56 --- 4.17 0.72

Nontraditional Bond Templeton Global Bond Fund Class R615,22 SAAN -4.27 -5.96 -0.79 0.70 2.88 6.78 0.56

World Bond-USD Hedged PIMCO International Bond Fund (U.S. Dollar-Hedged) Institutional Class SAA1 1.78 3.26 4.70 4.84 5.35 7.06 0.55

World Bond PGIM Global Total Return R616 SAQR 0.54 3.72 5.20 5.49 5.42 6.87 0.56

World Bond Loomis Sayles Global Bond Fund Class N16 SA9C 4.17 5.12 3.90 3.81 3.30 6.36 0.65

World Bond BrandywineGLOBAL - Global Opportunities Bond Fund Class IS16,22 SA8Z -1.78 0.55 1.53 2.82 4.15 4.78 0.58

World Bond-USD Hedged DFA Two Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio Institutional Class SA7H 0.71 1.82 1.90 1.45 1.10 2.99 0.17

World Bond-USD Hedged AB Global Bond Fund Class Z SA3H 1.96 3.70 3.59 4.00 3.94 6.92 0.50

Ultrashort Bond Vanguard Ultra Short Term Bond Admiral15 SAKO 1.33 2.66 2.50 1.93 --- 1.82 0.10

Ultrashort Bond PIMCO Short-Term Fund Institutional Class15 SAA5 1.70 2.87 2.35 2.22 1.89 4.19 0.50

Ultrashort Bond Federated Hermes Government Ultrashort Duration Fund15 SAC7 1.13 2.08 1.90 1.28 0.84 2.39 0.24

Ultrashort Bond Baird Ultra Short Bond Institutional15 SAKN 1.18 2.51 2.31 1.79 --- 1.63 0.15

Short Government Goldman Sachs Short Duration Government Fund Class R617 SADP 3.11 3.97 2.52 1.79 1.32 4.50 0.47

Short Government DFA Short-Term Government Portfolio Institutional Class17 SADN 0.39 1.33 1.28 1.11 1.33 4.70 0.19

Multisector Bond PIMCO Income Fund Institutional Class18 SAA3 -1.68 0.69 3.32 4.69 7.51 7.78 1.05

Multisector Bond PIMCO Diversified Income Fund Institutional Class18 SA9Z -0.88 1.98 4.46 5.53 5.90 6.84 0.79

Multisector Bond Loomis Sayles Bond Fund Class N18 SA9A -5.77 -2.63 1.26 2.61 4.90 8.36 0.59

Multisector Bond Franklin Strategic Income Fund Class R618 SA7U -2.83 -1.44 1.86 2.46 3.99 6.37 0.51

Intermediate Core-Plus Bond Western Asset Core Plus Bond Fund Class IS SABX 4.20 8.14 5.61 5.48 5.31 6.17 0.42

Intermediate Core-Plus Bond Lord Abbett Total Return Fund Class R622 SAC9 3.35 5.47 4.20 3.81 4.17 5.44 0.37

Intermediate Core-Plus Bond Loomis Sayles Investment Grade Bond Fund Class N SA9D 5.62 8.37 5.38 4.84 5.15 7.11 0.46

Intermediate Core-Plus Bond Loomis Sayles Core Plus Bond Fund Class N SA9B 6.90 9.39 5.78 4.93 5.30 7.00 0.39

Intermediate Core-Plus Bond JPMorgan Core Plus Bond Fund Class R622 SA8H 4.71 6.95 5.01 4.35 4.73 5.59 0.40

Intermediate Core-Plus Bond Baird Core Plus Bond Institutional Class SAEK 5.80 8.83 5.60 4.88 4.86 5.96 0.30

Multisector Bond Loomis Sayles Strategic Income Class N18 SAE1 -6.56 -2.95 0.88 2.19 5.19 7.49 0.63

Intermediate Core Bond Western Asset Core Bond Fund Class IS15 SABW 5.42 8.55 5.71 5.04 4.94 6.76 0.42

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501
Date issued: August 25, 2020 13

55



Lincoln Director SMUniverse of Funds (continued)

Total fund
expense

Since
incept.

Ten
years

Five
years

Three
years

One
year

YTD
Separate
Acct. (SA)

Investment nameAsset class/asset category

Annualized Returns as of June 30, 2020 Fees

Bond (continued)

Bank Loan Invesco Floating Rate Fund Class R620 SADM -5.69 -3.78 1.34 2.38 4.05 3.84 0.75

Nontraditional Bond PIMCO Dynamic Bond Fund Institutional Class15 SAC5 0.87 2.08 3.25 3.34 2.89 3.97 1.01

Nontraditional Bond BlackRock Emerging Markets Flexible Dynamic Bond Portfolio Class K15 SACR 5.49 2.09 1.59 4.51 4.29 4.64 0.63

Nontraditional Bond AB Unconstrained Bond Fund Class Z15 SACV --- --- --- --- --- --- ---

Emerging Markets Bond MFS® Emerging Markets Debt Fund Class R68,22 SACU -1.18 2.00 3.59 4.63 5.45 9.19 0.72

Emerging Markets Bond Lord Abbett Emerging Markets Corporate Debt Fund Class R68,22 SACT -2.36 1.72 3.64 4.75 --- 5.23 0.68

Balanced/Allocation

Target-Date 2025 American Century One Choice® 2025 Portfolio R6 Class13,23 SA3R -0.91 4.48 5.63 5.45 7.92 6.57 0.44

Target-Date 2020 American Century One Choice® 2020 Portfolio R6 Class13,23 SA3Q -0.46 4.51 5.43 5.21 7.47 5.42 0.42

Allocation--15% to 30%
Equity

Vanguard LifeStrategy Income Fund Investor Shares23 SAEP 2.96 6.74 5.64 4.99 5.21 6.23 0.11

Allocation--70% to 85%
Equity

Vanguard LifeStrategy Growth Fund Investor Shares11,23 SAB1 -3.74 3.65 6.37 6.61 9.44 7.85 0.14

Allocation--50% to 70%
Equity

Vanguard LifeStrategy Moderate Growth Fund Investor Shares11,23 SAB2 -1.38 4.87 6.23 6.18 8.16 7.48 0.13

Allocation--30% to 50%
Equity

Vanguard LifeStrategy Conservative Growth Fund Investor Shares11,23 SAAZ 0.90 5.95 6.01 5.65 6.70 6.84 0.12

Allocation--70% to 85%
Equity

BlackRock 80/20 Target Allocation Fund Class K11,23 SAED -1.49 6.29 7.34 6.42 10.40 6.30 0.34

Allocation--50% to 70%
Equity

BlackRock 60/40 Target Allocation Fund Class K11,23 SAEA 0.15 6.93 7.02 5.92 9.20 5.87 0.32

Allocation--30% to 50%
Equity

BlackRock 40/60 Target Allocation Fund Class K11,23 SAEB 2.07 7.55 6.59 5.56 8.45 6.02 0.32

Allocation--15% to 30%
Equity

BlackRock 20/80 Target Allocation Fund Class K23 SAEC 2.37 6.26 5.38 4.44 6.95 5.48 0.30

Tactical Allocation PIMCO All Asset Fund Institutional Class23 SA9X -5.72 -2.23 2.30 3.49 4.42 6.28 1.12

Allocation--50% to 70%
Equity

MFS® Moderate Allocation Fund Class I11,23 SA9M -1.26 4.77 7.12 6.63 8.40 7.02 0.71

Allocation--70% to 85%
Equity

MFS® Growth Allocation Fund Class I11,23 SA9H -3.86 3.24 7.51 7.32 9.76 7.70 0.76

Allocation--30% to 50%
Equity

MFS® Conservative Allocation Fund Class I11,23 SA9F 0.60 5.43 6.26 5.70 6.78 6.07 0.66

Allocation--85%+ Equity MFS® Aggressive Growth Allocation Fund Class I23 SA9E -5.36 2.55 8.02 7.97 10.91 7.96 0.81

World Allocation American Funds Global Balanced Fund Class R-612 SAC8 -2.65 3.04 4.54 4.92 --- 6.03 0.49

World Allocation American Funds Capital Income Builder® Class R-612 SA6C -7.40 -1.28 2.47 3.94 7.24 8.74 0.27

Allocation--50% to 70%
Equity

Invesco Equity and Income Fund Class R611 SA7Z -8.79 -3.11 2.06 4.33 8.53 9.86 0.39

Allocation--50% to 70%
Equity

American Funds American Balanced Fund® Class R-611 SA6B -0.93 6.62 7.81 8.15 10.69 10.55 0.26

Convertibles Lord Abbett Convertible Fund Class R621,22 SADJ 17.26 25.71 14.80 11.02 10.98 8.14 0.83

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501

Date issued: August 25, 202014
56



Lincoln Director SMUniverse of Funds (continued)

Total fund
expense

Since
incept.

Ten
years

Five
years

Three
years

One
year

YTD
Separate
Acct. (SA)

Investment nameAsset class/asset category

Annualized Returns as of June 30, 2020 Fees

Balanced/Allocation (continued)

Target-Date 2055 BlackRock LifePath® Index 2055 Fund Class K13,23 SA6W -7.16 1.22 6.16 6.82 --- 7.65 0.09

Target-Date 2050 BlackRock LifePath® Index 2050 Fund Class K13,23 SA6V -7.10 1.23 6.15 6.80 --- 7.52 0.09

Target-Date 2045 BlackRock LifePath® Index 2045 Fund Class K13,23 SA6U -6.68 1.52 6.22 6.81 --- 7.41 0.09

Target-Date 2040 BlackRock LifePath® Index 2040 Fund Class K13,23 SA6T -5.69 2.20 6.24 6.71 --- 7.24 0.09

Target-Date 2035 BlackRock LifePath® Index 2035 Fund Class K13,23 SA6S -4.10 3.24 6.31 6.57 --- 7.01 0.09

Target-Date 2030 BlackRock LifePath® Index 2030 Fund Class K13,23 SA6R -2.50 4.23 6.31 6.36 --- 6.74 0.09

Target-Date 2025 BlackRock LifePath® Index 2025 Fund Class K13,23 SA6Q -0.76 5.29 6.29 6.15 --- 6.44 0.09

Target-Date 2060+ American Funds 2065 Target Date Retirement Fund® Class R-623 SANY --- --- --- --- --- 21.00 0.41

Target-Date 2060+ American Funds 2060 Target Date Retirement Fund® Class R-623 SADV -1.76 6.66 8.59 8.45 --- 8.20 0.41

Target-Date 2055 American Funds 2055 Target Date Retirement Fund® Class R-613,23 SA5Z -1.76 6.73 8.62 8.47 11.24 10.30 0.40

Target-Date 2050 American Funds 2050 Target Date Retirement Fund® Class R-613,23 SA5Y -1.78 6.67 8.63 8.47 11.24 7.14 0.39

Target-Date 2045 American Funds 2045 Target Date Retirement Fund® Class R-613,23 SA5X -1.75 6.56 8.50 8.37 11.19 7.11 0.38

Target-Date 2040 American Funds 2040 Target Date Retirement Fund® Class R-613,23 SA5W -1.72 6.53 8.38 8.24 11.11 7.06 0.38

Target-Date 2035 American Funds 2035 Target Date Retirement Fund® Class R-613,23 SA5V -1.20 6.70 8.23 8.07 10.95 6.95 0.37

Target-Date 2030 American Funds 2030 Target Date Retirement Fund® Class R-613,23 SA5U -0.46 6.31 7.52 7.41 10.53 6.67 0.35

Target-Date 2025 American Funds 2025 Target Date Retirement Fund® Class R-613,23 SA5T 0.57 6.71 7.04 6.89 9.83 6.19 0.33

Target-Date 2020 American Funds 2020 Target Date Retirement Fund® Class R-613,23 SA5S 0.08 5.35 6.05 6.11 8.62 5.52 0.31

Target-Date 2015 American Funds 2015 Target Date Retirement Fund® Class R-613,23 SA5R -0.42 4.66 5.45 5.63 7.79 5.21 0.31

Target-Date 2000-2010 American Funds 2010 Target Date Retirement Fund® Class R-613,23 SA5Q -0.09 4.58 5.17 5.39 7.22 4.95 0.31

Target-Date Retirement American Century One Choice® In Retirement Portfolio R6 Class13,23 SA3Y -0.47 4.44 5.29 5.09 6.96 5.74 0.42

Target-Date 2060+ American Century One Choice® 2060 Portfolio R6 Class23 SADU -3.17 4.59 7.01 --- --- 8.96 0.56

Target-Date 2055 American Century One Choice® 2055 Portfolio R6 Class13,23 SA3X -2.78 4.80 7.00 6.82 --- 8.29 0.56

Target-Date 2050 American Century One Choice® 2050 Portfolio R6 Class13,23 SA3W -2.63 4.84 6.96 6.75 10.13 6.48 0.56

Target-Date 2045 American Century One Choice® 2045 Portfolio R6 Class13,23 SA3V -2.23 4.86 6.78 6.55 9.90 7.63 0.54

Target-Date 2040 American Century One Choice® 2040 Portfolio R6 Class13,23 SA3U -1.87 4.71 6.49 6.23 9.50 6.31 0.51

Target-Date 2035 American Century One Choice® 2035 Portfolio R6 Class13,23 SA3T -1.43 4.72 6.19 5.95 8.95 7.14 0.49

Target-Date 2030 American Century One Choice® 2030 Portfolio R6 Class13,23 SA3S -1.13 4.56 5.89 5.70 8.39 5.74 0.46

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501
Date issued: August 25, 2020 15

57



Lincoln Director SMUniverse of Funds (continued)

Total fund
expense

Since
incept.

Ten
years

Five
years

Three
years

One
year

YTD
Separate
Acct. (SA)

Investment nameAsset class/asset category

Annualized Returns as of June 30, 2020 Fees

Balanced/Allocation (continued)

Target-Date 2015 T. Rowe Price Retirement I 2015 Fund I Class13,23 SAAC -0.96 4.40 5.72 --- --- 7.52 0.40

Target-Date 2000-2010 T. Rowe Price Retirement I 2010 Fund I Class13,23 SAAB -0.57 4.57 5.47 --- --- 6.96 0.37

Target-Date Retirement Prudential Day One Income Fund Class R613,23 SAQC -0.43 3.83 4.78 --- --- 5.00 0.40

Target-Date 2060+ Prudential Day One 2065 Fund Class R623 SAQO -8.55 --- --- --- --- -7.55 0.40

Target-Date 2060+ Prudential Day One 2060 Fund Class R623 SAQN -8.42 -0.92 4.81 --- --- 6.39 0.40

Target-Date 2055 Prudential Day One 2055 Fund Class R613,23 SAQM -8.02 -0.69 4.91 --- --- 6.64 0.40

Target-Date 2050 Prudential Day One 2050 Fund Class R613,23 SAQL -7.43 -0.04 5.21 --- --- 6.59 0.40

Target-Date 2045 Prudential Day One 2045 Fund Class R613,23 SAQK -6.97 0.36 5.27 --- --- 6.73 0.40

Target-Date 2040 Prudential Day One 2040 Fund Class R613,23 SAQJ -6.15 0.95 5.49 --- --- 6.75 0.40

Target-Date 2035 Prudential Day One 2035 Fund Class R613,23 SAQI -4.72 2.18 5.68 --- --- 6.71 0.40

Target-Date 2030 Prudential Day One 2030 Fund Class R613,23 SAQH -3.63 2.65 5.70 --- --- 6.59 0.40

Target-Date 2025 Prudential Day One 2025 Fund Class R613,23 SAQG -2.14 3.14 5.30 --- --- 5.88 0.40

Target-Date 2020 Prudential Day One 2020 Fund Class R613,23 SAQF -1.62 3.37 5.09 --- --- 5.47 0.40

Target-Date 2015 Prudential Day One 2015 Fund Class R613,23 SAQE -1.01 3.61 4.86 --- --- 5.31 0.40

Target-Date Retirement JPMorgan SmartRetirement® Income Fund Class R613,23 SA8X -1.01 3.12 4.48 4.37 5.81 5.06 0.42

Target-Date 2060+ JPMorgan SmartRetirement® 2060 Fund Class R623 SAEM -7.11 0.41 5.13 --- --- 7.24 0.46

Target-Date 2055 JPMorgan SmartRetirement® 2055 Fund Class R613,23 SA8W -7.05 0.58 5.12 5.67 --- 8.59 0.47

Target-Date 2050 JPMorgan SmartRetirement® 2050 Fund Class R613,23 SA8V -7.06 0.51 5.12 5.64 9.56 6.10 0.47

Target-Date 2045 JPMorgan SmartRetirement® 2045 Fund Class R613,23 SA8U -7.06 0.48 5.11 5.64 9.53 6.09 0.47

Target-Date 2040 JPMorgan SmartRetirement® 2040 Fund Class R613,23 SA8T -6.23 1.06 5.27 5.71 9.58 6.56 0.47

Target-Date 2035 JPMorgan SmartRetirement® 2035 Fund Class R613,23 SA8S -5.28 1.55 5.23 5.57 9.39 5.88 0.46

Target-Date 2030 JPMorgan SmartRetirement® 2030 Fund Class R613,23 SA8R -4.18 1.73 5.34 5.53 9.00 6.28 0.46

Target-Date 2025 JPMorgan SmartRetirement® 2025 Fund Class R613,23 SA8Q -2.77 2.61 5.15 5.32 8.51 5.61 0.45

Target-Date 2020 JPMorgan SmartRetirement® 2020 Fund Class R613,23 SA8P -1.31 3.23 4.96 5.02 7.78 5.80 0.44

Target-Date Retirement BlackRock LifePath® Index Retirement Fund Class K13,23 SADT 1.39 6.50 6.00 5.53 --- 5.58 0.09

Target-Date 2060+ BlackRock LifePath® Index 2065 Fund Class K23 SANZ -6.72 --- --- --- --- -1.38 0.09

Target-Date 2060+ BlackRock LifePath® Index 2060 Fund Class K23 SAEL -7.10 1.27 6.20 --- --- 10.23 0.09

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501

Date issued: August 25, 202016
58



Lincoln Director SMUniverse of Funds (continued)

Total fund
expense

Since
incept.

Ten
years

Five
years

Three
years

One
year

YTD
Separate
Acct. (SA)

Investment nameAsset class/asset category

Annualized Returns as of June 30, 2020 Fees

Balanced/Allocation (continued)

Target-Date Retirement Vanguard Target Retirement Income Fund Investor Shares13,23 SABM 1.46 5.69 5.39 4.93 5.84 5.30 0.12

Target-Date 2060+ Vanguard Target Retirement 2065 Fund Investor Shares23 SAEN -5.03 2.84 --- --- --- 6.17 0.15

Target-Date 2060+ Vanguard Target Retirement 2060 Fund Investor Shares23 SABL -4.95 2.95 6.39 6.76 --- 9.16 0.15

Target-Date 2055 Vanguard Target Retirement 2055 Fund Investor Shares13,23 SABK -4.96 2.95 6.40 6.77 --- 9.55 0.15

Target-Date 2050 Vanguard Target Retirement 2050 Fund Investor Shares13,23 SABH -4.90 3.02 6.42 6.79 10.10 6.81 0.15

Target-Date 2045 Vanguard Target Retirement 2045 Fund Investor Shares13,23 SABG -4.90 2.97 6.41 6.79 10.10 7.52 0.15

Target-Date 2040 Vanguard Target Retirement 2040 Fund Investor Shares13,23 SABF -4.11 3.46 6.50 6.76 10.08 6.77 0.14

Target-Date 2035 Vanguard Target Retirement 2035 Fund Investor Shares13,23 SABE -3.24 3.94 6.45 6.62 9.84 7.18 0.14

Target-Date 2030 Vanguard Target Retirement 2030 Fund Investor Shares13,23 SABD -2.33 4.40 6.42 6.47 9.37 6.48 0.14

Target-Date 2025 Vanguard Target Retirement 2025 Fund Investor Shares13,23 SABC -1.46 4.82 6.33 6.29 8.88 6.67 0.13

Target-Date 2020 Vanguard Target Retirement 2020 Fund Investor Shares13,23 SABB -0.58 5.09 6.09 5.97 8.31 6.20 0.13

Target-Date 2015 Vanguard Target Retirement 2015 Fund Investor Shares13,23 SABA 0.79 5.52 5.78 5.47 7.55 6.11 0.13

Target-Date 2060+ T. Rowe Price Retirement I 2060 Fund I Class23 SAAM -4.20 3.21 6.71 --- --- 9.89 0.52

Target-Date 2055 T. Rowe Price Retirement I 2055 Fund I Class13,23 SAAL -4.28 3.17 6.68 --- --- 9.93 0.52

Target-Date 2050 T. Rowe Price Retirement I 2050 Fund I Class13,23 SAAK -4.31 3.16 6.67 --- --- 9.94 0.52

Target-Date 2045 T. Rowe Price Retirement I 2045 Fund I Class13,23 SAAJ -4.30 3.17 6.66 --- --- 9.94 0.52

Target-Date 2040 T. Rowe Price Retirement I 2040 Fund I Class13,23 SAAH -3.85 3.43 6.72 --- --- 9.92 0.51

Target-Date 2035 T. Rowe Price Retirement I 2035 Fund I Class13,23 SAAG -3.46 3.57 6.60 --- --- 9.62 0.50

Target-Date 2030 T. Rowe Price Retirement I 2030 Fund I Class13,23 SAAF -2.94 3.89 6.48 --- --- 9.28 0.49

Target-Date 2025 T. Rowe Price Retirement I 2025 Fund I Class13,23 SAAE -2.32 4.07 6.29 --- --- 8.80 0.47

Target-Date 2020 T. Rowe Price Retirement I 2020 Fund I Class13,23 SAAD -1.77 4.20 6.03 --- --- 8.23 0.43

Cash/Stable Value

Stable Value Guaranteed Stable Value Account --- 1.00 2.05 2.03 2.02 2.15 5.42 0.10

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501
Date issued: August 25, 2020 17

59



Risk-based disclosures

1 Funds that invest in small and/or mid-size company stocks typically involve greater
risk,particularly in the short term,than those investing in larger,more established
companies.

2 Investing in emerging markets can be riskier than investing in well-established
foreign markets. International investing involves special risks not found in domestic
investing,including increased political,social and economic instability.

3 Investing internationally involves risks not associated with investing solely in the
United States,such as currency fluctuation,political risk,differences in accounting
and the limited availability of information.

4 Investing internationally involves risks not associated with investing solely in the
United States,such as currency fluctuation,political risk,differences in accounting
and the limited availability of information. Funds that invest in small and/or mid-
size company stocks typically involve greater risk,particularly in the short term,than
those investing in larger,more established companies.

5 Funds that concentrate investments in one region or industry may carry greater risk
than more broadly diversified funds.

6 Certain funds (sometimes called "alternative funds" expect to invest in (or may
invest in some) positions that emphasize alternative investment strategies and/or
non-traditional asset classes and, as a result, are subject to the risk factors of
those asset classes and/or investment strategies. Some of those risks may include
general economic risk, geopolitical risk, commodity-price volatility, counterparty
and settlement risk, currency risk, derivatives risk, emerging markets risk, foreign
securities risk, high yield bond exposure, index investing risk, exchange traded
notes risk, industry concentration risk, leveraging risk, real estate investment risk,
master limited partnership risk, master limited partnership tax risk, energy
infrastructure companies risk, sector risk, short sales risk, direct investments risk,
hard assets sectors risk, active trading and "overlay" risks, event driven investing
risk, global macro strategies risk, temporary defensive positions and large cash
positions. If you are considering investing in alternative investments funds, you
should ensure that you understand the complex investment strategies sometimes
employed, and be prepared to tolerate the risks of such asset classes. For a
complete list of risks, as well as a discussion of risks and investment strategies,
please refer to the funds’prospectus. The Fund may invest in derivatives, including
futures, options, forwards and swaps. Investments in derivatives may cause the
Fund’s losses to be greater than if it invested only in conventional securities and
can cause the Fund to be more volatile. Derivatives involve risks different from, or
possibly greater than, the risks associated with other investments. The Fund’s use
of derivatives may cause the Fund’s investment returns to be impacted by the
performance of securities the Fund does not own and result in the Fund’s total
investment exposure exceeding the value of its portfolio.

7 Funds that concentrate investments in one region or industry may carry greater risk
than more broadly diversified funds.

8 Investing internationally involves risks not associated with investing solely in the
United States,such as currency fluctuation,political risk,differences in accounting
and the limited availability of information. The return of principal in bond portfolios
is not guaranteed. Bond Portfolios have the same interest rate,inflation,credit,
prepayment and market risks that are associated with the underlying bonds owned
by the fund(or account).

9 REITs involve risks such as refinancing,economic conditions in the real estate
industry,changes in property values,dependency on real estate management,and
other risks associated with a portfolio that concentrates its investments in one
sector or geographic region.

10 REITs involve risks such as refinancing,economic conditions in the real estate
industry,changes in property values,dependency on real estate management,and
other risks associated with a portfolio that concentrates its investments in one
sector or geographic region. Funds that concentrate investments in one region or
industry may carry greater risk than more broadly diversified funds.

11 Asset allocation does not ensure a profit,nor protect against loss in a declining
market.

12 Asset allocation does not ensure a profit,nor protect against loss in a declining
market. Investing internationally involves risks not associated with investing solely
in the United States,such as currency fluctuation,political risk,differences in
accounting and the limited availability of information.

13 The target date is the approximate date when investors plan to retire or start
withdrawing their money. Some target date funds make no changes in asset
allocations after the target date is reached;other target date funds continue to
make asset allocation changes following the target date(see prospectus for the
fund's allocation strategy). The principal value is not guaranteed at any time,
including at the target date.

14 High yield portfolios may invest in high-yield or lower rated fixed-income securities
(junk bonds),which may experience higher volatility and increased risk of non-
payment or default.

15 The return of principal in bond portfolios is not guaranteed. Bond Portfolios have
the same interest rate,inflation,credit,prepayment and market risks that are
associated with the underlying bonds owned by the fund(or account).

16 The return of principal in bond portfolios is not guaranteed. Bond Portfolios have
the same interest rate,inflation,credit,prepayment and market risks that are
associated with the underlying bonds owned by the fund(or account). Investing
internationally involves risks not associated with investing solely in the United
States,such as currency fluctuation,political risk,differences in accounting and the
limited availability of information. Funds that invest in small and/or mid-size
company stocks typically involve greater risk,particularly in the short term,than
those investing in larger,more established companies.

17 Investments in U.S. government obligations are subject to varying levels of
government support. In the event of default,some U.S. government securities,
including U.S. Treasury obligations and Ginnie Mae securities,are issued and
guaranteed as to principal and interest by the full faith and credit of the U.S.
government. Other securities are obligations of U.S. government-sponsored
entities but are neither issued nor guaranteed by the U.S. government. Investing
internationally involves risks not associated with investing solely in the United
States,such as currency fluctuation,political risk,differences in accounting and the
limited availability of information.

18 The return of principal in bond portfolios is not guaranteed. Bond Portfolios have
the same interest rate,inflation,credit,prepayment and market risks that are
associated with the underlying bonds owned by the fund(or account). Investing in
emerging markets can be riskier than investing in well-established foreign markets.
International investing involves special risks not found in domestic investing,
including increased political,social and economic instability.

19 Investments in U.S. government obligations are subject to varying levels of
government support. In the event of default,some U.S. government securities,
including U.S. Treasury obligations and Ginnie Mae securities,are issued and
guaranteed as to principal and interest by the full faith and credit of the U.S.
government. Other securities are obligations of U.S. government-sponsored
entities but are neither issued nor guaranteed by the U.S. government.

20 Floating rate funds should not be considered alternatives to CDs or money market
funds,and should not be considered as cash alternatives.

21 Funds in the convertible category invest primarily in bonds and preferred stocks
that can be converted to common stocks. The return of principal in bond portfolios
is not guaranteed. Bond Portfolios have the same interest rate,inflation,credit,
prepayment and market risks that are associated with the underlying bonds owned
by the fund(or account). Asset allocation does not ensure a profit,nor protect
against loss in a declining market.

22 Social Awareness funds only invest in companies that meet socially responsible
criteria, so exposure to certain industry sectors may be greater or less than similar
funds or market indexes, and thereby may lead to performance differences.

23 Each Profile Fund is operated as a fund of funds which invests primarily in other
funds rather than in individual securities. Funds of this nature may be more
expensive than other investment options. The Profile Funds are asset allocation
funds; asset allocation does not ensure a profit nor protect against loss.

24 An index is unmanaged, and one cannot invest directly in an index.

25 An index is unmanaged, and one cannot invest directly in an index.

Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501

Date issued: August 25, 202018
60



Proposal for: Town of Paonia
Pricing Tracking #: D963606501
Date issued: August 25, 2020 19

61



Important disclosures:

A group variable annuity is a long-term investment product designed particularly for retirement purposes. Group 
annuities contain both investment and insurance components and have fees and expenses, including administrative 
and advisory fees. Optional features may be available for an additional charge. The annuity’s value fluctuates with 
the market value of the underlying investment options, and all assets accumulate tax-deferred. Withdrawals may 
carry tax consequences, including possible tax penalties.

Lincoln Director SM, a group variable annuity contract, is issued on variations of contract form 19476 and state 
variations and amendment forms AR-450A and AR-451A by The Lincoln National Life Insurance Company, Fort 
Wayne, IN, and distributed by Lincoln Financial Distributors, Inc. Radnor, PA, a broker-dealer. The Lincoln National 
Life Insurance Company does not solicit business in the state of New York, nor is it authorized to 
do so. Contractual obligations are subject to the claims-paying ability of The Lincoln National Life 
Insurance Company.

Contracts sold in New York are issued on contract form #19476NY-A 7/04 and AN-19476NY-A 01/16 by Lincoln 
Life & Annuity Company of New York, Syracuse, NY. The contractual obligations are subject to the claims-
paying ability of Lincoln Life & Annuity Company of New York.

Products and features subject to state availability. Limitations and exclusions may apply.

YourPath ® CIT portfolios are not mutual funds. They are a collective investment trust available  
only to tax-qualified plans and their eligible participants.

Participation in collective trusts is governed by terms of the trust and participation materials. An 
investor should consider carefully the investment objectives, risks, and charges and expenses of 
the collective trusts before investing. The participation materials contain this and other important 
information and should be read carefully before investing or sending money. Participation materials 
for any of the collective trusts in the program are available at 800-234-3500. 

Through a single investment option, YourPath ® portfolios allow retirement plan participants to invest in a mix of 
mutual funds and other investments that correspond to a specific risk profile and investment time horizon that 
includes the year (target date) in which the participant expects to retire. As the target date approaches, the mix or 
asset allocation of funds or other investments making up the portfolio (and owned by the participant) will change, 
becoming less growth-oriented and more conservative as the target date approaches.

YourPath ® portfolios are available as investment options in the Lincoln Director SM group variable annuity.

Lincoln Investment Advisors Corporation (LIAC) serves as the investment advisor to the LVIP Funds, 
including the LVIP Managed Risk Funds and LVIP Managed Volatility Funds. LIAC is the subsidiary of The  
Lincoln National Life Insurance Company responsible for analyzing and reviewing the investment options  
for inclusion in the Lincoln variable products.

The LVIP managed risk funds and LVIP managed volatility funds are not guaranteed or insured by Lincoln or  
any other insurance company or entity, and shareholders may experience losses. The strategies used by these  
funds are separate and distinct from any annuity or insurance contract rider or features.

Portfolio lineups are subject to change. The investment options within the portfolio involve risk and will not always 
be profitable. Morningstar Investment Management does not guarantee that negative returns can or will be 
avoided. There is no guarantee that the portfolio will provide adequate income at and through your participants’ 
retirement. An investment made in an investment option may differ substantially from its historical performance  
and as a result, your plan participant may incur a loss. Past performance is no guarantee of future results.

The Lincoln Morningstar Insight Series is not an investment option. It is a fund lineup chosen by Morningstar 
Investment Management LLC from the investment options that are available in the Lincoln Director SM group variable 
annuity. Morningstar Investment Management LLC is a registered investment advisor and subsidiary of Morningstar, 
Inc. Neither Morningstar Investment Management nor Morningstar is affiliated with the Lincoln Financial Group. 
The Morningstar name and logo are registered marks of Morningstar, Inc. Morningstar Investment Management 
LLC, 22 W. Washington Street, Chicago, IL 60602.

For plan sponsor use only. Not for use with the public.

Not a deposit 

Not FDIC-insured 

Not insured by any federal 
government agency 

Not guaranteed by any  
bank or savings association 

May go down in value

©2020 Lincoln National Corporation

LincolnFinancial.com

Lincoln Financial Group is the 
marketing name for Lincoln National 
Corporation and its affiliates.

Affiliates are separately  
responsible for their own financial 
and contractual obligations.

LCN-2986000-030920 
POD 3/20 Z05 
Order code: DIR-PRO-BRC002

62



335245 

Town of Paonia

Shane Squibb  

July 17, 2020 

Empower SelectTM

FOR PLAN SPONSOR OR FINANCIAL PROFESSIONAL USE ONLY.

A value-focused retirement plan with all of the high-quality resources you expect from Empower

Government  Markets

63



335245 

Empower Retirement — A trusted
partner in retirement solutions

Our values and what they mean for you

At Empower, we help millions of people take control of their 

finances and pursue a more secure retirement. We don't just want 

to offer retirement savings services, we want to transform the way 

people save and invest — for today and for the rest of their lives.

Maintaining a singular focus on retirement

Engaging your employees with innovative resources

Simplifying administration with a modern, intuitive platform 

Providing service excellence focused on results

Delivering meaningful, measurable value 

Prepared for Town of Paonia  

Shane Squibb 
July 17, 2020 

FOR PLAN SPONSOR OR FINANCIAL PROFESSIONAL USE ONLY.

Empower Retirement 

#1 choice of industry professionals1

- Best overall service (small and micro plans)

- Best value for price (seven years in a row)

- Best fee structure

- Best value-add services

- Best wholesalers

1 2017 PLANADVISER survey.

64



335245 

Bringing together “select” features in one simple 
offering to give you more value

• An experience that engages your employees and 
helps them take positive action.

• A suite of services to help you manage your 
administrative responsibilities.

• A diverse menu of more than 1,000 professionally 
managed investment options.

• An innovative digital platform that enables you to 

easily view, manage and optimize your plan.

See more at empower-retirement.com 

Prepared for Town of Paonia  

Shane Squibb 
July 17, 2020 

FOR PLAN SPONSOR OR FINANCIAL PROFESSIONAL USE ONLY.

Employee experience

Administrative support and services

Online Advice and My Total RetirementTM are part of the Empower Retirement 

Advisory Services offered by Advised Assets Group, LLC, a registered investment adviser.

65



Helping your employees by putting them at the 
center of everything we do

See more at empower-retirement.com/guided-tour 

Empower 401(k) retirement app

Quicker enrollment

1 Based on enrollment data for the period 1/1/17 through 12/31/17.

2 Apple Store app ratings and reviews as of October 1, 2018.

Prepared for Town of Paonia  

Shane Squibb 
July 17, 2020 

1min 20sec
time to complete enrollment1

4.7

See the 

Big Picture

Benefit from 

Personalization

Take Control 

of their finances

An experience designed to help employees

FOR PLAN SPONSOR OR FINANCIAL PROFESSIONAL USE ONLY.

Available on iOS and Android™ devices2

FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY

66

http://www.empower-retirement.com/guided-tour


We’ll work with Shane Squibb to design a 
plan that eases your plan administration –
and gets results

1 As of March 31, 2018. Information refers to all retirement business of 
Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company and its subsidiaries.

2 2017 PLANADVISER magazine

3 Based on participant website usage data for the period 1/1/17 through 
12/31/17. Users are defined as participants who logged on to the website 
and moved the deferral rate slider at least once.

4 Certain requirements may apply.

Email

With over 8.5 million participant accounts, our 

recordkeeping system provides the same experience for 

plans of any size while reducing the administrative tasks 

many plan sponsors experience, including:1
Savings rate increase3

• Reviewing and approving routine transactions

• Calculating eligibility and notifying your employees when they can enroll

• Preparing and sending participant communications

• Driving positive participant action and results

Social media

Educational meetings4

Video

Personalized messaging on an individual basis

Digital education library

Prepared for Town of Paonia  

Shane Squibb 
July 17, 2020 

45%33%
Change their deferral rate3

FOR PLAN SPONSOR OR FINANCIAL PROFESSIONAL USE ONLY.

Encouraging positive action and 

driving results

67



A comprehensive program that helps ensure plan
oversight and takes on your administrative duties, including:

Empower will stay committed to your plan to support ongoing administrative  
services.

Empower MORE 

(Make Operational Responsibilities Easy)

• Distribution of participant communications.

• Beneficiary tracking and verification for death claims.

• QDRO verification and processing.

• 1099 preparation anddelivery.

• Loan monitoring and distribution processing.

Prepared for Town of 
Paonia

Shane Squibb
July 17, 2020 FOR PLAN SPONSOR OR FINANCIAL PROFESSIONAL USE ONLY.

68



A diverse menu of investment options

More than 1,000 zero revenue funds; including 400+ funds with either a 4 or 5 star 
Overall Morningstar RatingTM1

Prepared for Town of Paonia  

Shane Squibb 
July 17, 2020 

FOR PLAN SPONSOR OR FINANCIAL PROFESSIONAL USE ONLY.

1 Fund share classes available on Empower Select do not pay revenue sharing from the fund, such as 12b-1 payments.

Additional funds available.

69



Investment strategies and advisory services 
Great-West Lifetime Funds1 include:

• Multi-firm underlying investment management

• Both active and passive underlying investment strategies

• A glide path focused on income replacement

The date in a target date fund’s name is the approximate date when 
investors plan to start withdrawing their money (generally assumed to 
be at age 65). The principal value of the fund(s) is not guaranteed at 
any time, including at the time of the target date and/or withdrawal. 

Pricing Credits are available when you choose a mapping strategy of affiliated target 
date funds, My Total Retirement (opt-out) or Empower Dynamic Retirement Manager.

3 Other options may include age or tenure.

Empower Dynamic Retirement Manager™2

– the best of both worlds:

• Evolves with the needs of your employees

• Automatically transitions participants from target date 
investment options to My Total Retirement

• Provides a more personalized savings plan as participants 
move closer to retirement

Target date fund
Participants earlier in their savings journey

Transition criteria
Years to retirement3

My Total Retirement
Participants nearing retirement with 
more sophisticated needs

Empower Retirement Advisory Services which includes My Total 
RetirementTM and  Online Advice:

• An option to expand financial advice to complement the service 
provided by advisors

• Provides 3(38) and 3(21) fiduciary services to participants

• One-on-one access to professional investment adviser representatives

There is no guarantee provided by any party that participation in any of the Advisory 
Services will result in a profit.

Prepared for Town of Paonia  

Shane Squibb 
July 17, 2020 

FOR PLAN SPONSOR OR FINANCIAL PROFESSIONAL USE ONLY.

1 Asset allocation investment options are subject to the risks of the 

underlying investments, which can be a mix of stocks/stock funds and 

bonds/bond funds.

2 My Total RetirementTM offered through Empower Dynamic 

Retirement Manager™ is provided by AAG.70



Our plan sponsor experience provides tools 
that improve plan results

• Plan analytics

• On demand reporting and testing

• Investment monitoring tool

• Fiduciary archive*

• Detailed participant overview

• Empower benchmarking

See more at empower-retirement.com/sponsor-guided-tour 

FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY

Prepared for Town of Paonia  

Shane Squibb 
July 17, 2020 

FOR PLAN SPONSOR OR FINANCIAL PROFESSIONAL USE ONLY.

* The fiduciary archive maintains a complete record of all plan-related

developments, providing protection to plan fiduciaries.

71

http://www.empower-retirement.com/sponsor-guided-tour


A tenured implementation team that includes your 
dedicated relationship manager oversees your plan’s 
90-day conversion2

Your world-class resource include:

• A dedicated point of contact

• Weekly calls and emails

• Training and website support

• Award-winning communications team3

1 Empower Retirement results in Q2 2018.

2 Typical conversions to Empower take 90 days.

3 Empower communication materials have received awards from various 
organizations, including the Awards for Publication Excellence; Hermes Creative 
Award in 2018; MarCom Awards in 2017; National Association of Government 
Defined Contribution Administrators, Inc. (NAGDCA) Leadership Awards in 2017; 
and Communicator Awards in 2017.

We learn your needs, review plan provisions and plan 

documents, and build a project plan.

To begin the conversion, we work with the current 

recordkeeper, test the payroll file, finalize plan 

documents and configure the system of your plan.

To finalize the conversion, we receive assets, reconcile 

records, upload data and then launch your plan.

Prepared for Town of Paonia  

Shane Squibb 
July 17, 2020 

FOR PLAN SPONSOR OR FINANCIAL PROFESSIONAL USE ONLY.

72



    $0 

Your Empower Select plan at a glance 

 Your Additional Plan Services 
(Included in your Recordkeeping Fee) 

Empower recordkeeping services 

Advisor compensation 

Plan assets Annual contributions Participants with balance 

0.11% 

Illustration prepared for: 

Total annual services fees 0.11% 

This illustration is based on preliminary plan information provided to Empower Retirement. This illustration is not a proposal, offer or contract to perform services and is not binding in any way. The Plan Fiduciary is responsible for 
considering whether the information illustrated herein may be appropriate for their participants and plan. A final fee and service arrangement will be set forth in an agreement between Empower and the plan sponsor subject to plan 
investment, plan assets, participant accounts, plan provisions and plan services. For more information about this illustration, please contact your Empower Internal Sales Director.   

*Pricing reflects administration fee credits provided by Empower in its sole discretion based on criteria as determined by Empower which may include the plan's use of affiliated funds or products. Empower may make service payments 
directly to other plan service providers on behalf of the plan including the plan’s financial advisor and third party administrator or may make payments to a Plan Expense Account to be used to pay plan expenses. Additional fees for 
participant transactions, advisory services, and brokerage account may apply. A full listing of services and applicable fees is available in our fee proposal that can be provided upon request. 

FOR PLAN SPONSOR, BROKER, ADVISOR AND/OR TPA USE ONLY. Not For Use With Plan Participants.  

Mapping Strategy 
Empower Select 

Recordkeeping Fee 
+ Advisor 

Compensation 
+ Plan Expense 

Account 
= Total Annual 

Services Fee 
Affiliated Target Date Fund Mapping  
AND Dynamic Retirement Manager 
OR Opt-out My Total Retirement 

+ + = 

Affiliated Target Date Fund Mapping 
OR Dynamic Retirement Manager + + = 

Like Fund Mapping
OR Unaffiliated Target Date Fund
Mapping 

+ + = 

$250,000 $45,000 15

Town of Paonia 457(b) Plan
In conjunction with
Shane Squibb

Great-West Trust as Custodian 
Participant notice delivery
Fee levelization

1.45%* +
$1,200 annually0.000.50

0.95% +
$1,200 annually

1.40%* +
$1,200 annually

0.000.500.90% +
$1,200 annually

1.37%* +
$1,200 annually

0.000.500.87% +
$1,200 annually

7/17/2020 1:29:29 PM (335245) 335245 

*Annual plan maintenance fee of $1,200 (employer paid, invoiced quarterly) assessed in addition to participant paid asset based fee.

73



FOR MORE INFORMATION:

THANK YOU FOR CONSIDERING 
EMPOWER FOR YOUR RETIREMENT 
PLAN NEEDS.

Talk to Corey Gallifant, Corey.Gallifant@Empower-Retirement.com 

Call (602) 721-0029  

Visit www.empower-retirement.com

Prepared for Town of Paonia  

Shane Squibb 
July 17, 2020 

FOR PLAN SPONSOR OR FINANCIAL PROFESSIONAL USE ONLY.

74



This illustration is based on preliminary plan information provided to Empower Retirement. This illustration is not a proposal, offer or contract to perform services and is not binding in any way. The Plan Fiduciary is 

responsible for considering whether the information illustrated herein may be appropriate for their participants and plan. A final fee and service arrangement will be set forth in an agreement between Empower and the plan 

sponsor subject to plan investment, plan assets, participant accounts, plan provisions and plan services. For more information about this illustration, please contact your Empower Internal Sales Director.

*Pricing reflects administration fee credits provided by Empower in its sole discretion based on criteria as determined by Empower which may include the plan's use of affiliated funds or products.  Empower may make 

service payments directly to other plan service providers on behalf of the plan including the plan’s financial advisor and third party administrator (if applicable) or may make payments to a Plan Expense Account to be used to 

pay plan expenses.  Additional fees for participant transactions, advisory services, brokerage account may apply.  A full listing of services and applicable fees is available in our fee proposal that can be provided upon 

request.

Investment Fees are an estimate when using a sample fund line-up and allocation and are not intended as a mapping recommendation.  Actual plan investment fees will depend on the investments selected by the plan 

fiduciaries.

Carefully consider the investment option’s objectives, risks, fees and expenses. Contact us for a prospectus, summary prospectus and 

disclosure document, as available, containing this information. Read them carefully before investing.

IMPORTANT: The projections, or other information generated on the website by the investment analysis tool regarding the likelihood of various investment outcomes, are hypothetical in nature, do not reflect 

actual investment results and are not guarantees of future results. The results may vary with each use and over time. Healthcare costs and projections, if applicable, are provided by HealthView Services. 

HealthView Services is not affiliated with GWFS Equities, Inc. Empower Retirement does not provide healthcare advice. A top peer is defined as an individual who is at the 90th percentile of the selected age 

band, salary range and gender.

Securities offered or distributed through GWFS Equities, Inc., Member FINRA/SIPC and a subsidiary of Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company.. Great-West Financial®, Empower Retirement and Great-

West InvestmentsTM are the marketing names of Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company, Corporate Headquarters: Greenwood Village, CO; Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company of New York, Home Office: 

New York, NY, and their subsidiaries and affiliates, including registered investment advisers Advised Assets Group, LLC and Great-West Capital Management, LLC. Core investment options are offered through a group fixed 

and variable deferred annuity issued by GWL&A or, in New York, by GWL&A of NY; mutual funds; separately managed accounts and/or collective trust funds. 

The principal underwriter of Great-West Funds, Inc. is its affiliate GWFS Equities, Inc. Great-West Capital Management, LLC is the investment adviser. 

About Morningstar Ratings: For each fund with at least a three-year history, Morningstar calculates a Morningstar RatingTM based on a Morningstar Risk-Adjusted Return (including the effects of sales charges, loads and 

redemption fees), placing more emphasis on downward variations and rewarding consistent performance. The top 10% of funds receive five stars, the next 22.5% receive four stars, the next 35% receive three stars, the next 

22.5% receive two stars and the bottom 10% receive one star. The overall Morningstar Rating for a fund is derived from a weighted average of the performance figures associated with its three-, five- and ten-year (if 

applicable) Morningstar Rating metrics. Past performance is no guarantee of future results.

iPhone, Apple Watch and App Store are trademarks of Apple Inc. Android is a trademark of Google LLC.

©2018 Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company. All rights reserved. ERMKT-BRO-4521-1705  AM640436-1018

Prepared for Town of Paonia  

Shane Squibb 
July 17, 2020 

FOR PLAN SPONSOR OR FINANCIAL PROFESSIONAL USE ONLY.

75



 

October 23, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

2021 Budget Work Session - Continued 

Summary:  Staff and Board review continues regarding the 2021 Town budget.  Primary topic 

for this discussion is the water enterprise fund and water rates – time permitting. 

 

Any consideration of rates should include the following: 

1) Anticipated capital costs 

2) Inflation 

3) Growth 

4) Fund reserve 

 

Notes: 

 

Included in the packet are the budget work-session documents from the 10/13 Board meeting.  

NOTE: ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS MAY BE ADDED TO THE PACKET UNTIL END 

OF DAY, MONDAY, October 26, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



 

October 22, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Agenda Approval 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran 

 

 

 

88



 

October 22, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Announcements  

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran 

 

 

 

89



 

October 22, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Shop Safe, Shop Local Recognition 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

90

1.



 

October 22, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Visitors & Guests 

     

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

91

2.



 

October 22, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

Administrator’s Report 

    Previous Visitors & Guests Follow-Up 

Public Works 

Police Report 

Attorney Report  

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VW – verbal warning 

WW – written warning 

CIT - citation 

CAA – clear adult arrest 

UTL – unable to locate 

UNF - unfounded 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

: 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

92

3.



rplwlitr.x1

Paonia Police Department
Law Incident Table, by Date and Time

Date Occurred:   10/01/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
09:24:30 Disturbance

Address
NIAGARA AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

11:59:32 ABANDONED VEHIC MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW
15:25:36 ALARM PPD PPD
17:09:03 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
18:21:09 911/hangup PPD PPD UNF

22:39:14 ALARM

NORTH FORK AVE, Paonia, CO
POPLAR AVE, Paonia, CO
MEADOWBROOK BLVD; Paonia, CO 

2ND ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 6

Date Occurred:   10/02/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
14:16:02 Information

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   10/03/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
18:08:51 CITIZEN ASSIST

Address
BLOCK GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   10/04/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
08:00:05 ANIMAL CONTROL PPD PPD
09:31:20 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
11:23:32 ALARM PPD PPD
20:49:37 Medical/transfe

Pan American AVE., Paonia, CO 
DORRIS AVE, Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
DELTA AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   10/05/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:31:19 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD
10:44:47 VIN INSPECTION PPD DCSO
11:39:11 VIN INSPECTION

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
Back River Rd., Paonia, CO 
Grand AVE., Paonia, CO PPD PPD

14:53:58 LOST/FOUND PROP 4th St., Paonia, CO PPD PPD
15:04:27 THEFT FROM AUTO ONARGA AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
18:07:23 AGENCY ASSIST PPD PPD
19:11:28 AGENCY ASSIST

GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
COBURN RD, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 7

93

3.



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 2 of 3

rplwlitr.x1

Date Occurred:   10/06/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:33:14 VIN INSPECTION

Address
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

16:34:00 WELFARE CHECK PPD PPD
17:45:32 SUSPICIOUS

5TH ST, Paonia, CO
NIAGARA AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   10/07/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
08:00:05 ALARM

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   10/09/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
12:00:39 DISORDERLY

Address
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   10/10/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
09:51:36 Traffic Stop PPD CIT
21:48:14 AGENCY ASSIST

SAMUEL WADE RD, Paonia, CO          PPD 
PEONY LN, Paonia, CO            PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   10/11/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
02:14:49 Information  MEADOWBROOK BLVD, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

15:12:24 Traffic Stop PPD CIT
18:03:46 SHOPLIFTING PPD UTL
19:07:45 SHOPLIFTING PPD CIT
22:38:00 Disturbance

Block Samuel Wade RD., Paonia, CO      PPD 
2ND ST, Paonia, CO                           PPD 
2ND ST, Paonia, CO                           PPD  
4TH St Paonia, CO                              PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 5

Date Occurred:   10/12/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
02:59:21 SUSPICIOUS PPD PPD
19:36:52 TrafficAccident

Address
RIO GRANDE AVE, Paonia, CO 
SAMUEL WADE RD & CLOCK RD, 
Paonia, CO

PPD DIST3 VW

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

94

3.



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 3 of 3

Report Includes:
All dates between `00:00:01 10/01/20` and `00:00:01 10/16/20`, All agencies matching `PPD`, All disposition's, All natures,
All location codes, All cities

rplwlitr.x1

Date Occurred:   10/13/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
08:42:46 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD
08:49:36 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD
14:09:49 Parking Problem

GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   10/14/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
11:45:06 WELFARE CHECK ONARGA AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD UNF
15:46:22 Code Enforce MINNESOTA AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW
18:35:32 ANIMAL CONTROL GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
22:51:18 Noise Complaint 2ND ST, Paonia, CO                           PPD PPD UTL
Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   10/15/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
15:14:02 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
16:33:50 AGENCY ASSIST PPD PPD
18:10:38 Intoxication

Samuel Wade RD., Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Total reported: 43

WW-2, UNF-2, CIT-5, UTL-2, VW-1
95

3.



96

3.



 

 

 P.O. Box 3310, 130 N. Park Avenue       Montrose, Colorado 81402               T: 970-249-7000               F: 970-249-8440 

 

DEVOR & PLUMHOFF, LLC                                                                         Bo James Nerlin   
Attorneys and Counselors at Law                        bo@coloradowestlaw.com 

         

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Board of Trustees, Town of Paonia 
From:  Bo James Nerlin, Esq.  
Re:  Town Attorney Report 
Date:  10/23/2020 
CC: Ms. Corinne Ferguson  
 
 
   This memo is an outline of the recent projects that I have been working on as the Town 
Attorney. This memo is to serve as an outline and not a comprehensive list.  
 

Marijuana Ballot Initiative  
As a reminder, Ballot Questions 2C and 2D are before Paonia Municipal voters this 

November 3rd.  In the event Question 2C is passed, marijuana stores will be regulated and 
licensed beginning in 2021.  In the event Question 2D is passed, said stores will also be taxed on 
the sale of marijuana.  In the event 2C passes, but 2D does not, there will be sales tax on the sale 
of marijuana, but it will not be a separate tax.  In the event 2D passes and 2C does not, there will 
not be the licensure and establishment of marijuana stores, and thus no tax.   

 
Public Hearings 
It is anticipated that the Planning Commission and the Board of Trustees will have 

several public hearings in November / December.  With these public hearings, it is important that 
all applicants are afforded due process, and decisions about the applications and/or requests are 
based upon the information provided during the public hearing and will be a part of the public 
record.  Therefore, it goes without saying,  Trustees are urged to refrain from ex-parte 
communications.  In the event Trustees receive any comments about a pending application, those 
comments should be directed to staff, and/or presented at the appropriate public hearings.   

 
Franchise Agreement  
Our office has been working with Charter Cable on a renewal of its existing franchise 

agreement.  We have provided comments to Charter, and it is anticipated that the proposed 
franchise agreement will be in the November 10, 2020 Board Packet.  

97

3.

mailto:bo@coloradowestlaw.com


 

October 22, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Treasurer’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

98

4.



99

4.



100

4.



101

4.



102

4.



103

4.



104

4.



105

4.



106

4.



107

4.



108

4.



109

4.



110

4.



111

4.



112

4.



113

4.



 

October 22, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Disbursements 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

114

5.



115

5.



116

5.



117

5.



118

5.



119

5.



120

5.



 

October 23, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Larksfoot Minor Subdivision 

Summary:   

Minor subdivision request. Administrator recommendation and complete application materials 

in packet. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

121

6.



1 | P a g e  Larksfoot 
Minor-Oct 2020 

 

ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

10-23-2020 
 

 

TO: TOWN COUNCIL 

FROM: CORINNE FERGUSON 

SUBJECT: LARKSFOOT MINOR SUBDIVISION 

 

Simon Wain and Julietta St. John provided an initial minor subdivision application for review June 26, 2020.  

The application was deemed complete September 22nd and final modification of the proposed subdivision 

lots was received October 9th for final review.  See below: 

Requirements for Administrator Review Per Municipal Code Article 6 Division 3 and amending Ordinance 

2018-03: 

Complete application packet and Fee payment. – Reviewed as submitted, deemed complete upon hard-copy 

receipt of revised plat map 10/9/2020. 

Requirements for Administrator Recommendation of Approval Per amending Ordinance 2018-03: 

(1) All such proposed parcels are divided by, or parallel to and part of the original lot, tract or parcel 

lines on the Town Plat; Refer to Plat Map J20017 - COMPLETE 

 

(2) All the developed proposed parcels have the applicable yard setbacks which can be required for the 

existing structures; Proposed Lot 1 – existing home and outbuilding structures meet setbacks. 

Proposed Lot 2 – vacant Proposed Lot 3 – Barn/shop structure currently permitted and under 

construction meets setbacks. See Site Plan C-1 
 

(3) All structures on proposed parcels do not exceed the maximum coverage area allowed in the subject 

zone district; - COMPLETE 

 

(4) All of the proposed areas of the proposed parcels conform to the zoned uses and dimensional 

characteristics of lots or tracts in the applicable Zone District of the Town regulations; COMPLETE 

– Proposed Existing Lot 1 – retain Developing Resource zoning – lot will retain approximately 

7.7 acres, existing single family residence, out-buildings, and light agricultural use. Proposed Lot 

2 – zone Developing Resource – lot proposed is approximately 4.4 acres, water and sewer tap paid 

in full for construction of one (1) single-family dwelling, will house existing tree service business 

at location and light agricultural use. Proposed Lot 3 – zone R-1 low density residential – lot 

122

6.



2 | P a g e  Larksfoot 
Minor-Oct 2020 

 

proposed is approximately 1 acre, water and sewer tap paid in full for construction of one (1) 

single family dwelling.  
 

(5) The minor subdivision application creates no more than three additional parcels; COMPLETE – 

three (3) lots proposed in application. 

 

(6) None of the proposed parcels violates any Section of the Town regulations; COMPLETE 

 

(7) The minor subdivision complies with the criteria in Sec. 17-6-250; CORRECT (Board review 

requirements) 

 

(8) The application has been referred to all affected Town departments and utility companies for review 

and comment at least fifteen (15) days prior to a decision on the application; COMPLETE 

 

(9) Minor subdivision applications shall not be available more than one time on the same lot or adjacent 

lots under the same ownership. COMPLETE – No subdivisions have occurred since annexation of 

property to Town June 2004. 

 

 

Requirements for Review and Town Council Approval Per amending Ordinance 2018-03: 

(1) Comply with all applicable zoning requirements of the zone district in which the minor subdivision 

is located;  

 

(2) Have a front parcel line on a street only, and such parcel access shall have the following 

characteristics:  

a. Said front parcel line must be at least twenty-five (25) feet long or the minimum lot width for 

the applicable zone district, whichever is shorter;  

 

b. The vehicular access to any primary structure on a parcel shall be from a street, must be a 

minimum of twenty-five (25) feet wide along its entire length, and must be owned in fee simple 

by the owner of the parcel being accessed;  

 

c. Vehicular access to a primary structure from an alley, including the access required pursuant 

to this Subsection, may be approved by the Board of Trustees only if either one (1) of the 

following conditions exists:  

 

1. The primary vehicular access existed from an alley prior to the filing of the application 

for a minor subdivision approval; or  

 

2. The division between subdivision parcels is a stream or similar physical barrier 

preventing vehicular access from the street (in such case, the applicant shall provide 

additional land to create an alley at least twenty (20) feet wide from the subject parcel 

to the nearest Town street and upgrade the alley to Town standards or in the absence 

thereof, to the approval of the Town Public Works Director); or 

 

123

6.



3 | P a g e  Larksfoot 
Minor-Oct 2020 

 

3. No street access exists.  

 

(3) Provide for underground utilities upon each building site;  

(4) Provide for adequate fire and flood protection and emergency access;  

 

(5) Not increase the potential for breach of the public safety, or damage to public or private property 

by fire, flood or erosion;  

 

(6) Not create congestion, automotive or pedestrian safety problems or other traffic hazards;  

 

(7) To be designed in a manner that directs the placement of roads, utilities and structures away from 

any unstable soils, or mitigates the effect of unstable soils, geologic hazards, and other site conditions so as to 

minimize the potential for breach of the public safety, or damage to public or private property;  

 

(8) Not create significant adverse effects to public facilities, rights-of-way or utilities;  

 

(9) Not create significant adverse impacts on the use of adjacent property;  

 

(10) Otherwise be consistent and comply with the objectives purposes, conditions and requirements of 

these subdivision regulations and the zoning ordinance of the Town regulations; and  

 

(11) If deemed appropriate by the Town Administrator or the Board of Trustees, execute a subdivision 

improvements agreement memorializing the applicant’s obligation and agreement to construct, at the 

applicant’s cost and expense, all public and private utility and street improvements in accordance with the 

Town's utility and street standards. The guaranty that such will be timely completed to the Town's satisfaction 

shall be secured by a bond or other security acceptable to the Town, in the sole discretion of the Board of 

Trustees, equal to one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the estimated cost of completion of such improvements, 

as determined by the Board of Trustees.  

 

Having reviewed and confirmed all requirements and information provided it is my recommendation 

to the Board the approval of Larksfoot Minor Subdivision as provided. 

 

 

 

 

124

6.



R
A

W

K
C

K
C

WP
R

O
FE

S
S

IO
N

A
L LA

N
D

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

IN
G

, IN
C

.
C

ILM
O
R
E

O
M
P
A
N
Y

D
efin

in
g B

ou
n

daries

406 G
rand A

venue
P

.O
. B

ox 1652
P

aonia, C
olorado  81428

970.527-4200
970.527-4202
w

w
w

.w
ilm

orelandsurveying.com

P
H

O
N

E

FA
X

E
M

A
IL kris@

w
ilm

orelandsurveying.com
J20017

9 O
C

TO
B

E
R

 2020

P
revious P

arcel B
oundary

W
ater line

E
asem

ent

E
lectric (underground)

E
lectric (overhead)

Fencelines

S
et 3/4" rebar 30" long w

ith 3-1/4"

S
et 5/8" rebar w

ith 2" alum
inum

 cap

S
et 5/8" rebar 30" long w

ith 2" alum
inum

alum
inum

 cap P
LS

38255

as W
itness corner or linepin P

LS
38255

cap P
LS

38255

Found 5/8" rebar w
ith 2" alum

inum
cap P

LS
25972

U
S

G
LO

 B
rass cap as noted

S
et M

ag N
ail in A

sphalt

Found 5/8" rebar w
ith 1 1/2" alum

inum
 cap

P
LS

12766 or as noted

S
ew

er line

Irrigation D
itch

M
innesota C

reek

D
ate:                     S

igned:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

'S
 C

E
R

TIFIC
A

TIO
N

C
O

LO
R

A
D

O
 P

R
O

FE
S

S
IO

N
A

L LA
N

D
 S

U
R

VEY
O

R
 #

38255

I, K
ris C

raw
ford, do hereby certify that the above described parcel has been surveyed by m

e and under
m

y direct supervision and that such survey is accurately represented hereon, and is based upon m
y

know
ledge, inform

ation and belief, and is in accordance w
ith applicable standards of practice and is not a

guaranty or w
arranty, either expressed or im

plied.

125

6.



126

6.



127

6.



128

6.



129

6.



130

6.



131

6.



132

6.



133

6.



134

6.



135

6.



136

6.



 

October 23, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Colorado Code Consulting Contract 

Summary:   

Continued discussion regarding CCC contract/building department.  Included in the packet is a 

copy of the current contract and the response to comments and concerns provided by CCC. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

137

7.



138

7.



139

7.



140

7.



141

7.



Colorado Code Consulting Attachment A to Contract 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Description of Services: 

 

General Statement of Duties: 

To organize, plan, direct, review and represent the municipality in code administration 

and enforcement of the Uniform Build Code. 

 

Supervision Received: 

Works under the supervision of the Town Administrator. 

 

Supervision Exercised: 

May exercise supervision over assigned personnel on a case by case basis. 

 

Examples of Duties: 

Prepares correspondence and notices involved in administration and enforcement of 

codes. 

 

Enforces Town adopted building construction related codes, including but not limited to 

building construction, mechanical, gas fuel, abatement of unsafe or nuisance type 

buildings, and energy conservation, issuance of required permits, reviewing of 

required building plans, building construction inspections, providing related assistance to 

other departments, i.e. enforcing all local ordinances. 

 

Review and maintains current all municipality regulations, codes and applicable 

ordinances related to assigned duties. Works with state plumbing and state electrical 

inspectors. 

 

Serves as inspector on Town capital improvement projects, as assigned. Works on any 

planning actives. 

 

Administers and enforces the applicable Town Codes relating to nuisances and 

involving the health, welfare and safety of the public in general and property owners or 

occupants within the Town limits. Coordinates development and subdivision projects 

and related follow-up. 

 

Establishes and maintains such records as necessary or required pertaining to code 

enforcement activities. 

 

Works with Administrator and planning committee on variances, rezoning, special 

reviews, etc. 

 

Works on special projects as assigned; as but not limited to mapping town water and 

sewer lines, implementing and coordinating community improvement programs, i.e. 

sidewalks. 

142

7.



Colorado Code Consulting Attachment A to Contract 

 

 

Performs other related work as may be required and assigned. 

 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

Required Knowledge, Skills and Abilities: 

 

General knowledge of all types of building construction, materials, methods, technology 

and safety. 

 

Requires the ability to administer and enforce established codes regulating building 

construction. 

 

Ability to supervise effectively. 

Ability to work with the public. 

Ability to communicate effectively, both orally and in writing. 

 

Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationship with supervisor, other 

personnel, agencies, departments and the general public. 

Requires discretion and independent judgement. 

Education: 

High school graduation required. 

 

Experience: 

Four years’ experience in building inspection work. 

Supervisory building trade experience may be substituted for two years inspection 

experience. 

Any equivalent combination of training and experience. 

Special Requirements: 

Must become certified within two years from date of hire. Must possess a valid Colorado 

driver’s license. 

 

Must be willing to perform shift work on weekends and evenings to assist all departments 

on major projects or covering personnel shortages. 

 

Position could be established as a call/when/needed or first 40-hour schedule basis. 

143

7.



144

7.



145

7.



146

7.



147

7.



148

7.



149

7.



150

7.



151

7.



152

7.



153

7.



154

7.



155

7.



156

7.



157

7.



158

7.



 

October 23, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Staff Retirement Plan Review and Update 

Summary:   

Recommendation to transfer provider of staff retirement plan from Mutual of Omaha to  

Empower Retirement. Discussion and documents included during work session prior to 

meeting. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

Our local representative Shane Squibb will still be our contact. 

There is no change in what the plan provides to staff. 

There is a minimal reduction in cost to the Town and to Staff for the plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

159

8.



 

October 23, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Public Water System Discharge Permit Inspection Results 

Summary:   

Attached is the CDPHE WQCD Discharge Permit Inspection Report.  

 

Notes: 

 

No deficiencies or findings noted.  Two (2) recommendations provided. 

 

Recommendation 1. – Verify calibration and check for sediment accumulation at the 1MG 

when brought back online. 

 

Recommendation 2. – Verify coordinates for the location of the facility discharge point as part 

of the permit renewal. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

160

9.



 

 Water Quality Control Division: Grand Junction 
222 S. 6th Street Suite 232  Grand Junction, CO  81501  P 970-248-7150 www.colorado.gov/cdphe/wqcd 

Jared Polis, Governor | Jill Hunsaker Ryan, MPH, Executive Director 
 

 
 
October 1, 2020 
 
Travis Loberg 
Town of Paonia 
PO Box 460 
Paonia, CO  81428 
 
Subject: Compliance Inspection of Industrial Water Treatment 

Colorado Discharge Permit Systems (CDPS) No. COG641134 
Town of Paonia, Lower Water Treatment Plant 
Delta County 

Dear Mr. Loberg: 

This letter serves to report the findings of the compliance inspection conducted by the Field Services Section of 
the Water Quality Control Division (the division) on the above referenced facility on September 10, 2020. The 
assistance that was provided was very helpful and is greatly appreciated. Table 1 identifies the parties present 
during the compliance inspection. 

Table 1: Parties Present 

Name Organization 

Travis Loberg Public Works Director/ORC, Town of Paonia 

Tyson Ingels, PE Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment 

Aspen L. Coombs, PE Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment 

Table 2 summarizes the number of findings and the required written response dates. 

Table 2: Compliance Inspection Findings 

Severity Category Number Identified Response Due 
(within 30 days of letter date) 

Major Findings 0 No Response Required 

Other Findings 0 No Response Required 

Observations / Recommendations 2 No Response Required 

Major Findings 

These items require action by the permittee and will be followed up by the division.  

No major findings were identified. 

Other Findings 

The division expects the permittee to correct the following other findings, which are potential violations, as 
soon as practical and return the facility to compliance with the CDPS permit, Colorado Revised Statutes and/or 
the associated regulations.  

No other findings were identified. 

161

9.



Travis Loberg   October 1, 2020 
Town of Paonia  Page 2 

Observations/Recommendations 

While the division will not directly follow-up on the observations/recommendations listed below, it is highly 
recommended that the permittee address them. The following observations/recommendations were identified: 

1. At the time of the inspection, the permittee was not discharging from the facility. The water treatment 
plant that generates the discharge stream has been down since 1st quarter of 2015. The facility is scheduled to 
resume operations in the first quarter of 2021. As part of the plant start-up procedure, the division 
recommends the permittee verify the flow meter calibration and check for accumulated sedimentation in the 
settling piping.  
 
2. The listed coordinates for the facilities discharge point is in the middle of a field 250’ east of the plant and 
actual discharge outfall. The permit is currently expired and under administrative extension. As part of the 
permit renewal, the permittee should verify and update the discharge coordinates for the backwash outfall 
001A. 

Reminders 

• Sanitary sewer overflows and any other spills that may impact state waters are required by law to be 
reported in accordance with the division’s Guidance for Reporting Spills under the Colorado Water Quality 
Control Act and Colorado Discharge Permits, which is available on the division’s website at 
http://www.colorado.gov/cdphe/wqcd . The state 24-hour toll-free number for environmental release and 
incident reporting is 877-518-5608. 

• Construction of interceptor sewers, lift stations and treatment plants, including modification/expansion of 
existing facilities, requires site location and design approval prior to commencement of construction. 
Please refer to the division’s website at http://www.colorado.gov/cdphe/wqcd for information regarding 
these requirements. 

• Most regulations, guidance documents and forms are available via the Internet on the division’s website. 
Please link to http://www.colorado.gov/cdphe/wqcd for further information.  

• In November 2018, the Water and Wastewater Facility Operators Certification Board updated and revised 
the criteria for facility classification in Regulation No. 100. These revisions are important because 
treatment and distribution/collection system classification establishes the minimum certification level for 
the operator in responsible charge (ORC). This may affect your facility’s operator certification 
requirements. For existing facilities, the new criteria will be applied beginning March 1, 2021. For new 
facilities, or if your facility undergoes a design review by the department, the facility classification will be 
re-evaluated based on new criteria beginning March 1, 2019. More information is available at: 
http://www.colorado.gov/cdphe/wq-reg100-facility-classification .  

We would appreciate any feedback that you provide so that we can improve. Please take a few moments to 
complete this survey.  

If you have any questions, please contact me by phone at (970) 248-7153 or via email at 
aspen.coombs@state.co.us. Thank you for your time and cooperation. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Aspen L. Coombs, PE, Staff Field Engineer 
Field Services Section 
Water Quality Control Division 
Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment 

Encl. Inspection Report 

 

Aspen Coombs Digitally signed by Aspen Coombs 
Date: 2020.10.01 07:26:16 -06'00'

162

9.

http://www.colorado.gov/cdphe/wqcd
http://www.colorado.gov/cdphe/wqcd
http://www.colorado.gov/cdphe/wqcd
http://www.colorado.gov/cdphe/wq-reg100-facility-classification
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__docs.google.com_forms_d_e_1FAIpQLScN1N5aeb6OvmNogbrPWrjNS7BFFMCt5oJ4PYW7exgMu5BdHg_viewform&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=fOSZo1ljeA8KbkXxqV5hpWAv6qvzgAzzULx61r5F7JI&m=2qhAVGZREFT3PkQUvVtZSW7cnDGyHd2_MorZTuldvxc&s=gcy8TYj1NXy_jd7o2D1JQGAZC2jXKBXZ8SnXqlro58s&e=


Travis Loberg   October 1, 2020 
Town of Paonia  Page 3 

cc: Delta County Health Department 
Permit File, CDPS No. COG641134 
Aquifer Case FS.20.INSP.06058 
 
Travis Loberg, CO/ORC 
Cameron Wilkins, PE, CDPHE-FSS, Unit Manager  
Tyson Ingels, P.E., CDPHE-ES, Lead DW Engineer 

 
 

163

9.



Section A: National Data System Coding (i.e., ICIS)

Inspection Date: 9/10/2020 Inspector: State

Permit

Inspected: CDPS # Inspection Type Program Facility Self-Monitoring Evaluation Rating

Process COG641134 Compliance Evaluation Satisfactory

Section B: Facility Data

Name and Location of Facility Inspected (For industrial users discharging to Entry Permit Effective Date

POTW, also include POTW name and NPDES permit number.) Date 9/10/2020

Name 1 MG WTP, AKA LOWER PLANT Facility Loc Time 8:00 AM 10/27/2010

Address 41576 Lamborn Mesa Rd Exit Permit Expiration Date

City, State, Zip Delta County CO 81428 Date 9/10/2020 9/30/2015

If industrial, POTW name & CDPS number: Time 10:45 AM

Name(s) of On-Site Representative(s) / Title / Phone / Email Processes Which Generate Wastewater:

Name Name

Title Title

Company Company

Address Address

City, State, Zip City, State, Zip

Phone Phone

Email Email

Name / Contact info of Responsible Official Treatment Process Description:

Name Travis Loberg

Title Pw Dir & Orc

Company Town of Paonia

Address PO Box 460   

City, State, Zip Paonia ,  CO  81428

Phone 970-527-4101

Email townofpaonia@tds.net

Permitted Features (bold italics  indicate revised coordinates)

Feature: 300-I 001-A 0 0 0

Lat (DD): 0.000000 38.851360 0.000000 0.000000 0.000000

Long (DD): 0.000000 -107.584045 0.000000 0.000000 0.000000

Section C: Areas Evaluated During Inspection (included in letter if unsatisfactory)

Satisfactory Permit Satisfactory Self-Monitoring Program Not Applicable Pollution Prevention

Satisfactory Records / Reports Not Applicable Compliance Schedules Not Applicable Stormwater

Satisfactory Facility Site Review Satisfactory Laboratory Not Applicable Combined Sewer Overflow

Satisfactory Effluent / Receiving Waters Satisfactory Operations & Maintenance Not Applicable Sanitary Sewer Overflow

Satisfactory Flow Measurement Not Applicable Sludge Handling / Disposal Not Applicable MS4

Satisfactory Certified Operator in Responsible Charge Not Applicable Pretreatment

DMR Period Evaluated - Start: 9/30/2017 End: 8/31/2020

Section D: Summary of Findings / Comments (see inspection letter for details)

Code Description

Name of Inspector Phone Email Agency Office

Aspen L. Coombs, PE (970) 248-7153 aspen.coombs@state.co.us CDPHE, Water Quality Control Division Grand Junction

Travis Loberg

Pw Dir & Orc

Town of Paonia

PO Box 460   

Paonia ,  CO  81428

Inspection evaluated elements identified in EPA’s NPDES Compliance Inspection Manual, US 
Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance, EPA 
305-X-04-001.

Water Compliance Inspection Report

Backwash waste water from membrane drinking 
water plant.

NPDES Base Program

Backwash water from Pall Microza membrane filtration is sent through a second "recovery" membrane filter system. 
Backwash water from the recovery membrane filter is released to a serpentine settling chamber before being 
discharged to German Creek. There has been no discharge since 1st quarter of 2015 as the plant has been off-line, 
but is currently scheduled to come back online in 1st quarter of 2021.

Admin Continued

970-527-4101

townofpaonia@tds.net

Water Quality Control Division
4300 Cherry Creek Drive South
Denver, CO 80246-1530
http://www.colorado.gov/CDPHE/WQCD

164

9.



 

October 23, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Building Permit Fee Structure 

Summary:   

Continued discussion regarding proposed building permit fee structure provided at previous 

Board meeting – 10/13/2020. Included in the packet are three scenarios provided by Deputy 

Clerk Mojarro, using existing and proposed structure. 

 

Notes: 

 

Questions that arose while running scenarios using existing building fee structure and 

proposed building fee structure: 

 

There are different types of projects that in the new modified schedule does not specify.  

Example where would the following projects fall under?   

Widening a door area or pathway inside a home?   

Change of occupancy?    

Attached Green House? -  listed as an addition in scenarios  

Replacing front porch?    

Adding a roof to a porch?    

Converting garage into a studio?   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

165

10.



Operating   Principles   
  

A   successful   building   department   should   be   professional,   consistent,   clear,   affordable,   reliable,   and   adapted   to   
local   needs.     
  

The   primary   goals   of   the   building   permitting   and   inspection   process   are   to:   
● Protect   health,   safety,   and   welfare   by   ensuring   compliance   with   town   standards   
● Help   reduce   conflict   through   consistent   application   of   standards   
● Foster   a   partnership   between   the   town   and   property   owners   

  
Fee   structure   example   from   Park   County,   Colorado   

  

http://parkco.us/135/Permit-Applications-Fees   
  

Paonia   Building   Inspection   Application   
http://www.townofpaonia.com/wp-content/uploads   
/2018/12/3.-Paonia-Building-Permit-Application.pdf   
  

Add   to   this   form:   
  

1. Project   square   footage   
2. Check   boxes   for   flat-fee   projects   
3. Description   of   how   to   set   up   a   meeting   with   

the   board   of   appeals     
4. Rebate   info   (determined   by   town)   
5. Minor   work   allowance:   If   the   proposed   

project   meets   the   following   requirements,   it   
may   be   approved   administratively   with   a   
$50   fee   and   complete   permit   application.   

a. Project   is   valued   at   less   than   
$5,000   

b. Project   is   not   structural   in   nature   
c. Project   does   not   require   any   state   

inspections   
  

166

10.

http://parkco.us/135/Permit-Applications-Fees
http://www.townofpaonia.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/3.-Paonia-Building-Permit-Application.pdf
http://www.townofpaonia.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/3.-Paonia-Building-Permit-Application.pdf


Proposed   Paonia   fee   structure:   
Square   Footage   Permits   -   Existing   structures   including   additions   up   to   500   sq   ft   

Project   Standard   Fee   per   sq   ft   Inspection   Fee*   

Garage   $0.50   TBD   

Addition   $1.25   TBD   

Remodel**   $1.00   TBD   

Deck   $0.75   TBD   

Covered   Deck   $1.25   TBD   

Flat   Fee   Permits   

Project   Standard   Fee   Inspection   Fee*   

Initial   plan   review   (includes   virtual   walkthrough   
with   property   owner,   up   to   two   hours)   

N/A   TBD   

Solar   installation   $200   TBD   

Roof   repair   (up   to   ½   roof)   $100   TBD   

Roof   (re-roof   or   repair   more   than   ½   roof)   $200   TBD   

Permit   change   fee   $    50   TBD   

Permit   renewal   $100   N/A   

Project   Valuation   Permits   -   New   construction   including   additions   over   500   sq   ft   

Project   Value   Standard   Permit   Fee   Inspection   Fee*   

<$5000  $       50   TBD   

$5,000   -   $20,000   $     100   +    $15.00   for   every   $1,000   TBD   

$21,000   -   $50,000   $     200   +    $10.00   for   every   $1,000   TBD   

$51,000   -   $100,000   $     350   +    $    7.00   for   every   $1,000   TBD   

$101,000   -   $500,000   $     500   +    $    5.50   for   every   $1,000   TBD   

$501,000   -   $1,000,000   $     750   +    $    5.00   for   every   $1,000   Based   on   project   details   
and   initial   walkthrough   

$1,001,000   and   up   $1,000   +    $    4.75   for   every   $1,000   
  

*Inspection   Fees   
● All   inspection   fees   are   estimates   based   on   typical   hours   required,   billed   at   $TBD/hour.     
● Actual   fee   will   be   provided   following   plan   review.     
● If   the   property   owner   contracts   with   an   approved   third-party   inspector,   the   town   inspection   fee   is   $25   

and   additional   inspection   costs   will   be   negotiated   directly   between   the   property   owner   and   inspector.   All   
inspectors   must   be   listed   at    https://www.iccsafe.org/search-for-certified-professionals/    with   the   
necessary   certifications   and   registered   with   the   Town   of   Paonia.   

● After-hours   and   urgent   (within   2   business   days)   inspections   are   billed   at   $TBD/hour,   rounded   up   to   the   
next   full   hour   

  

**Rebates   
● Restoration   and   Preservation:   Buildings   over   50   years   old   qualify   for   rebates   of   50%   off   the   permit   fee   

for   square-footage   based   remodel   permits.   
● Seasonal   Spruce-Up:   All   existing   buildings   qualify   for   rebates   of   25%   on   square-footage   based   remodel   

permits   from   November   through   February.   
167

10.

https://www.iccsafe.org/search-for-certified-professionals/


  
  

  

168

10.



 

October 23, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Revised 2021 Budget Calendar 

Summary:   

Included in the packet is a revised budget calendar for the remainder of this year following 

Board direction regarding holiday meeting dates for the remainder of the year. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

169

11.



BUDGET CALENDAR (2020)-Revised10/23/2020 
 

Description Administration 
Department 

Head 

Finance 

Officer 
Public 

Board of 

Trustees 

Department Head Meetings 8/5-8/30 8/5-8/30 8/5-8/30   

Approval of the Budget Calendar 7/23  7/23  7/23 

Preliminary Certification of Values due from County Assessor   8/26   

Budget Workshop (5:00 – 6:15) 8/27 8/27 8/27  8/27 

Prepare Initial Budget by Town Administrator/Finance Officer 9/6  9/6   

Budget Workshop (5:00 – 6:15) 9/10 9/10 9/10  9/10 

Budget Workshop (If needed) (6:00 – 9:00) 9/17 9/17 9/17  9/17 

Budget Workshop (5:00 – 6:15) 9/24 9/24 9/24  9/24 

Proposed Budget due to the Board 10/4  10/4   

Publish Notice of Budget Hearing 10/4  10/4   

Budget Workshop (If needed) (5:00 – 6:15) 10/8 10/8 10/8  10/8 

Budget Workshop (If needed) (5:00 – 6:15) 10/22 10/22 10/22  10/22 

Final Adjustments by Town Administrator to Finance Officer 11/8  11/8   

Public Hearing of Proposed 2021 Budget 11/22 11/22 11/22 11/22 11/22 

Final Budget Review by Board 11/22 11/22 11/22  11/22 

Preparation of Final Budget 11/27 11/27 11/27   

Final Certification of Values Due from County Assessor   12/10   

Resolution Adopting Budget 12/15  12/15  12/15 

Resolution setting of Mill Levy 12/15  12/15  12/15 

Resolution to Appropriate Sums of Money to Various Funds 12/15  12/15  12/15 

Mill Levy Certification due to County   12/15   

Final Budget Document to State   12/31   

* Mill Levy will be determined based on good faith estimate and is subject to minor changes upon final certification. 
 

(Note: Shaded areas indicate items that require Board of Trustee participation, discussion, or decision) 

 

170

11.



 

October 23, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Braver Angels America Hold America Together discussion and possible 

action item - Requested by Trustee Knutson 

Summary:   
To my fellow Trustees, I have two requests, first that the Town sign on to the Braver Angels “Hold 
America Together” letter and secondly, that you approve placement of a Braver Angels banner on the 
Town property east of Berg Harvest. The banner has the Braver Angels logo and states “United we 
Stand” with a link to their website. Thanks for your consideration. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

171

12.



 

 

PROPOSED LETTER 

At a moment of danger in this era of divisiveness, We the American People 

come together to speak for the Union. Some of us will vote for President 

Trump and others for Vice President Biden. But in this season of intense and 

legitimate partisanship, we the undersigned commit ourselves also to a higher 

partisanship – for the maintenance of our Union; for the importance of our 

shared civic life; and for those feelings of goodwill that Lincoln called the 

better angels of our nature. 

For ourselves and for all Americans, we appeal for the complete disavowal of 

election-related violence, calls for such violence, or excuse-making for anyone 

on either side who would commit or tolerate violence as a means of 

influencing an election. 

In a time of growing separation, we pledge ourselves to words and deeds 

intended to help us find each other as citizens. We start with this commitment: 

We will not demonize or question the decency of Americans who vote 

differently from us. When we oppose their political views we will say so with 

vigor, but we won’t castigate them as persons. 

If in the near future we face a constitutional crisis in which our institutions 

cannot produce consensus on who is the legitimately elected president, we 

resolve to work together across this chasm for solutions grounded in the 

Constitution and guided by our democratic and non-violent traditions and our 

sense of shared destiny. 

At stake in this contest is democracy’s North Star – peaceful political 

transition. It’s a time for opponents, but not for enemies. We the undersigned 

will work separately for what each of us believes is right, but we will also work 

together to protect the land we all love – to lift up American citizenship and 

the American promise in a time of peril and to find in ourselves the 

understanding that our differences don’t simply divide us, but also can 

strengthen and complete us. 

172

12.



 

October 23, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Regular Minutes: 

10/13/2020 

Special Minutes: 

8/20/2020 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran 

 

 

 

173

13.



 

  

AUGUST 20, 2020 TOWN BOARD WORK SESSION MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Town Board, Planning, Zoning Work Session 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

August 20, 2020 

  

Trustees present were as follows:  Town Commissioners were as follows   

Mayor Bachran                                                 Commissioner Hunter   

Trustee Bear                                                      Commissioner  

Trustee Budinger  

Trustee Knutson 

Trustee Pattison 

Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Meck 

 

Town Staff present were as follows: 

Administrator/Town Clerk Corinne Ferguson 

Deputy Clerk Amanda Mojarro 

Finance Director Cindy Jones 

Treasurer Ross King 

Public Works Director Travis Loberg 

Paonia Chief of Police Neil Ferguson 

 

A quorum was present, and Mayor Bachran proceeded with the meeting. 

 

 Town Board, Planning, Zoning Work Session: 

Town Board, Planning, Zoning Work Session preceded with discussion and review of the Delta 

County Land Use Code and the Draft Zoning Map of the Town of Paonia by Elyse Ackerman-

Cassellberry. 

 

4. Delta County Proposed Land Use Regulations 

 Elysse Ackerman presented the Delta County proposed land use regulations.  

 Discussion points: 

 The need to update the IGA 

 Explained what is an IGA 

 Anything 400 ft of town sewer has to connect to the Town's sewer.  

 The land-use authority by the Town or Delta County does not change 

 Discussed the highway Corredor and the land use map. 

 The land-use authority by the County or the Municipality does not change. 

 The Urban Growth Area (UGA) zone was created by the County. 

 Concerns arose about if the Town or County will be in control. 

 Discussed the impacts of BI-Scenic areas. 

 Discussed the Conservation easements - concerns of people developing in these 

areas arose. 

174

13.



 

  

AUGUST 20, 2020 TOWN BOARD WORK SESSION MINUTES 2 

 

 Discussion and concerns arose with inforcing junk and landfill - Delta County 

will be hiring an officer to specifically enforce the junk and landfill ordinance in 

county zones. 

 Discussed the method that will be used to notify citizens - Delta County will use 

the method of regular mail for notices.  

 Discussed the helicopter pad delta county ordinance. 

 Discussion and concerns arose on the Agriculture topic. 

 The draft zoning map for Paonia Colorado was included in the packet 

 The Detla County Land Use Code was included in packet. 

 

 

 

 

 

Adjournment 
5. Meeting was adjourned by Mayor Bachran at 6:25 pm 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                          Mary Bachran, Mayor  

175

13.



 

  

OCTOBER 13, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

October 13, 2020 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

Roll Call 

 

 

PRESENT 
Mayor Bachran 

Trustee Bear 

Trustee Budinger 

Trustee Knutson 

Trustee Pattison 

Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Meck 

 

Approval of Agenda 
Agenda Approval 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Budinger. to approve the agenda 

and unanimously carried. Voting Yea: Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, 

Trustee Pattison, Trustee Johnson, Trustee Meck. 

 

Announcements 
Announcements  

 Mayor Bachran gave her appreciation to everyone for their time contribution to 

painting the street and for everyone who filled out the survey. 

 Survey data results will be available in November 2020. 

 Approx. The number of surveys received was 500. 

 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 
5. Shop Safe, Shop Local Recognition 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

176

13.



 

  

OCTOBER 13, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

Mayor Bachran recognized the following business for following state COVID-19 

mandates. 

 The Refinery. 

 

6. Visitors & Guests 

 Community member Constantine Hershfield read his statement letter to the Board 

of Trustees. 

Staff Reports 

7.Administrator’s Report: 

 COVID-19 update 

 A representative from Modern Financial, Shane squib requested to present during 

a budget work session. 

 Continue to work with the ditch company regarding the Main Street/culvert 

project. 

 Colorado Department of Public Health & Environment (CDPHE) reports will be 

included in the packet regarding results. 

 The administrator will have a 3-month evaluation in the next packet.  

 Reviewing the municode looking into the cost of adding the State of Colorado's 

regulation and laws.  

 Updated on the covid-19 virus relief fund 

 Audio and Visual from Grand Junction, Colorado came out to look over the 

Town's audio-video quality in the community room. 

 A grant program is in the works to help businesses due to the pandemic crises. 

 

Board discussion points: 

 DMEA timeline for turning off the streetlights that were approved to be turned off 

- The administrator stated that the lights will be turned off by the end of the week. 

Week of October 12-16. 

 Cost for turning off the streetlights - The administrator stated that it is determined 

by the amount of time it will take DMEA to complete. An approximate cost that 

was stated by the administrator was $250. 

 Trustee Pattison suggested having an itemized list of the COVID-19 relief fund. 

Mayor Bachran suggested to the itemized list to be $3000. 

 Public Comment: 

 A community member commented concerning the region 10 support for 

communities. 

 A community member commented if the COVID-19 relief fund is used to help 

delinquent utility customers - The administrator stated that the relief fund can not 

be used for utility customers. 

 The administrator stated that a grant program is being put together and looked 

into what the requirements are.  

177

13.



 

  

OCTOBER 13, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

 A community member suggested having a microphone out for the public and to 

hire someone to clean and disinfect the community room after the meetings. 

 A community member was concerned about the resuming of late fees for those 

who have or could be impacted by COVID-19. 

 A community member suggested using a clear visor shield instead of mask during 

the board meeting. 

 A community member was concerned with having to pay the cost of turning off 

streetlight. 

 A community member stated that they had spoken to people from the Town of 

Cedaredge regarding the use of the COVID-19 relief funds to increase their 

revenue and the Town of Cedaredge stated that they were purchasing items such 

as outdoor heaters so that the restaurants could provide outdoor seating during the 

winter months. 

 

Public Works report: 

 1200 feet of spring line pipe was completed. 

 Cleaning up streets 

 Cutting elm trees on Salaam Wade street. 

 The vacuum of leaves will begin next week. 

 Working with Public Works clerk on an inventory program. 

 Spring lines were looked at by JDS Hydro. 

 The asset inventory has started - Public Works Director Loberg working on 

redlining the map. 

 Trustee Bear requested a written response from all the contractors on project 

updates. 

 Reported on the line break near Stewart Mesa Ditch. 

 Updated on the spillage and production of water of the water tanks. 

 Rescheduling tour of the water and sewer plants - an invitation was extended to a 

videographer to record the tour - Trustee Meck suggested that any person 

interested in being part of the Advisory Water Committee to join.  

 

Police Report: 

 Reported on the October 5th shooting incident -  the case was turned over to the 

Delta County Sheriff's Department. 

Disbursements 
8. Treasurer’s Report 

 Reviewed payroll and disbursements. 

 Continue to analyze the 2021 budget. 

 The Town of Paonia certification of values document was included in the packet.  

 The tax history was included in the packet. 

 

9. Disbursements 

 Disbursement documents were included in the packet. 

178

13.



 

  

OCTOBER 13, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 4 

 

Motion made by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Knutson and unanimously 

carried to approve disbursement as presented. Voting Yea: Trustee Bear, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison, Trustee Johnson, Trustee Meck. 
 

Executive Session 
10. Executive Session: For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may 

be subject to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing 

negotiators, under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e), specific to: Colorado Code Consulting 

Contract. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Johnson and unanimously carried to 

enter into Executive Session: For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters 

that may be subject to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and/or 

instructing negotiators, under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e), specific to the Colorado 

Code Consulting Contract. Voting Yea: Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee 

Knutson, Trustee Pattison, Trustee Johnson, Trustee Meck. 

 

 Entered into executive session at 7:21 pm 

 Returned to open meeting at 8:11 pm 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Meck and unanimously carried to 

direct the Town Administrator to submit a list of concerns that were developed through 

the Governmental Affairs & Public Safety Committee and meetings with the various 

public participants to Colorado Code Consulting services and solicit their response. 

 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

179

13.



 

  

OCTOBER 13, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 5 

 

 

 

 

New Business 
11. Proposed Building Fee Structure Modification 

 Discussion ensued on Trustee Pattison's proposed building fee structure.  

 The document was included in the packet. 

 Board & Staff discussion points: 

 The option of minor work.  

 Flat fee permits. 

 Discussed a rebate program. 

 Trustee Knutson was in favor of the simplified fee schedule. 

 Trustee Bear and Meck requested to have more time to review the proposed 

building fee structure modification and discuss at the next board meeting. 

 

Public Comment: 

 A community member was concerned with the inspection fee and suggested 

looking at the Town of Cedaredge building inspector.  

 

Motion made by Trustee Pattison, Seconded by Trustee Johnson and failed to carry with 

no votes to adopt the proposed building fee structure modification as a template for the 

building department including the rebates and minor work designation with specific fees 

to be determined based on the results of the pending negotiations.  

 

 

 

12. ASF - Holiday Offices and Council Meeting Schedule 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear     

Trustee Budinger     

Trustee Johnson     

Trustee Knutson     

Trustee Meck     

Trustee Pattison     

Mayor Bachran      

180

13.



 

  

OCTOBER 13, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 6 

 

 Discussion ensued regarding the holiday office hours. The regular and proposed 

holiday office hours were included in the packet. 

 Board and Staff discussion points: 

 Christmas Eve closed instead of 1/2 day. 

 November 24th will continue with the normal schedule. cancel or reschedule. 

 Trustee Knutson was concerned with the 4 hours left from the 1/2 day not being 

used by the staff and suggested that the staff be able to use. 

 

Motion by Trustee Knutson, seconded by Trustee Pattison and unanimously carried to 

move the regular board meeting on December 8th to December 15th. Voting Yea: Trustee 

Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison, Trustee Johnson, Trustee 

Meck. 

 

13. Town Administrator Performance Evaluation 

 Discussion ensued on the Town Administrator Performance Evaluation. The 

evaluation was included in the packet.  

 

Board & Staff discussion points: 

 Under priorities, number 5 Hire the unfilled position was changed to open office. 

 Trustee Pattison suggested to under priories – communication. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Knutson and unanimously 

carried to accept Town Administrator Performance Evaluation Voting Yea: Trustee Bear, 

Trustee Budinger, Trustee Pattison, Trustee Johnson, Trustee Meck. 

 

 

Consent Agenda 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

181

13.



 

  

OCTOBER 13, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 7 

 

14. Regular Minutes: 

August 25, 2020 

September 8, 2020 

September 22, 2020 

Blue Sage Center for the Arts - Liquor License Renewal & Modification of Premise: 

 Blue sage Center for the Arts - liquor license & modification of premise was 

tabled. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Meck, Seconded by Trustee Budinger and unanimously carried 

to accept the consent agenda as presented. Voting Yea: Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison, Trustee Johnson, Trustee Meck. 

 

 

Mayor’s Report 
15. Mayor’s Report 

 Closing Grand Ave on November 12th from 10-11:30 am to welcome the White 

House Christmas Tree. 

 Attending the Delta County Planning Commission Meeting. 

Committee Reports 
16. Finance & Personnel report: 

 Meeting October 14th at 9:00 am. 

 Administrator and Police Chief salary recommendations to submit to the Mayor 

for review. 

 Discussion on salaries. 

 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety report: 

 Discussed animal control. 

 Discussed extending dog tag registration to be tenured instead of annually. 

 Discussed short term rentals and accessory dwelling units. 

 Trustee Knutson was in favor of having accessory dwelling units and look at other 

communities that have ADU.  

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

182

13.



 

  

OCTOBER 13, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 8 

 

 Mayor Bachran commented on fee registration for bed and breakfast and short-

term rentals Trustee Pattison stated that she has interest of conflict in this matter.  

 Discussed the marijuana fee structure.  

 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities Public Works-Utilities-Facilities report: 

 Met September 24,2020. 

 Toured the 1 and 2 million tanks and Stewart ditch - Stewart ditch is used to water 

the town parks. 

 No meeting is scheduled. 

 

Space to Create report: 

 Met with a private individual. 

 Tree Board report: 

 Scheduled meetings or October 20th at Town Park. 

 

Trustee Comment: 

 Trustee Pattison commented that she would like to join the board of appeals. 

Adjournment 
17. Adjournment 

 Mayor Bachran adjourned the meeting at 8:52 pm. 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                          Mary Bachran, Mayor  

 

 

 

183

13.



 

October 22, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Mayor’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran 

 

 

 

184

14.



 

October 22, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Finance & Personnel 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

Space to Create 

Tree Board 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

185

15.



 

October 22, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Adjournment 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

186

16.


	Top
	.	Employee Retirement Plan Presentation
	ASF - Employee Retirement Plan Presentation
	Recordkeeping Proposal for Town of Paonia 08.26.2020
	457 Plan Evaluation and Options - Town of Paonia
	Town of Paonia-457(b)SP-TRA Standard Provider-08262020
	Town of Paonia - Lincoln
	Empower Retirement Select Proposal - Paonia - 7.17.2020

	.	Proposed 2021 Budget Workshop - Continued
	ASF - 2021 Budget Work Session - Continued
	Budget Work Session Documents

	1.	Shop Safe, Shop Local
	ASF - Shop Safe, Shop Local Recognition

	2.	ASF 4 - Visitors & Guests
	ASF 4 - Visitors &amp; Guests

	3.	ASF 7 - Staff Reports
	ASF 7 - Staff Reports
	Blotter
	Solar Energy Production Report_Sept2020
	Town Attorney Memo_1027

	4.	ASF 8 -Treasurer's Report
	ASF 8 -Treasurer&#39;s Report
	Treasurer Report_WPABondRequirement
	Treasurer Report_AccountAnalysis_throughSept2020
	Treasurer Report_BudgettoActual

	5.	ASF 9 - Disbursements
	ASF 9 - Disbursements
	Disbursements

	6.	Larksfoot Minor Subdivision
	ASF - Larksfoot Minor Subdivision
	Larksfoot_Admin Recommendation
	J20017 PLAT 9 OCT 2020
	Larksfoot Minor_Redacted
	Larksfoot Minor_newbuild and Zoning map snapshot

	7.	Colorado Code Consulting Contract
	ASF - Colorado Code Consulting Contract
	CCC Contract 2018
	CCC Attachment A - Building Inspector Job Description
	CCC Response to Town Board 10-23-2020

	8.	Retirement Plan
	ASF - Retirement Plan

	9.	Public Water System Discharge Permit Inspection Results
	ASF - Public Water System Discharge Permit Inspection Results
	COG641134 $ Inspection Report $ 10-01-2020 $ A $

	10.	Building Permit Fee Structure
	ASF - Building Permit Fee Structure
	2020_Proposed Building Inspection Fee Structure

	11.	Revised 2021 Budget Calendar
	ASF - Revised 2021 Budget Calendar
	BUDGET CALENDAR2020-revisedOct2020

	12.	Request from Trustee Knutson – Braver Angels Hold America Together, discussion and pledge
	ASF - Braver Angels America Hold America Together discussion and possible action item - Requested by Trustee Knutson
	Braver Angels PropLetter

	13.	ASF - Consent Agenda
	ASF 5 - Consent Agenda
	0820_Special Meeting_Draft
	101320_DraftRegMin

	14.	ASF 6 - Mayor's Report
	ASF 6 - Mayor&#39;s Report

	15.	ASF 10 -Committee Reports
	ASF 10 -Committee Reports

	16.	ASF 11 -Adjournment
	ASF 11 -Adjournment

	Bottom

